
Health and Wellbeing Board
Date: Wednesday, 18 July 2018
Time: 4.00 p.m.

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Pat Phillips
Tel: 0151 691 8488
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Board are asked whether they have any personal or 
prejudicial interests in connection with any application on the agenda 
and, if so, to declare them and state the nature of the interest.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 14 Mar 
2018.

4. HEALTHY WIRRAL 

4.1 Healthy Wirral Programme Update

4.2 Unplanned care update

4.3 Better Care Fund Update

5. WIRRAL HEALTH & CARE COMMISSIONING 

5.1 Commissioning Strategy

5.2 Supporting an integrated approach to identifying and 
assessing carers health and wellbeing

Public Document Pack



6. CHESHIRE & MERSEY HEALTHCARE PARTNERSHIP 

6.1 Transforming Care Partnership

6.2 Strategic Workforce Programme

6.3 Women and Children's Partnership

7. HEALTHIER LIVES 

7.1 Public Health Annual Report

7.2 Healthier Lives Pledge Update

7.3 Development of Wirral Together - Health & Wellbeing

Verbal update.

8. CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE 

Wirral Together for Children : Presentation : Paul Boyce

9. PARTNER UPDATES 

9.1 NHSE Quarterly Update

9.2 Healthwatch

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next formal Board meeting is Wednesday, 14 
November 2018 at 4pm in Committee Room 1 Town Hall, Wallasey.



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Wednesday, 14 March 2018

Present: Councillor Chris Jones (in the Chair)

Councillors P Gilchrist
I Lewis

Ms N Allen NHS England
Dr F Alam Medical Director, Cheshire and Wirral 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (Dep for 
Sheena Cumiskey)

Dr P Cowan Medical Director CCG (Dep for Dr Sue Wells)
Ms J Evans AD Integrated Commissioning & Unplanned 

Care
Ms N Hawker Dir of Commissioning CCG (Dep for Simon 

Banks)
Ms F Johnstone Director for Strategy and Partnerships
Ms V McGee Chief Operating Officer, Wirral Community NHS 

Trust (dep for Karen Howell)
Mrs J Webster Director for Health & Wellbeing

26 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were asked if they had any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in 
connection with any application on the agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

Councillor Phil Gilchrist declared a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of being the 
Appointed Governor: Cheshire and Wirral NHS Partnership Trust

Councillor Chris Jones declared a personal interest by virtue of her employment with 
the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.

Councillor Ian Lewis declared a personal interest in Item 4b (New Model of 
Safeguarding) of the agenda as he was involved with a complaint on this item.

27 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Simon Banks, Chief Officer, Wirral Paul Boyce, 
Director for Children, Councillor Phil Davies, Phil Davies, Chair, Healthwatch, Chief 
Superintendent Ian Hassall, Merseyside Police, Janelle Holmes (deputy for David 
Jago), Chief Operating Officer, Wirral University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Karen Howell, CEO Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust, Dr Sue Wells, Chair, 
Wirral CCG and Graham Hodkinson, Director for Health & Care.

28 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the accuracy of the Minutes of the Health & Wellbeing Formal 
Board held on 15 November, 2017 be approved as a correct record.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



29 STRATEGY 

30 CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE HEALTHCARE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 
REPORTS 

Fiona Johnstone, Director for Strategy & Partnerships, informed the Board that four 
key streams of work would routinely be included in future agendas of the Board.  
Unfortunately as this meeting of the Board conflicted with a meeting of Wirral 
University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust the updates for Mental Health 
and Workforce could not be presented and would be deferred to the next meeting of 
the Board.  Members were also informed that the update on Learning Disability would 
also be deferred to the next meeting as Graham Hodkinson, Director for Health & 
Care was unable to attend the meeting.

Councillor Phil Gilchrist voiced his concern that the Health & Wellbeing Board was 
being downgraded as it had been intended to be a meeting of senior officers and he 
has observed that higher officers of the partnerships were not attending in recent 
times.  Fiona Johnstone indicated that she would feedback this concern to partners.

Nesta Hawker, Director of Commissioning CCG, presented an update to the Board 
and informed members that the deadline for submission of the Local Maternity 
System Plan had been January 2018 and this had now been submitted.  The first 
pop-up Maternity Centre would be setting up in Seacombe on 20 March, 2018.  
Nesta Hawker also updated members on developments in personalised maternity 
care, baby boxes and noted that the Royal College of Midwives were about to 
prepare a statement of support.  Dr Paula Cowan, Medical Director CCG clarified that 
that pop-ups would be led by senior midwives for those at low risk and other patients 
would not be considered for this initiative. Dr Cowan indicated that she applauded 
this work and commented that this pilot was pioneering in our area.  Councillor Ian 
Lewis sought information concerning an email received by members regarding a 
conflict of interest and what diligence was being carried out.  Fiona Johnstone 
indicated that she was unaware of this email and asked that Councillor Lewis provide 
this to her and she would investigate.

Resolved –That a briefing note be provided as soon as possible for circulation 
to members as follows;

 Maternity : Simon Banks
 Learning Disability : Graham Hodkinson
 Mental Health : Sheena Cumiskey
 Workforce : Karen Howell
 Simon Banks to circulate, for information, the latest strategic highlight 

report from the Partnership
31 NEW MODEL OF SAFEGUARDING 

Further to Minute 15, 15 November, 2017 members of the Board were provided with 
a presentation on Future Safeguarding by Prof Maggie Atkinson, Independent Chair 
of LSCB.  This included the Children and Social Work Act – consequences for 
LSCB’s, opportunities for child friendly Wirral – the key role for the Health & 
Wellbeing Board and Supporting Families Enhancing Futures - support for principles 
and approach.

Page 2



The presentation gave details of Supporting Families Enhancing Futures (SWEF) 
and set out the 5 key principles that underpinned the model.  Maggie Atkinson 
informed members that the next 18 months would provide the opportunity for the 
Board to go back to the broad vision of ‘Every Child Matters’.  She referred to the 
timeline for the new model and the work undertaken in Rotherham and Leeds.  
Members were also encouraged to look at the website;

https://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk 

On behalf of members the Chair thanked Prof Maggie Atkinson for the presentation 
and looked forward to more information to coming to the Health and Wellbeing Board 
in the future.

Resolved – That the presentation be noted.

32 HEALTHY WIRRAL 

33 UPDATE ON PROGRESS 

Nesta Hawker, Director of Commissioning, CCG provided the Board with an update 
on progress and informed that developments were in placed based working.  The first 
focus was on how people age well in Wirral and work was currently being undertaken 
by Age Concern.  Dr Paula Cowan, Medical Director, CCG and GP commented that 
she had become involved with digital work – noting that one of the biggest issues for 
patients was telling the same story repeatedly.  One of the significant differences in 
Wirral was population health and geographical outcomes and Wirral as a subject 
area and digital innovation was ideal for this work given that it enabled shared 
information for health and care purposes.  Dr Cowan indicated that she would be 
happy to come back to a future meeting and provide a presentation to members.  Val 
McGee, Chief Operating Officer commented on the inequalities in outcomes in Wirral 
and noted that in this area the questions to be addressed were how standardisation 
was to be ensured, how communities could be more empowered and how variation 
could be driven out.  Dr Cowan concluded that Health Information Exchange would 
help facilitate this and commented that this was an excellent piece of continuing 
work.

Following discussion the Chair thanked Nesta Hawker for the presentation and 
indicated that a presentation by Dr Cowan to a future meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board would be welcomed.

Resolved – That the verbal report be noted.

34 UNPLANNED CARE UPDATE (A&E DELIVERY) 

Jacquie Evans, AD Integrated Commissioning and Unplanned Care, provided the 
Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on progress and developments across 
the unplanned care system, overseen by A&E Delivery Board and responded to 
Members questions.

Councillor Ian Lewis welcomed the improvement and commented that it was 
important that Wirral looked elsewhere, for example, why Greater Manchester had 
improved.  He requested that the Board receive details of work being undertaken in 

Page 3

https://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/


Manchester at a future meeting.  Jacquie Evans commented that work was being 
undertaken on Regional and National benchmarking. The Chair commented that it 
would be interesting to hear what new developments there were.  Jacquie Evans and 
Val McGee agreed that they could jointly undertake this work.

Resolved – That; 

 the update and ongoing priorities overseen by A&E delivery board 
be noted.

 the interdependencies of all partners to the resilient delivery of 
the 4 hour standard be recognised.

 the improving position be noted.

35 URGENT CARE REVIEW 

Jacquie Evans, AD Integrated Commissioning and Unplanned Care, provided the 
Health and Wellbeing Board with a presentation to update members on Urgent Care 
Transformation.  The presentation outlined the National context, the timeline 
involved, what local data showed, the views of local people and examples of typical 
case studies. The presentation also showed details of interaction with the public, 
urgent treatment centre requirements and the next steps to be taken.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

36 WIRRAL BETTER CARE FUND UPDATE 

37 INTEGRATION UPDATE 

As Graham Hodkinson, Director of Health and Care, had submitted apologies for this 
meeting Fiona Johnstone, Acting Director of Strategy and Partnerships, indicated 
that she would ask him to circulate a briefing note for circulation to members on 

 Integrated Commissioning Hub
 All Age Disability

38 PERFORMANCE REPORT 

The Performance Report was provided by the following link;

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance 

39 PARTNER UPDATE 

39.1 NHSE Quarterly Update 

Members gave consideration to a written report provided by Nicola Allen, Head of 
Medical, NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) & Lead for Service Change 
Assurance.  The aim of the report was to update Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board 
regarding the activities and responsibilities of NHS England. This report outlined the 
national and regional position together with specific updates on priorities that the 
Local NHS England Teams were responsible for progressing.

Page 4

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance


Resolved – That the report be noted.
40 HEALTHWATCH 

The Health and Wellbeing Board gave consideration to the quarterly report provided 
by Karen Prior, Healthwatch that provided an update on the activities, outcomes and 
outputs of Healthwatch Wirral (HWW).

Resolved – That the report be noted.

41 WIRRAL PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT (PNA) 2018-2021 - FOR 
INFORMATION 

Julie Webster, Director for Health and Wellbeing, provided the Board with a 
report on Wirral Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) 2018-2021: Final 
Version for publication.  Members were informed that Wirral’s Health & 
Wellbeing Board had undertaken the production of a new Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment (PNA), as a legal, comprehensive, assessment of the 
current and future needs of local people for community pharmacy services for 
the period between 2018 and 2021.

It was reported that following the formal 60+ day consultation period for 
Wirral’s new draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) (ended on 5th 
February) there had followed a review of the results and comments with the 
draft PNA document being amended accordingly.

Resolved – That 

1. the final Wirral Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) for the 
period 2018 to 2021 be approved.

2. it be noted that Final PNA will be published on or before 1st April 
2018.

42 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next formal Board meeting would be Wednesday 18 July, 2018 
at 4:00pm in Committee Room 2 Town Hall, Wallasey.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
18th JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE Healthy Wirral Update

REPORT OF Healthy Wirral Programme

REPORT SUMMARY

The Healthy Wirral programme is the system-wide programme to deliver sustainable and 
affordable health and wellbeing services to the population of Wirral.  

This programme brings together all of the resources and expertise of NHS and Care 
organisations into one single programme aimed at improving Health and Wellbeing 
outcomes for the people of Wirral.  

In line with other areas across Cheshire and Merseyside we are now establishing and 
implementing plans to achieve the best possible health and wellbeing outcomes for the 
population within the funding available to the system.  

The Healthy Wirral Programme has identified a mission of ‘Better health and wellbeing in 
Wirral by working together’ with the clearly stated aim to enable all people in Wirral to live 
longer and healthier lives by taking simple steps to improve their own health and  
wellbeing. By achieving this together we can provide the very best health and social care 
services when people really need them, as close to home as possible. Delivering this aim 
requires the Wirral partners to rise to four key challenges:

• Acting As One - exemplified in actions and behaviours.
• Clinical sustainability - sustainable, high quality, appropriately staffed, 

organisationally agnostic services.
• Improving population health - delivering the Healthy Wirral outcomes around 

better care and better health using a place based approach.
• Financial sustainability - managing with our allocation, taking cost out, avoiding 

costs, delivering efficiency and better value.

This report provides an update on the work of the Healthy Wirral programme.

RECOMMENDATION
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the contents of this report.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board, no further 
action by the Health and Wellbeing Board is required except to note the report.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 No other options have been considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Over the last ten months the Healthy Wirral programme has been reenergised and 
refocused to ensure that all organisations in the Wirral health and care economy are 
engaged in the delivery of better health, better care and better value.  There is also 
an emphasis on acting as one, rather than as individual organisations, for the 
benefit of the population of Wirral.

3.2 Healthy Wirral Governance

3.2.1 Appendix 1 shows the governance arrangements that are in place to take forward 
Healthy Wirral.  The governance arrangements acknowledge the legal separation of 
commissioning and provider functions but, through the Healthy Wirral Partners’ 
Board and associated structures, bring the commissioners and providers together to 
work jointly on system solutions to common and shared sustainability challenges.

3.2.2 The Healthy Wirral Partner’s Board is overseen by an Independent Chair, David 
Eva.  David is a Wirral resident and has a wealth of experience in the NHS through 
Non-Executive and Chair appointments, as well as in supporting education and 
training through the Trade Union movement.  Working with the Cabinet Member for 
Adult Care and Health and the Chairs of the statutory NHS organisations and two 
GP Federations he will play a key role in holding all partners to account. 

3.2.3 The governance arrangements are designed to support delivery of the primary work 
programmes identified in Appendix 2.  These primary work programmes are 
supported by a range of enabling and system shaping programmes.  Significant 
work has been undertaken to populate these key programme work streams with a 
Chief Executive or Executive sponsor, an Executive lead and delivery teams drawn 
from commissioners and providers.  Each programme will be required to have in 
place a clear implementation plan of their proposed work that demonstrates clear 
expected outcomes, benefits and savings linked to better health, better care, better 
value and supporting the ethos of acting as one.  Each programme will also need to 
demonstrate how they will engage with the people working in or using the services 
they are reviewing and redesigning, as well as with the wider population of Wirral 
and local politicians.

3.3 Integrated Commissioning

3.3.1 Wirral Health and Care Commissioning (WHCC) was established on 1st May 2018 
by NHS Wirral CCG and Wirral Council.  WHCC will bring together health and care 

Page 8



3

commissioning colleagues under one organisation.  This is not a formal merger and 
each part of the organisation will retain its statutory functions but it has provided the 
opportunity to pool the majority of commissioning budgets under a new governance 
structure.  The work of WHCC is overseen by the Joint Strategic Commissioning 
Board, as shown in Appendix 1.

3.3.2 The main benefit of integrating commissioning is that we can develop one plan for 
Wirral and use the expertise of staff to commission services that will provide 
positive outcomes for people.  WHCC is leading on the development of a new Place 
Based Care (see 3.5 below) system for Wirral and the commissioning focus will be 
on people and place rather than organisations. It is expected that this will see a 
move to more community based and primary care services being delivered to 
people in their local areas with an increased focus on preventing people being 
acutely unwell and requiring hospital care. This will help us to respond to the very 
different needs of communities across Wirral.

3.3.3 WHCC is taking a phased approach to developing place-based approaches, 
starting with our 50+ population (see 3.6.2 below).  This will be followed by all 
adults and then incorporating children by 2012/22.

3.4 Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership

3.4.1 The Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership Board is formally established within the 
governance arrangements for Healthy Wirral.  The WIPPB is not a legal entity and it 
will not replace any existing statutory body or NHS Trust; instead it is a Committee 
in Common, acting as an advisory group to make recommendations to the Provider 
Boards, or by exercising the powers vested in individual members.   This coming 
together enables the partner bodies to make decisions in a joined up way, 
simultaneously, although the final decision is still taken at an individual body level 
and subject to each of the bodies’ individual governance procedures.

3.4.2 The primary function of the WIPPB is to focus on the design and delivery of a range 
of outcome-based services, including their performance and quality. It will oversee 
the development of population-based care delivery ensuring the aim of effective and 
sustainable place-based care systems are created and maintained. The Terms of 
Reference for WIPPB are attached in Appendix 3.

3.5 Place Based Care

3.5.1 The delivery of Place Based Care will mean a very different way of working for the 
providers of health and care services across Wirral and will also begin to 
incorporate our colleagues in community, voluntary and charitable organisations.  It 
means that teams and care will be wrapped around local people in a community, 
which we will be calling neighbourhoods. Teams will provide genuine joined up care 
and work towards shared outcomes.  This builds on the work started by Wirral 
Council and Wirral Community Health NHS Foundation Trust in 2017 when the 
transfer of social care staff created integrated delivery teams.  A similar approach is 
being developed with Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust for 
mental health and learning disability services by WHCC.

3.5.2 Place is defined by the following:

Page 9



4

 1 Borough – Wirral
 4 localities – West Wirral, Wallasey, Birkenhead and South Wirral
 9 neighbourhoods (see map below)
 51 GP practices

3.5.3 In practice, this means that we will commission and provide services on either a 
Wirral wide basis (such as Urgent Care) or by locality/neighbourhood which will be 
more focused on local need.  This model is how we will begin to organise our health 
and care system in future and how services are provided in neighbourhoods will be 
important as these will respond to the needs of the people in that area.  

3.5.4 Neighbourhood teams will be an integrated workforce with partnerships across 
primary, community and secondary care, mental health, social care and the third 
sector.  These teams will work closely with GP practices and so we will be 
appointing a local GP to provide clinical leadership to the neighbourhood team.

3.5.5 Integrated neighbourhood teams will have more autonomy to work together though 
better coordination, communication and sharing of resources. This will not mean 
that staff will be moving to new organisations but neighbourhood teams will focus 
on their own team identity to achieve their aims.  We have secured Cheshire and 
Merseyside Health and Care Partnership Transformation Fund finances (see 4.2 
below) to support the development of neighbourhood teams.

3.6 Individual Work Stream Progress

3.6.1 Programme development and progress has been apparent in a number of the 
primary and enabling work streams.  This has included work on developing a 

Page 10



5

System Sustainability Plan (see 4.1 below).  Other developments of note are set out 
below.

3.6.2 Work has started in West Wirral by looking at the 50+ population group and a local 
neighbourhood team is beginning to identify the priorities for this group within West 
Wirral.  Our new Place Based Care model will mean that these priorities may be 
different for this age group according to different neighbourhoods.  For example in 
West Wirral the interventions needed to help people over 50 age well may be 
different to those in Birkenhead where life expectancy is much lower and may 
require more intensive clinical or social support driven by what the local need is in 
that area. 

We have established a Senior Change Team in Wirral which is made up of staff 
from all organisations as well as the Third Sector and their role is to work together 
to deliver our Place Based Care model and pilot new ways of working.  Our 
colleagues at Age UK in Wirral have been at the heart of this process and have 
recently completed an engagement exercise in to understand what people want 
when they grow older.  

3.6.3 Medicines Optimisation has established a number of significant work plans which 
aim to provide greater coordination and accountability of medicines optimisation 
resources.  This has included work on repeat ordering, supporting GPs in switching 
patients to less expensive but equally effective medication, providing advice and 
guidance to other work streams including enabling support for the development of 
neighbourhood teams and interventions in care homes.

3.6.4 Technology and Informatics is progressing at pace with the development of the 
Wirral Care Record, Health Information Exchange and associated registries.  

3.6.5 The Urgent Care work stream has been working on system wide plans for winter 
2018/19 and continuing to ensure all organisations work together to tackle urgent 
and emergency care pressures.  Following pre-consultation work in early 2018, 
proposals are being finalised for a public consultation on urgent care for Wirral, 
subject to NHS England approval.  There has also been considerable work 
supporting the Assets and Estates work stream in an attempt to secure national 
capital resources, accessed through the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care 
Partnership, for an Urgent Treatment Centre.

3.6.6 As part of the Assets and Estates work stream, the Strategic Estates Group for 
Wirral has drafted an outline Estates Strategy.  This is linked to Wirral Council’s 
plans for housing development and economic regeneration for Wirral.

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Financial Challenge

4.1.1 The financial challenge facing the Wirral health and care economy is very significant 
with a projected deficit position of more than £63m. The summary projected 
financial position as of May 2018 is provided below:

Page 11



6

4.1.2 Partners within the Healthy Wirral Programme are working on a shared system 
sustainability plan to address the financial challenges the system faces.  This plan 
will look beyond individual organisational boundaries in order to achieve a net 
reduction in the overall cost of delivering clinical services, whilst achieving the best 
possible outcomes for the population. 

4.1.3 Working together in this way:

 Provides clarity and focus for all organisations on the total funding available for 
healthcare and the scale of the risk and opportunity they all share within Wirral.

 Fosters collaboration across Wirral and reduces the risk of individual 
organisations optimising their own financial position at the expense of the wider 
system. 

 Maximises the likelihood of success by unlocking opportunities that might not be 
realisable at organisational level.

4.1.4 The development of the system sustainability plan is being supported through the 
Healthy Wirral governance structures with additional support from Mersey Internal 
Audit Agency (MIAA).   MIAA have been commissioned to undertake a diagnostic 
audit with the Wirral system using the latest data and analysis from national 
transformation and efficiency programmes such as the Carter review, Getting It 
Right First Time (GIRFT) and Right Care to provide a holistic understanding of 
where costs or variation could be reduced through effective collective action.

4.1.5 The system sustainability plan will be linked to the work streams identified in 
Appendix 2.  The process that is being undertaken is shown in the diagram below.  
The completion of this plan is dependent on the following “entry requirements”:

Page 12



7

 It is critical that the process has the commitment of all senior leaders to 
participate fully in the process and be open, honest and transparent in all 
dealings with the other organisations.

 All participating organisations agree to share all data required to populate the 
required templates with all other organisations.

 All participating organisations agree to share the most up to date data and 
metrics from comparative performance indicators and enabling programmes 
such as Carter, Right Care and GIRFT.

 All participating organisations agree to commit to the same principles and 
governance requirements.

Figure One:  High Level Process to develop a system sustainability plan.

4.2 Transformation Funding

4.2.1 In April 2018 the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership released 
the first phase of a Transformation Fund for local place based care systems.  
Following a detailed bidding process Healthy Wirral was successful in gaining the 
full allocation of £600k from this fund.  These resources will be allocated primarily 
for the development of neighbourhood teams as described in 3.5 above.  Some 
resources will also be used to support organisational development and to establish 
some key population data systems including a frailty register and systems to track 
variance.

4.2.2 In May 2018 the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership and NHS 
England (Cheshire and Merseyside) announced the creation of a Primary Care 
Network Development Fund for 2018/19 to support the development and 
implementation of Primary Care Networks across the area, building on the success 

Page 13



8

of the National Association of Primary Care (NAPC) Primary Care Home pilots and 
other network/federation initiatives being implemented across Cheshire and 
Merseyside.  The two local GP Federations – GP Wirral (GPW) and Primary Care 
Wirral (PCW) were supported to make applications to this fund.

4.2.3 Further work is underway to secure additional resources to support a detailed 
workforce analysis and planning process for delivering place based care.  A bid is 
also being submitted for funding to establish a bespoke leadership programme to 
support individuals and neighbourhood teams to embrace culture change and new 
ways of working.

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Healthy Wirral programme will be delivered within the statutory and legal 
frameworks set for health and care in England.

6 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

These are being considered within the Healthy Wirral programme and provided by 
the participant organisations.  

7 RELEVANT RISKS

The Healthy Wirral programme is developing a risk and assurance framework.  The 
most significant risks are a further deterioration of the financial position of the Wirral 
health and care economy and of associated clinical and performance standards.  
These can only be mitigated by the adoption of an “acting as one” approach as 
described above.

8 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULATION

Engagement and consultation will take place as the programme progresses at all 
stages.

9 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

The Healthy Wirral programme will give due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity, 
and to foster good relations between people and who share a protected 
characteristic (as cited under the Equality Act 2010) and those who do not share it.  
The Healthy Wirral programme will also give regard to the need to reduce 
inequalities between patients in access to, and outcomes from health and care 
services and to ensure services are provided in an integrated ways where this might 
reduce health inequalities.  The Healthy Wirral governance structures will require 
work streams to undertake Quality Impact Assessments and Equality Impact 
Assessments.
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Simon Banks
Chief Officer, Wirral Health and Care Commissioning and 
Senior Responsible Officer, Healthy Wirral
telephone:  (0151) 651 0011
email:   simon.banks1@nhs.net 

Page 14

mailto:simon.banks1@nhs.net


9

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Healthy Wirral Governance
Appendix 2 Healthy Wirral Work Streams
Appendix 3 Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership Board Terms of Reference

REFERENCE MATERIAL

Getting It Right First Time - http://gettingitrightfirsttime.co.uk/ 
Lord Carter of Coles, Productivity in NHS Hospitals - 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/productivity-in-nhs-hospitals 
NHS Right Care - https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/ 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Page 15

http://gettingitrightfirsttime.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/productivity-in-nhs-hospitals
https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/


10

Appendix 1 Healthy Wirral Governance

P
age 16



11

Appendix 2 Healthy Wirral Work Streams

P
age 17



12

Appendix 3

Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership Board
Terms of Reference

Background 

1. In order to improve the quality and cohesion of services provided to Wirral residents, 
change is needed in all parts of the system. 

2. As a key part of this, the integration of health and care provision will be achieved by the 
formation of an alliance of health and care providers, overseen by newly formed ‘Wirral 
Integrated Provider Partnership Board’ (WIPPB). 

3. Integrated providers will work together on delivering commissioned outcomes and 
objectives (formulated by Wirral’s Integrated Commissioner) for the population and the 
Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership Board will make decisions and provide strategic 
oversight about how to allocate resources and design care for its local population. 

Scope

4.  The WIPPB is not a legal entity and it will not replace any existing statutory body or 
NHS Trust; instead it is a Committee in Common, acting as an advisory group to make 
recommendations to the Provider Boards, or by exercising the powers vested in 
individual members. 

5.  This coming together enables the partner bodies to make decisions in a joined up way, 
simultaneously, although the final decision is still taken at an individual body level and 
subject to each of the bodies’ individual governance procedures

Function 

6.   The primary function of the WIPPB is to focus on the design and delivery of a range of 
outcome-based services, including their performance and quality. It will oversee the 
development of population-based care delivery ensuring the aim of effective and 
sustainable place-based care systems are created and maintained. 

Membership, Attendance and Quoracy

Membership 
7. The Chair is responsible for leading the WIPPB and for ensuring that it    successfully 

discharges its duties.

8.   Membership of the WIPPB will comprise;

Page 18



13

Chief Executive (Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust)

Chief Executive (Wirral Hospitals University Teaching Hospital NHS 

Foundation Trust)

Chief Executive (Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust)

Executive Lead (GP Wirral Federation)

Executive Lead (Primary Care Wirral Federation)

Total = 7 members

9.  Members will have a collective responsibility for the operation of the WIPPB, including 
discussion of evidence, and will provide expert opinion in order to reach a collective 
view. 

10. The Board can also call for additional experts to attend meetings on an ad hoc basis to 
inform discussions, report or answer questions. 

11. The meeting will be chaired by the Chief Executive of Wirral Community NHS 
Foundation Trust.

12.  The members will appoint a Vice-Chair who will take on the Chair’s duties if the Chair 
is absent for any reason.

13. The Director of Corporate Affairs from Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust will 
attend the meeting to support the WIPPB. Formal minutes will not be taken but a 
decision and action log reviewed at the end of each meeting and circulated to 
members for reference and action. 

Attendance

14. It is important that nominated members commit to attend all WIPPB meetings, noting 
that the dates will be set in advance. 

15. However, where this is not possible deputies are encouraged to attend on the basis 
that they must be able to contribute and take action/make appropriate decisions on 
behalf of the organisation they represent. 

Quoracy
16.  No business shall be transacted unless 4 of the 9 members of the WIPPB are present, 

with at least 3 Executive representatives and 1 Non-Executive/ Patient Champion. 

17. Any deputies agreed with the Chair and in attendance will count towards the quorum. 

Page 19



14

18. If the Chair or any member has been disqualified from participating in the discussion 
on any matter by reason of a declaration of a conflict of interest that person shall no 
longer count towards the quorum. 

Frequency of Meetings 

19. The WIPPB will meet at monthly intervals with dates set in advance. 

20. The Chair of the WIPPB may call extraordinary meetings at their discretion; a minimum 
of five working days will be required.   

Agenda and Papers 

21. Agendas and supporting documentation will be circulated at least 3 working days (or 
two working days plus a weekend) in advance of the meeting. 

Decision Making and Voting

22. Decision making and voting mechanisms would be agreed following the outcome of 
the diagnostic work being undertaken with the group and development of an MOU. 

Conflicts of Interest 

23. Members will be aware of what constitutes a Conflict of Interest, will ensure that 
Conflicts of Interest are disclosed and ensure that they are managed in adherence 
with respective Conflict of Interest Policies and NHS England’s guidance on Managing 
Conflicts of Interest. 

24. The Chair of the Board will manage all conflict of interest matters. Each member of the 
WIPPB will be asked at each meeting to declare any perceived or actual conflicts. 
Also, each member will be expected to declare any existing or new conflicts for any 
items of business for that meeting. 

25. The Chair of the Board will ensure a Register of Interests for the Board is created and 
maintained.  

Page 20



15

Policy and Best Practice 

26. The WIPPB will apply best practice in its deliberations and in making any 
recommendations. 

27. It will conduct its business in accordance with national guidance and relevant codes of 
conduct and good governance practice. 

Links to other groups

28. The WIPPB will report to the Board of Directors of the respective organisations and 
directly to the Healthy Wirral Partners Board via the Chair of the WIPPB. 

Review of Terms of Reference 

These Terms of Reference will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Wirral Integrated Provider Partnership Board - Chair Approval
Name: Date: May 2018  

Signature: Review Date: May 2019

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
18 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE Unplanned Care Update

REPORT SUMMARY
The following report provides the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on 
progress and developments across the unplanned care system, overseen by A&E Delivery 
Board. 

1. Background

1.1 Wirral has maintained a strong “System Focus” over the past 12 months, in order to 
improve and deliver resilient unplanned care services for Wirral residents.
Our position going into winter 17/18 was not strong, seeing us in the bottom quantile 
nationally for performance against the 4 hour standard.

During the past year, the system has moved forward with integration particularly 
between commissioning (CCG & WBC) and the embedding of the transfer of social 
care to Wirral Community Trust and impending transfer of social care specialist teams 
to CWPT. We have established an urgent care executive to improve governance and 
grip and utilised the work completed with Venn on whole system capacity and demand 
modelling.

As a result of the focus, Wirral saw a 5% improvement in system performance (4 hour 
standard) over the winter period, and has seen a 10% improvement since last 
summer. This has been achieved by a strong whole system transformation plan and 
improved system leadership and accountability. However, there is recognition that we 
need, and can do more, to improve system performance.

1.2Wirral concluded a review of winter, to ensure learning has informed plans for 18/19 
(see appendix 1 embedded in the system plan appendix 1 document).

1.2.1 What worked well last winter: 

• 5% improvement in system performance (4 hour standard) over winter period.
• 5.51% increase in discharges during winter period. System maintained very healthy 

DToC rate throughout winter, between 2.8% and 1.4%. Well below mandated max 
of 3.5%. One of only three systems in North West to maintain over winter.

• Phased approach to commissioning additional block winter T2A community beds. % 
go-live 1st Dec and % go-live 2nd Jan. Supported maintenance of flow.

• Improved governance-exec oversight of dashboard and reporting as a system-RAG 
rated. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4b



2

• Winter and BCF funded GP capacity to support clinical streaming at the front door 
and enhanced primary care availability/AVS, improved access to same day 
appointments and supported ED.

• Dom care prioritised for acute and community bed flow, small waiting list throughout 
winter.

• Developed with Venn and utilised capacity and demand model to inform 
commissioning plans

1.2.2 Key Challenges: 

a) Admission avoidance 
Not delivered at the scale necessary. Focus was on discharge, and whilst BCF 
schemes delivered within their own parameters, this was insufficient as a whole 
system.

b) Ambulance turnaround/handovers:
We fell short in performance against ambulance turnaround / handovers.

c) Year 1 of home first: 
Insufficient scale to really make a difference, with T2A beds and Re-Ablement / 
Dom care being the community deliverables.

d) Out breaks of Flu and D and V:
Wirral experienced Infection Control issues, both within the acute and community 
bed based settings. Disproportionate risk management plans, advised by Infection 
Control, negatively impacted on flow through to community. 

e) Workforce challenges:
Workforce capacity challenging to scale up during winter. Independent Sector 
market also stretched to capacity.

f) 7 day services:
Lower numbers of discharges, creating challenges into Monday/Tuesday pattern.

g) SAFER and ED /assessment flow: 
Full safer bundle requires implementation across all medical wards. Recognised 
that ED & assessment areas require redesign of pathways and use. 

h) Streaming: 
Variation in approach and numbers due to changes in model and recruitment 
delays. 

2. Wirral’s approach for 18/19:

2.1Our single system plan incorporating winter capacity plans and the Better Care Fund 
(BCF) was required to be submitted to NHSE on 29th June 2018.
Please see attached appendix 1 with supporting appendices embedded.

Page 24



3

2.2Whilst we are awaiting final guidance/requirements from NHSE and the national BCF 
team, we are expecting to see a strong focus on the following areas to improve patient 
outcomes and ensure services are effectively managing and delivering, to ensure flow 
and quantity.

2.2.1 Achievement of the 4 hour standard Please note NHSI/E have requested 
systems to ensure 90% compliance in 18/19, with achievement and 
maintenance of 95% by April 2019.
(please see targeting agreed with NHSI at the end of appendix 4, embedded 
in the system plan appendix 1 document).

2.2.2 Reduced length of stay (LOS) and reduction in stranded and super standed 
patients.  (Those people with a greater than 7 and 21 day stay). Whilst this 
will be a focus in acute settings, this also applies to community settings, such 
as transfer to assess beds.

2.2.3 Timely ambulance handovers
Ensure ambulance handovers are completed in 15 minutes and turnaround 
in 30 minutes.

2.2.4 Ensure streaming to primary care is embedded and zero tolerance of minor 
breaches.  

2.2.5 Realistic capacity modelling- NHSE are requesting systems take on 
the approach initiated in Wirral, working with Venn to have an evidence 
based whole system approach to capacity and demand modelling, especially 
to inform winter planning.

Wirral has a high degree of confidence in the modelling completed with 
Venn for the system.  (See appendix 2 embedded in the system 
plan appendix 1 document).

2.2.6 Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC)

Whilst awaiting guidance, we are expecting a 2.6.7% max DTOC target for 
Wirral in 18/19.

2.2.7 Continued focus on unplanned care transformation including Urgent 
Treatment Centre (UTC) development, primary care and the Integrated 
Urgent Clinical Assessment Services (IUCAS). For Wirral this has increased 
access to same day GP appointments. Rolling out the new model for 
111 including ability to directly book appointments for patients from 111.

The Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) constitution is scheduled to commence 17th July.  
Commissioners will be meeting with Providers, including clinicians to develop the 
clinical model for the UTC.

2.3NHSE have requested visits to systems to review Winter plan and discuss assumptions 
and responses.

We anticipate the full day visit to Wirral will be Monday 6th August.  This will be a review 
with the whole system.

Page 25



4

3 Summary of Performance

3.1Wirral sees an improving position with regard to the 4 hour standard.  Noting the 
revised NHSE/I position for A&E performance to 90% and 95% by end March 2018.

Current month performance (June):
Total Q1 Performance

89.86%
89.2%

Previous months performance:
May
April
Q4 17/18
17/18 cumulative

89.86
87.74
85.86
86.47

See appendix 2 for current 4 hour performance daily summary

3.2Current system performance is embedded as appendix 9 in the system plan appendix 
1 document).

3.3Significant work has been undertaken to review governance, Terms of Reference for 
A&E delivery board, Exec and operational groups (see appendix 6/7/8 embedded 

in the system plan appendix 1 document).

3.4Additional project management support has been agreed to ensure delivery across the 
system plan which has significant transformational change priorities to delivery ahead 
of winter. (for full plan, please see appendix 12, embedded in the system plan appendix 
1 document).

4. Governance approach and management of risk: 

4.1As indicated in 3.3 and 3.4, we have revised our approach to Governance.  The 
intention is to improve system grip and accountability.

4.2We will be investing time with the leadership centre to further develop our system 
culture and behaviours.

4.3Commissioners have agreed Service Development Improvement Plans (SDIPs) with 
providers to ensure read across with unplanned system priorities.

(see embedded appendices 4 and 5  embedded in the system plan appendix 1 
document).

4.4We have agreed a joint approach to escalation of risks by way of an early warning 
system, with agreed triggers.

This approach supports the national OPEL arrangements and is intended to provide 
early warning of potential pressure in order to facilitate an agreed response.  We 
continue to refine our approach and agree robust responses during Q2.

Page 26



5

5. Key Risks

We have identified a number of key risks to the system, with mitigations below:

Risk Mitigations

 Workforce Capacity  7 day review completed (see appendix 10)
 Implementation recommendations
 Workforce strategy plans underway
 Discussions underway between acute and 

primary care to explore support into ACU at 
times of pressure.

 Culture and Behaviours  Investment with leadership centre developing 
system approach.

 Revised governance and agreed principals.
 Fortnightly urgent care executive group 

meetings

 Insufficient Clinical implementation capacity 
and therefore delays in implementation.

 Robust oversight of plans
 Read across with SDIP’s, contractual 

oversight 
 Additional Transformation capacity funded 

though BCF
 Revised governance and escalation of 

risks/delays to 
      Exec and A&E Delivery Board

 Gaps in data sets across the system  Additional BI support agreed. Priority to 
review data sets. 

 System BI support and reporting

 Insufficient project management support
 PM agreed shared across system.
 Commissioners providing overarching PM of 

whole programme.

 Financial deficit and ability to meet cost of 
demand

 Healthy Wirral Exec to oversee performance 
and financial shortfalls

 Healthy Wirral Exec exploring opportunity for 
collaboration and financial sustainability

Next Steps

 Conclude Winter Review with NHSE on 6th August
 Refine plans following final guidance awaited from NHSE / National BCF Team.
 Submit performance reports from Q1 to NHSE by 20th July 2018.
 Complete tolerances and triggers and system responses in line with capacity and 

demand model and proactive approach to manage escalation. Review operational 
management arrangements accordingly.

 Progress actions in work plan and improve performance.
 Finalise project management arrangements.

RECOMMENDATION/S

 Note the update and ongoing priorities overseen by A&E delivery board
 Recognise the interdependencies of all partners to the resilient delivery of the 4 

hour standard

Page 27



6

 Note the improving position 

Page 28



7

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

N/A

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION
N/A

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

N/A

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

N/A

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

N/A

REPORT AUTHOR: Jacqui Evans
Assistant Director for Unplanned Care & Community Care
telephone:  (0151 666 3938)
email:   jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk

Page 29

mailto:jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk


8

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Winter submission

Wirral Winter Plan 
FINAL 280618.docx

Appendix 2: 4 hr standard performance 

summary AE  WIC Daily 
Performance Report 2017_18 (22).pdf

                      

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Health and Wellbeing Board 14.03.18

Page 30



                                                                                           

1

Wirral Winter and Unplanned Care 
System Sustainability Plan 2018-19

P
age 31

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

2

Contents:               Page

1 Winter Plan Executive Summary 3

2 Learning from Winter 17/18  3

2.1 What worked well last winter 3

2.2 Key Challenges to inform 18/19 plans 4

3 Wirral’s approach for 18/19 6

3.1 Key Intentions for 18/19 that are different to 17/18 7

3.2 System Response for Urgent Care 9

3.3 Plan Overview 12

3.4 Wirral System Urgent Care Report (high level for A&E Delivery Board) 17

4 Governance Approach in 18/19 18

5 Proactive Approach to Escalation of Risk 18

6 Key Risks: Identified  20

7 Appendices 21

 

P
age 32

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

3

1. Winter Plan Executive Summary

Wirral has maintained a strong “System Focus” over the past 12 months, in order to improve and deliver resilient unplanned care services for Wirral residents.

Our position going into winter 17/18 was not strong, seeing us in the bottom quantile nationally for performance against the 4 hour standard.

During the past year, the system has moved forward with integration particularly between commissioning (CCG & WBC) and the embedding of the transfer of 
social care to Wirral Community Trust and impending transfer of social care specialist teams to CWPT, we have established an urgent care executive to 
improve governance and grip and utilised the work completed with Venn on whole system capacity and demand modelling.

As a result of the focus, Wirral saw a 5% improvement in system performance (4 hour standard) over the winter period, and has seen a 10% improvement 
since last summer. This has been achieved by a strong whole system transformation plan and improved system leadership and accountability. However, 
there is recognition that we need, and can do more, to improve system performance. 

2. Learning from Winter 17/18:  

Wirral concluded a review of winter, to ensure learning has informed plans for 18/19 (see appendix 1).

2.1 What worked well last winter: 
 5% improvement in system performance (4 hour standard) over winter period.
 5.51% increase in discharges during winter period. System maintained very healthy DToC rate throughout winter, between 2.8% and 1.4%. Well 

below mandated max of 3.5%. One of only 3 systems in north -west to maintain over winter.
 Phased approach to commissioning additional block winter T2A community beds. % go-live 1st Dec and % go-live 2nd Jan. Supported maintenance of 

flow.
 Improved governance-exec oversight of dashboard and reporting as a system-RAG rated. 

P
age 33

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

4

 Winter and BCF funded GP capacity to support clinical streaming at the front door and enhanced primary care availability/AVS, improved access to 
same day appointments and supported ED.

 Dom care prioritised for acute and community bed flow, small waiting list throughout winter.
 Developed with Venn and utilised capacity and demand model to inform commissioning plans

2.2 Key Challenges to inform 18/19 plans:
a) Admission avoidance 

Not delivered at the scale necessary. Focus was on discharge, and whilst BCF schemes delivered within their own parameters, this was insufficient 
as a whole system.

o Action 18/19:
 Remodelling of admission avoidance target and associated schemes to ensure delivery.
 Review and redesign of SPA
 Review and redesign of GPOOH’s and AVS
 Gradual implementation of new IUCCAS
 Implementation of enhanced primary care
 Implementation of phase 2 streaming
 BCF investment in AVS and IV antibiotics at home.

b) Ambulance turnaround/handovers:
We fell short in performance against ambulance turnaround / handovers.

o Action 18/19
 Acute grip and investment in staff within ED to support improved performance patient quality
 Key system priority and reporting monthly.

c) Year 1 of home first: 
Insufficient scale to really make a difference, with T2A beds and Re-Ablement / Dom care being the community deliverables.

o Action 18/19:
 Review and redesign of model and approach for home first and therapy offer underway with implementation beginning Q3.

P
age 34

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

5

 Workforce strategy plans developing and new approaches being piloted for dom care. New commissioning model underway, with go 
live planned for June 19. This will include health care assistants as part of the model, to support increased levels of acuity.

d) Out breaks of Flu and D and V:
Wirral experienced Infection Control issues, both within the acute and community bed based settings. Disproportionate risk management plans, 
advised by Infection Control, negatively impacted on flow through to community. 

o Action 18/19:
 Pro-active work with infection control to ensure more appropriate management of risk and flow
 Full briefings/support to care homes

e) Workforce challenges:
Workforce capacity challenging to scale up during winter. Independent Sector market also stretched to capacity.

o Action 18/19:
 Existing “unfunded” wards permanently staffed.
 Co-horting of medically optimised patients with alternative staffing solutions provided by Independent sector or economy 

collaboration. 
 Develop workforce strategies, implement generic worker opportunities and blended organisational approaches.
 Recommission of domiciliary care and in year support and focus to recruit and retain staff. Remodelling of approach with key health 

providers.

f) 7 day services:
Lower numbers of discharges, creating challenges into Monday/Tuesday pattern.

o Action 18/19:
 Implementing actions following review of 7 day services, inc increasing staff available over 7 days, including pharmacy and 

transport, acute and community.
 Increased MADE events for B/H’s and improved activity for Xmas/new year.
 Ensure 7 day access to care homes with flexible numbers of admissions. Consider 7 day trusted assessor model, currently 5 

days. 

g) SAFER and ED /assessment flow: 
Full safer bundle requires implementation across all medical wards. Recognised that ED & assessment areas require redesign of pathways and use. 

P
age 35

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

6

o Action 18/19:
 Redesign of ED and assessment areas to improve flow.
 Stronger grip on full SAFER model to support ED.
 Both areas agreed in SDIP
 SAFER to be implemented in commissioning T2A bases. 

h) Streaming: 
Variation in approach and numbers due to changes in model and recruitment delays. 

o Action 18/19
 Phase II of model to be fully implemented in Q2
 Zero tolerance of minor breaches
 T&F group overseeing implementation with robust data analysis 

3. Wirral’s approach for 18/19

We will continue with a single system plan, incorporating BCF and winter capacity intentions.
As a system we will build upon the successful capacity and demand (CDM) work initiated with VENN in 17/18, by continuing to use the CDM to inform 
required capacity across the system. (See appendix 2 for full details) Given that Wirral worked with Venn to develop the model and applied learning in 17/18, 
we have a significant degree of confidence in the model and its application for 18/19. Commissioners and providers have validated the assumptions and 
believe we are in a much stronger position, compared to previous years, in our ability to confidently predict demand requirements across the system. 

A key factor in this is to improve our LOS in both acute and community beds in order to increase sustainable capacity and improve patient outcomes.  
However, we have built in a degree of tolerance assuming some degree of Flu and Infection Control pressures. We have worked to achievement of 92% 
occupancy. 

In calculating LOS for acute we have worked an average 4.8 days LOS. 17/18 was 4.08. We saw 0.3 of a day increase over winter. For the community we 
have agreed on average LOS of 4.2 weeks in T2A beds. This again provides a buffer for 10% of patients who extend beyond 6 weeks; whilst we intend to 
focus energy on reducing LOS and stranded patients, for the modelling we have built in acceptable tolerances. The Better Care fund is fully supporting the 

P
age 36

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

7

agreed system priorities. Funding supports commissions which include (see appendix 3 for summary of BCF priorities and appendix 11 for breakdown of 
winter funding):

 AVS
 OPAT
 Winter community capacity
 Teletriage

3.1 Key Intentions for 18/19 that are different to 17/18:

Primary Care: o Increased GP appointments compared to 17/18 via the Wirral GP Access Hubs service (180 hours per 
week or 720 appointments per week)

o General Practice will be encouraged to prioritise urgent care patient’s needs over the festive and new 
period e.g. Increasing same day appointments compared to annual health checks, screening or 
immunisation appointments.

o GP Streaming at Arrowe Park Hospital Emergency Department provides an additional 52.5 hours a 
week of additional GP appointments during core contract hours (over 17/18 baseline) 

o Primary care exploring with Community nursing opportunities to deploy additional resource over winter 
pressure periods, via de-prioritisation of non-urgent appointments

o All practices are advised to ensure anticipatory care plans are in place for vulnerable patients over 
winter e.g. COPD Exacerbation plan/Flu Immunisation

o Subject to additional funding and workforce availability offer additional GP appointments via (1) GP 
practices in hours and (2) Wirral GP Access Hubs out of hours (over and above the 180 hours)

Acute and community winter capacity (see 
appendix 2):

o 48 planned acute escalation beds
o 20 additional T2A community beds over winter
o 6 residential MH beds commissioned as core
o 3 additional MH beds commissioned over winter
o Additional mental health crisis response worker
o Re-Ablement capacity sufficient
o Domiciliary capacity – waiting list to be maintained to 25 as a maximum total across the system 

P
age 37

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

8

(maximum 6 in acute setting, maximum in T2A community setting) 
Support to care homes: o Teletriage will be fully implemented across 76 care homes by Quarter 2.

o Roll out of falls app FRAT tool to support homes by Quarter 3
o CHIP plan review
o Roll out Red Bag scheme
o Community paramedic support
o All care homes are advised to actively engage with support and guidance on infection prevention and 

control, and preparation for the flu season. 
o All care homes are advised to ensure all staff and care home residents are offered, encouraged, and 

supported to have a flu vaccination as soon as vaccinations for this season are available.
o Enhanced GP service to 50% of homes providing weekly ward rounds further roll out during 18/19 to 

remaining homes
IUCAS support for winter: o Directly bookable appointments into primary care 

o Effective signposting to alternate community provision 
o Expansion of APAS/ 111 CAS pathway to in-hours to divert more patients away from A&E (previously 

only live during OOH period)
o 111 online go live in June 2018 with soft launch. Will be used in winter comms plans to direct patients, 

particularly for cold and flu advice.
o Direct booking live in GP OOH from June 2018. Directly bookable appointments be rolled out to in-

hours urgent GP appointments
Flu Immunisation: o Wirral Seasonal Flu Group to continue monthly meetings through the 2018-19 flu season July 2018

o Vaccination programmes for staff initiated Sept 2018, monitoring uptake as programs commence. 
o Flu vaccination promotion materials sent to community services. Oct 2018
o Active support to Care Homes, advice, flu resources and vaccinations.
o WCT will repeat the successful flu campaign for Trust staff
o WCT will continue to work with commissioners to develop a model for antiviral provision in care homes 

Proactive Infection Control approach and 
support.

o WCT will continue to provide specialist advice, support and training for Care Homes, this includes 
outbreak management working closely with GPs

o The WCFT IPC service follows PHE national guidance
o This is aimed at reducing avoidable admission and improving care home bed occupancy

Transformation plans: o New ED/assessment area pathway to increase zero LOS and support corridor management and 

P
age 38

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

9

NWAS handovers.
o New SPA model in place to reduce NEL admissions.
o Revised home first and domiciliary model in place increasing scale of offer.
o Improved T2A LOS and remodelling of use of beds at Clatterbridge Cancer Centre/Arrowe Park 

Hospital
o Fully implement streaming model
o Fully implement SAFER 
o Planned care strategy, neighbourhoods priority frailty. Effective management of patients to reduce 

NEL and readmissions
o Focus on reduction of stranded patients
o Workforce strategy plan

3.2 System Response for Urgent Care

Wirral is determined to improve performance building upon the positives in 17/18 and addressing the identified areas for improvement.

We have taken account of the learning from 17/18, reviewed BCF impacts, transformation work to date and duly considered recent national guidance. 

We have considered the recently circulated NHSE guidance, Wirral’s response is summarised below: 

NHSE Priority Areas Deliverables
I. Realistic capacity planning

Assumptions include: 
 4.8 days average acute medical LOS (recognising 0.3 a day 

increase over winter)
 4.2 weeks average LOS in T2A (building in 10% tolerance of 

delays)
 Max 92% occupancy for acutes (allowing 5% flu/infection 

control issues). System delivered 90% / 95% and occupancy 
was 90-94%. Therefore assumed average of 92%. 

 System will deliver minimum 90% against 4 hour standard
 95% by end March 2019
 92% occupancy 
 Included in SDIP

See System Plan Priority Areas: 
 7 – Discharge Transformation & Sustainability Programme

P
age 39

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

10

 8 – SAFER/Stranded/LOS/Capacity
II. Reducing LOS, stranded and super-stranded (see above also)

Assumptions include: 
 91 bed days released from baseline of 338

 Minimum 27% reduction in stranded / super-stranded patients
 Included in SDIP

See System Plan Priority Area: 
 7 – Discharge Transformation & Sustainability Programme

III. Zero tolerance of minor breaches / streaming
 Streaming assurance exercise being completed
 Awaiting further national guidance on good practise to be 

adopted. 

 Minimum 25-30 patients per day to be streamed to Primary Care
 Included in SDIP

See System Plan Priority Areas: 
 3 – Admission Avoidance Schemes
 5 – Streaming Implementation

IV. Managing Monday surge
 Awaiting national tool to improve capacity planning.  Increase 7 day discharges

 Implement findings from 7 day review (see attached appendix 10)
 Reduce pressure in flow on Mondays, following weekend.

See System Plan Priority Areas: 
 15- 7-Day Response

V. Eliminating corridor care  Roving ‘discharge’ teams led by a consultant on the weekend to 
review all potential discharges on the general acute wards which 
don’t benefit from job planned weekend reviews from specialty 
teams. 

 Potential discharges  are identified the evening before and the 
discharge consultant will pick the list up from Bed Bureau on the 
Saturday and Sunday morning. 

 Discharge teams perform “mini-board rounds” with the senior sister 
on ward to identify further potential discharges. 

P
age 40

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

11

Will be included in System Plan Priority Areas: 
 1 – Ambulance & 111
 6 – ED & Assessment Areas.

VI. Timely ambulance handovers  Handover 15 minutes/Turnaround 30 mins 
 Included in SDIP
 Increase see and convey rates
 WUTH, NWAS and CCG are working to ensure compliance to all 

guidance detailed in NHS I improving handover checklist.
 WUTH are working through action plan. Key actions include 

recruitment to ED nursing vacancies and consistent staffing of 
ambulance handover nurse role.

 Included in SDIP
 Increase see and convey rates

See System Plan Priority Areas: 
 1 – Ambulance & 111

VII. Continued focus on unplanned care transformation
 UTC consultation scheduled from 11th July. 

 DTOC target of 2.67% included

 Primary care & IUCAS development programme underway

 Options developed. Capital bid submitted. Clinical service model 
being developed

 DTOC to remain under 2.67%. Focus on stranded patients.

 Additional same day appointments 
 Continuation of AVS dedicated resource pilot, also including APAS 

CAS pathway. GP Federation delivering in-hours elements and 
working in collaboration with GP OOH to provide seamless 24 hour 
urgent primary care offer. 

See System Plan Priority Areas: 

P
age 41

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

12

 11- Capacity & Demand Model & Escalation
VIII. Operational arrangements

 Operational management cover arrangements
 Refine OPEL / proactive approach

 Proactive triggers / tolerances agreed as a system
 System plan to respond to tolerances / triggers
 Maintain system performance within tolerances agreed

See System Plan Priority Areas: 
 11- Capacity & Demand Model & Escalation

3.3 Plan Overview: 

Wirral Winter and Unplanned Care System Sustainability Plan Summary 2018-19

Priority        
Area

Project /                     
Programme

Description Senior 
Responsible 
Owner (SRO)

Timescales SDIP Targets

Admission Avoidance     

1

Ambulance & 111 Turnaround Times, IU-CCAS 
Development (AVS, 111 
online, 111 direct booking, 
APAS, GOOH), conveyance 
rates NWAS adoption of 
ARP

Debbie Mallett 
(NWAS)/Anthony 
Middleton (WTH)

Sep-18 Handover target 15 mins               Turnaround Target 
30 mins

2

SPA Redesign IT & Estates, Workforce, 
Target Operating Model, 
Information & Key 
Performance Indicators.

Val McGee (WCT) Sep-18 Admissions avoided, numbers diverted through SPA

3 Admission 
Avoidance 

OPAT, Enhanced GP 
service, Rapid Response, 

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 

Sep-18 Zero tolerances of minor breaches. 100% of patients to 
be seen, treated and discharged within 4 hours.

P
age 42

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

13

Schemes Homefirst, T2A Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

4
Teletriage Phase 4 Implementation, 

Embedding, Development
Val McGee (WCT) Oct-18 Min 80% of care Homes live and using Teletriage Q1 

100% live and using Teletriage Q2                                      
Reduce calls to 111 by 10% Q2,  4 calls per home

Effective Assessment & 
Flow  

 
  

5

Streaming 
Implementation

Operations, Clinical 
Governance, Data & 
Information

Anthony Middleton 
(WTH)/ Val McGee 
(WCT)/ Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Jul-18 25 30% per day (20 -25 people) streamed out of A&E 
to primary care or WiC

6

ED & 
Assessment Area 
Redesign

ACU, AMU and OPAU Anthony Middleton 
(WTH) 

Apr-19 Arrowe Park Site (ED & WiC) 90% patients to be seen, 
admitted or discharged within 4 hours by end of Q2.  
95% by the end of Q4.    30% of non-elective medical 
patients are discharged the same day.
65% of all non-elective medical patients should have a 
length of stay less than 72hrs (including the 30% 
above)

7

SAFER 
Implementation, 
Stranded, LOS & 
Capacity

SAFER, Stranded & Super 
Stranded, SAFER in T2A, 
LOS and Capacity

Anthony Middleton 
(WTH) 

Q2-4 Senior Review: Agree implementation plan for SAFER 
over 7 days.  90% patients reviewed by midday. All 
patients: 90% have an EDD date within 48 hrs. Flow: 
80% patients arriving on inpatient wards by mid-day. 
Early Discharge: 23% Q1, 28% Q2, 33% Q3 33% of 
patients will be discharged from base inpatient wards 
before midday by Q4. Review: See Stranded below.
Stranded/Super Stranded: Baseline & trajectory by 
Q1.  From agreed baseline: Reduce 30 MO stranded 

P
age 43

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

14

patients by end of Q2 and maintain equivalent to 5%
Reduce by 50 MO stranded patients by end of Q4 and 
maintain equivalent to 8%.  LOS: Reduce Average 
Acute LOS to 4.6 days. Reduce Acute Medical LOS to 
5.5 days SAFER in T2A: Implementation of SAFER in 
T2A. Capacity: 92% in Acute

Discharge and Transfers of Care    

8

Discharge 
Transformation & 
Sustainability 
Programme

ToC form, IDT, T2A bed 
Base, Homefirst, CHC, 
Mental Health Pathway, TA 
in Care Homes/Dom Care, 
Patient Information, 
Integrated Therapy, Culture 
& Communication, Further 
Provision Opportunities.

Shaun Brown 
(WTH)/Natalie Park 
(WCT)

Ongoing Transfer of Care Form: 95% of TOCs are not returned 
due to quality LOS IDT: 15% of patients assessed in 
acute, 85% of patients assessed in a Transfer to 
assess placements
T2A: LOS as per spec: 50% LOS 3 weeks max, 25% 
72hrs, 25% 6 weeks max. LOS down to average 4.2 
weeks.  Homefirst: Support the System to From 
agreed baseline: Reduce 30 MO stranded patients by 
end of Q2 and maintain equivalent to 5%.Reduce by 50 
MO stranded patients by end of Q4 and maintain 
equivalent to 8%.  CHC: 85% of patients assessed for 
eligibility outside the acute setting TA Care Homes: 
100% of Care Homes using TA for Care Homes by the 
end of Q2. Patient Information: 100% of policy 
adhered to 100% patients receive leaflet on admission

9

Redesign & 
Scale Up of 
Community 
Services

Homefirst, Rapid Community 
Team, Reablement

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

  

Whole System     

10 Development of 
Workforce  

Anthony Middleton 
(WTH)/ Val McGee 

  

P
age 44

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

15

Strategy (WCT)/ Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

11

Capacity & 
Demand 
modelling & 
escalation 
management  

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Q1-Q4 DToC: Maintain at 2.67% or below

12 High Impact 
Change Model 8 Areas

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

  

13

Care Market 
Strategy 
(Domiciliary 
Care, 
Reablement)  

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

  

14
Therapy 
Redesign

 

Allister Leinster 
(WTH)/Natalie Park 
(WFCT)

  

15 7-Day Response Transport, Age UK 
Transport, Staffing, 

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

  

16
Flu Planning & 
Infection Control

 

Elspeth Anwar 
(WBC)/Natalie Park 
(WCT)

  

17 CHC  Iain Stewart (CCG)   

18

7 Day Exec 
Cover

 

Janelle Homes 
(WTH), Anthony 
Middleton 
(WTH)/Val McGee 
(WCT)/ Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

  

P
age 45

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

16

19

Mental Health 
Services

 

Jo Watts 
(CCG)/Sarah Quinn 
(CWP)/Suzanne 
Edwards ()

  

20

Contingency Plan 
B - OPEL 4/Non 
delivery of Plan

 Janelle Homes 
(WTH), Anthony 
Middleton 
(WTH)/Val McGee 
(WCT)/ Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

  

21 Primary Care  Martyn Kent (CCG)   

Our system urgent care performance report is attached in appendix 9. 

Our Wirral Winter and Unplanned Care System Sustainability Plan 2018-19 is attached in appendix 12.

P
age 46

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

17

3.4 Wirral System Urgent Care Report (high level for A&E Delivery Board)

Jun-18 Meeting  Date: 19-Jun-18

Target Current month 
performance: April 18

Previous months 
performance: March 18

SDIP / Definition Source Tractor

76.87% 71.86% WUTH3 SUS WUTH 3

83.49% 80.27%
89.86% 87.74%

<=00:15:00 00:20:38 00:28:00

 >=85% By Q3/4 79.10% 69.00% WCT6
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

WCT6

3.5%
2.9%     (April – All 

Providers)
SUS

>25-30% per day
(20-25 pts) 6.5% (May)

WUTH1
WCT7

Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

WUTH 1

>=30% same day discharge 30.48% 28.99% WUTH 6

65% LOS < 72hrs 99.76% 99.54% WUTH 6

33% discharges by midday 17.80% 13.70% WUTH4
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

7. SAFER

Reduction
30 pts Q2
50 pts Q4

based on ave 80 pts

84 81 WUTH5

<5.5 days Q3 5.01 4.47

<4.8 days 4.3 4.2

<=2.67% 2.30% 0.50%
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

DTOC

<=4.2 Q3 5.8 6.6 WCT8
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

11. LOS T2A - 
Trajectory

WCT8

25 By Q3 (Suggested 
Target) 49 56

Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

13.  DOM Care 
Wait - 

Trajectory

>=90% 32.70% 53.30%
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

14. 
%Packed_Pick - 

Trajectory

85% 83.2% 86.5%
Urgent Care 
Performance 
Dashboard

15. Re-
ablement - 
Trajectory

19% (16 pts) 17.5% (14 pts) WCT8

Last Updated 28 June 2018

(Wirral wide DSIT )

Wirral System Urgent Care Reporting - (A&E Delivery Board)
Reporting Period:

4 hour standard                    
(ED) (90% end Q2)

(95% end Q4)
(APH Site)

WUTH 7
         Ambulance turnaround <=00:30:00 00:40:35 00:48:48

Executive narrative:

Executive narrative:

Ambulance handover
WUTH7 NWAS

Executive narrative: The SDIP for ambulance handover requires it takes no longer than 15 min. BI will need to develop a report to provide this information. 

Numbers diverted through SPA 
(Admission Avoidance) - A20

NEL admissions (G&A)

Executive narrative:

Streaming numbers 
       (% Streamed)

Local 
Contracting 
tables

WUTH 6

Acute LOS (All Combined)

Assessment area WUTH2
Local 
Contracting 
tables

Executive narrative:

SAFER (C5)

Executive narrative:

SAFER in Community

Stranded patients

Executive narrative:

Acute Medical LOS (Non Elective)

WUTH6

Executive narrative:

DTOC (Proportion of Beds Occupied 
by DTOC)

Executive narrative:

Average LOS T2A

Executive narrative:

Executive narrative: 

Re-admissions (T2A)

Executive narrative:   Avg. length of stay for hospital re-admissions = 3.0 weeks
2% of people discharged from hospital to T2A are re-admitted within 72 hours
4% within 7 days
9% within 14 days

Executive narrative: T2A are carrying out SAFER reviews weekly, Stranded reviews monthly and MADE events prior to bank holidays to improve LOS 

Dom Care Waiting list (C19)

Executive narrative: The previous quarter average was 94% so there has been a marked improvement over the past couple of months.

% package picked up same day (C20)

Executive narrative:

Re-ablement (C14)
% of people still at home post reablement 
intervention

Page 47

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

18

4. Governance Approach in 18/19

 We have agreed a joint approach to governance, having recently revised our governance arrangements, TOR and agreed principals for unplanned 
care (see attached appendices 6, 7 and 8 for A&E Delivery Board, Exec and Operational Groups)
The intention to improve system grip and accountability, making better use of meeting time for systems leads.

 We will be investing time with leadership centre to further develop our system culture and behaviours.
 Building upon the work completed in 17/18 on system reporting, we have refined our approach (see appendix 9 system performance report)
 Commissioners have agreed Service Development Improvement Plans (SDIPs) with providers to ensure read across with unplanned system 

priorities. Key timescales, KPI’s are detailed. (See appendix 4 & 5). This approach will improve assurance and accountability to deliver within required 
timescales. Transformational change programmes will drive incremental improvement in performance, improving patient quality and outcomes. 

 Urgent Care Executive Group will oversee escalation of risk and exception reporting from the Urgent Care Operational Group. Wirral A&E Delivery 
Board will receive monthly summary of escalated issues and summary status.  

5. Proactive Approach to Escalation of Risk:

We have agreed a joint approach to escalation of risks by way of an early warning system with agreed triggers.

This approach supports the OPEL arrangements and is intended to provide early warning of potential pressure in order to facilitate a pre-agreed system 
response.

P
age 48

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

19

Pathway Target Tolerance to Trigger

NWAS See & Convey 68% 68.5%

Volumes Daily Average 265 +20% (318)
Front Door & Streaming

Streaming Rate 25% Minors 23%

Four Hour Standard 95% TBC

Beds 92% Bed Capacity 95%

LoS 5.2 +5% (5.5 days)
Hospital Capacity & Flow

Stranded 976 TBC

Capacity 80% 90%
T2A Capacity & Flow

LoS 4.2 +10% (4.6 weeks)

Dom Care Waiting List 25 +20% (30)

P
age 49

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

20

We will be finalising these details during Q2 and updating our system responses to escalated risks. This will be in line with national and local operational 
arrangements, and include robust operational management arrangements. 

6. Key Risks: Identified

Risk Mitigations

 Workforce Capacity  7 day review completed (see appendix 10)
 Implementation recommendations
 Workforce strategy plans underway
 Discussions underway between acute and primary care to explore 

support into ACU at times of pressure.

 Culture and Behaviours  Investment with leadership centre developing system approach.
 Revised governance and agreed principals.
 Fortnightly urgent care executive group meetings

 Insufficient Clinical implementation capacity and therefore delays in 
implementation.

 Robust oversight of plans
 Read across with SDIP’s, contractual oversight 
 Additional Transformation capacity funded though BCF
 Revised governance and escalation of risks/delays to 
      Exec and A&E Delivery Board

P
age 50

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

21

 Gaps in data sets across the system  Additional BI support agreed. Priority to review data sets. 
 System BI support and reporting

 Insufficient project management support
 PM agreed shared across system.
 Commissioners providing overarching PM of whole programme.

 Financial deficit and ability to meet cost of demand
 Healthy Wirral Exec to oversee performance and financial shortfalls
 Healthy Wirral Exec exploring opportunity for collaboration and 

financial sustainability

7.  Appendices

Appendix 1 Winter Review and Learning

winter analysis.docx

Appendix 2 Capacity and Demand Modelling Assumptions

Winter 
Planning_Wirral_Modelling Presentation 27.6.18.pptx

P
age 51

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

22

Appendix 3 BCF Priorities for 18/19

Appendix 3..docx

Appendix 3.docx

Appendix 4 SDIP – WUTH

SDIP 4 4 18 Final 
version .docx

Appendix 5 SDIP – WCT

CT SDIP 2018 19 
V5.docx

Appendix 6 TOR – A&E Delivery Board

DRAFT WIRRAL AE 
DELIVERY BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE v0.1.docx

Appendix 7 TOR – Urgent Care Executive Group

DRAFT URGENT 
CARE EXECUTIVE GROUP (UCEG) TERMS OF REFERENCE v0.1.docx

Appendix 8 TOR – Urgent Care Operational Group 

DRAFT URGENT 
CARE OPERATIONAL GROUP (UCOG) TERMS OF REFERENCE v0.1.docx

P
age 52

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


                                                                                           

23

Appendix 9 Wirral System Urgent Care Reporting pack inc trajectories

Appendix 9.docx

Appendix 10 7 Day Review

Self-Assessment 
High Capity DemandFeb 18 HH.pptx

Appendix 11 Break down of BCF winter funding

Appendix 11 break 
down of BCF winter funding.docx

Appendix 12 Wirral winter and unplanned care system sustainability plan

Appendix 12 - Winter 
Plan 28.06.18(1).docx

P
age 53

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiL4bPXwO_VAhUMmrQKHUwPAQQQjRwIBw&url=https://detlcft.wordpress.com/2013/07/23/ryhurst-preferred-bidder-for-strategic-estates-partnership-with-nhs-trust-cwp/&psig=AFQjCNFNFnDJqNGyX8XrQn9FEcUfz6Rohw&ust=1503651552647315
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwir_KPzwO_VAhXOIlAKHcWjCgUQjRwIBw&url=http://www.waitingmagazine.co.uk/wirral-public-get-hands-on-for-mental-health-awareness-week/&psig=AFQjCNE-wND5IuCrowjui3eXcYETwYJiEA&ust=1503651611202600
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjV3KDLwe_VAhXEYlAKHRrZCxQQjRwIBw&url=https://ukhealthshow.com/contributors/wirral-university-teaching-hospital-nhs-foundation-trust/&psig=AFQjCNGa8-gzArp7c0hlg_yKpqN9dqBRhQ&ust=1503651793987533


T
his page is intentionally left blank



April 1,807 7,987 77.38 93 7,104 98.69 1,900 15,091 87.41

May 2,121 8,270 74.35 126 7,208 98.25 2,247 15,478 85.48

June 1,919 8,023 76.08 115 6,723 98.29 2,034 14,746 86.21

QUARTER 1 5,847 24,280 75.92 334 21,035 98.41 6,181 45,315 86.36

July 2,479 8,387 70.44 115 7,498 98.47 2,594 15,885 83.67

August 2,077 7,659 72.88 41 6,743 99.39 2,118 14,402 85.29

September 1,269 7,656 83.42 20 5,815 99.66 1,289 13,471 90.43

QUARTER 2 5,825 23,702 75.42 176 20,056 99.12 6,001 43,758 86.29

October 1,304 8,087 83.88 20 5,968 99.66 1,324 14,055 90.58

November 1,490 7,906 81.15 10 5,720 99.83 1,500 13,626 88.99

December 2,363 8,024 70.55 26 6,181 99.58 2,389 14,205 83.18

QUARTER 3 5,157 24,017 78.53 56 17,869 99.69 5,213 41,886 87.55

01-Jan-18 108 296 63.51 0 271 100.00 108 567 80.95

02-Jan-18 96 266 63.91 0 347 100.00 96 613 84.34

03-Jan-18 81 270 70.00 12 343 96.50 93 613 84.83

04-Jan-18 111 229 51.53 0 347 100.00 111 576 80.73

05-Jan-18 60 251 76.10 0 340 100.00 60 591 89.85

06-Jan-18 59 228 74.12 0 319 100.00 59 547 89.21

07-Jan-18 70 263 73.38 2 310 99.35 72 573 87.43

Week 41 585 1803 67.55 14 2277 99.39 599 4080 85.32

08-Jan-18 67 240 72.08 0 327 100.00 67 567 88.18

09-Jan-18 77 203 62.07 0 280 100.00 77 483 84.06

10-Jan-18 80 251 68.13 0 282 100.00 80 533 84.99

11-Jan-18 67 234 71.37 0 245 100.00 67 479 86.01

12-Jan-18 83 232 64.22 0 283 100.00 83 515 83.88

13-Jan-18 47 223 78.92 0 253 100.00 47 476 90.13

14-Jan-18 23 251 90.84 11 247 95.55 34 498 93.17

Week 42 444 1634 72.83 11 1917 99.43 455 3551 87.19

15-Jan-18 43 245 82.45 0 301 100.00 43 546 92.12

16-Jan-18 51 226 77.43 0 276 100.00 51 502 89.84

17-Jan-18 61 241 74.69 3 247 98.79 64 488 86.89

18-Jan-18 71 254 72.05 0 248 100.00 71 502 85.86

19-Jan-18 98 242 59.50 0 284 100.00 98 526 81.37

20-Jan-18 72 234 69.23 0 263 100.00 72 497 85.51

21-Jan-18 91 258 64.73 0 232 100.00 91 490 81.43

Week 43 487 1700 71.35 3 1851 99.84 490 3551 86.20

22-Jan-18 108 278 61.15 1 348 99.71 109 626 82.59

23-Jan-18 69 264 73.86 0 294 100.00 69 558 87.63

24-Jan-18 63 245 74.29 0 315 100.00 63 560 88.75

25-Jan-18 66 244 72.95 0 349 100.00 66 593 88.87

26-Jan-18 49 243 79.84 0 305 100.00 49 548 91.06

27-Jan-18 78 273 71.43 0 325 100.00 78 598 86.96

28-Jan-18 74 267 72.28 0 302 100.00 74 569 86.99

Week 44 507 1814 72.05 1 2238 99.96 508 4052 87.46

29-Jan-18 70 264 73.48 0 334 100.00 70 598 88.29

30-Jan-18 71 245 71.02 0 309 100.00 71 554 87.18

31-Jan-18 88 259 66.02 0 272 100.00 88 531 83.43

01-Feb-18 79 236 66.53 0 272 100.00 79 508 84.45

02-Feb-18 50 252 80.16 0 268 100.00 50 520 90.38

03-Feb-18 51 241 78.84 0 244 100.00 51 485 89.48

04-Feb-18 17 266 93.61 1 274 99.64 18 540 96.67

Week 45 426 1763 75.84 1 1973 99.95 427 3736 88.57

05-Feb-18 45 291 84.54 0 352 100.00 45 643 93.00

06-Feb-18 86 236 63.56 0 293 100.00 86 529 83.74

07-Feb-18 44 220 80.00 0 264 100.00 44 484 90.91

08-Feb-18 54 241 77.59 0 300 100.00 54 541 90.02

09-Feb-18 63 225 72.00 0 293 100.00 63 518 87.84

10-Feb-18 97 260 62.69 7 295 97.63 104 555 81.26

11-Feb-18 118 266 55.64 6 282 97.87 124 548 77.37

Week 46 507 1739 70.85 13 2079 99.37 520 3818 86.38

12-Feb-18 82 300 72.67 2 345 99.42 84 645 86.98

13-Feb-18 75 277 72.92 0 288 100.00 75 565 86.73

14-Feb-18 63 246 74.39 0 268 100.00 63 514 87.74

15-Feb-18 61 262 76.72 6 304 98.03 67 566 88.16

16-Feb-18 69 257 73.15 1 306 99.67 70 563 87.57

17-Feb-18 83 228 63.60 0 291 100.00 83 519 84.01

18-Feb-18 82 278 70.50 0 318 100.00 82 596 86.24

Week 47 515 1848 72.13 9 2120 99.58 524 3968 86.79

19-Feb-18 103 265 61.13 1 349 99.71 104 614 83.06

20-Feb-18 96 268 64.18 1 284 99.65 97 552 82.43

21-Feb-18 108 259 58.30 0 298 100.00 108 557 80.61

22-Feb-18 80 224 64.29 0 297 100.00 80 521 84.64

23-Feb-18 57 228 75.00 0 276 100.00 57 504 88.69

24-Feb-18 88 247 64.37 0 305 100.00 88 552 84.06

25-Feb-18 70 263 73.38 0 285 100.00 70 548 87.23

Week 48 602 1754 65.68 2 2094 99.90 604 3848 84.30

26-Feb-18 80 278 71.22 0 331 100.00 80 609 86.86

Week 49 80 278 71.22 0 331 100.00 80 609 86.86

January 2,252 7,719 70.83 29 9,198 99.68 2,281 16,917 86.52

February 2,327 8,377 72.22 26 9,655 99.73 2,353 18,032

QUARTER 4 4,579 16,096 71.55 55 18,853 99.71 4,634 34,949 86.74

Cumulative YTD

(1st April 2017 to date)
21,408 88,095 75.70 621 77,813 99.20 22,029 165,908 86.72

Wirral CCG

A&E & WIC Performance Report 2017/18

% < 4 hrs

Week

 WUTH A&E Activity
WUTH A&E & all WIC Combined 

Activity

> 4 hours
Total 

attendances
% < 4 hrsTotal> 4 hours

 Walk-in Centre Activity

> 4 hours
Total 

attendances
% < 4 hrs

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
18 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE Wirral BCF Update

REPORT OF Jacqui Evans

REPORT SUMMARY

The following report provides the Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on 

progress and developments with regard to BCF. 

1. Background: 

1.1 Feedback from the regional team regarding the Wirral plan is extracted below:

“BCF 2017/19 plan stood out to assurers for its integrated governance and
approach, demonstrating that all programmes and plans influencing urgent / out of 
hospital care aligned and that BCF was not a stand-alone initiative. Performance 
monitoring of the BCF is fully embedded in the Winter and System Sustainability 
Plan. The area have several new schemes and approaches including a whole 
system capacity demand model which has recently been featured at a regional 
event and will be rolled out with some North HWBs via regional support funds. They 
have recently redesigned 3 pathways under transfer to assess principles which they 
feel is impacting positively. Further details and case studies being captured.”

1.2 The 2 year BCF plan is attached in appendix 1 outlining the 17/19 priorities and 

funding allocation changes for 18/19. 

2. 18/19 BCF planning refinements.
 

For 18/19, national requirements are expected as follows: 

 Continued focus of non-elective admission avoidance (NEL) target- 3.5% for 

Wirral in 18/19

 Revised targeting for Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC)- 2.67% anticipated 

for Wirral in 18/19

Page 57

Agenda Item 4c



2

 Continued focus of reablement- 85% of people still at home 91 days later, 

post reablement 

 Admissions to nursing / residential care homes re 100,000 population 5% 

reduction target for Wirral   

3. Performance in 17/18 and challenges to inform 18/19 plans 

(See attached appendix 2 for 17/18 performance overview. Appendix 3 for month 2 

18/19): 

 3.1 Admission avoidance: 
Not delivered at the scale necessary. Focus was on discharge, and whilst BCF 

schemes delivered within its own parameters, this was insufficient as a whole 

system. 

3.1.1 Action 18/19: 

 Remodelling of admission avoidance target and associated schemes 

to ensure delivery

 Implement and redesign single point of access (SPA)

 Implement integrated urgent clinical assessment service (IUCAS)

 Implementation of enhanced primary care (same day access to GP 

appointment 7 days a week, 8am-8pm)

 Implementation of primary care streaming from the front door of ED

 BCF investments in acute visiting services (AVS)- GP home visiting 

scheme

 BCF investment in IV antibiotics at home service 

3.2 DToC- 3.5% maximum target. 
3.2.1 Wirral significantly improved DToC performance over the year (see attached 

appendix 4). Average annual performance was 3.2% over achieving the 3.5% 

mandated target. 

3.2.2 Wirral was one of only 3 systems in North West to maintain this performance over 

winter. Significant discharge pathway redesign along with developments within the 

integrated discharge team, supported by investments in T2A ensured this 

achievement. 

Page 58



3

3.2.3 Action 18/19: Focus is to maintain the 2.67% DToC performance and move to 

medically optimised discharge, focussing on stranded patients (those in hospital 7 

days plus). (See appendix 4).

3.3 Reablement: 
85% of these discharged to reablement / still at home 91 days post discharge. 

Wirral achieved 83.2%. This was year 1 of the Transfer to Assess model. It is 

recognised for 18/19, performance could be further improved. Especially in 

improving length of stay (LOS) in T2A beds. 

3.3.1 Focus of 18/19 is to maintain and improve performance, building upon year 1 

T2A approach and scale up the home first service. 

3.4 Admissions to residential / nursing sector: 
10% reduction target, in 17/18 with achievement of 23.3% performance. Delivery of 

performance has been supported by the investment and strong T2A, reablement 

and domiciliary offer. 

3.4.1 Focus for 18/19 is to achieve further 5% reduction.  

4. Financial Summary: 

4.1 The total funds contributed to the BCF pool in 17/18 amounted to £52.2 million.

The underspend projection of £850,604 was shared on a 50/50 basis as per the 

risk share agreement within the S75 document. 

4.2 For 18/19 the BCF pooled fund is £53.7 million.

Review of schemes in 17/18 resulted in the decommission of the Green Car 

scheme with investment in: 

 Acute visiting service (primary care)

 Expansion of IV antibiotics at home service

 Residential / nursing T2A fee increases

 Maintenance of fee increases and protection of 

domiciliary care and reablement

 Maintenance of Mental Health services 

 Community winter capacity 

Page 59



4

Revised scheme funding in 18/19 is attached in appendix 5. Winter funding 

breakdown is attached in appendix 5A.

5. Graduation of BCF

5.1 NHSE recently confirmed the following: 

 Additional year of BCF in 19/20 
 Significant changes expected 20/21, as integration becomes fully embedded
 Expect strong links to NHS funding and requirements

5.2 For 18/19, operating guidance is due imminently. Focus will be on the following: 
 

 No mandatory BCF refresh (2 year plan) 
 Reduced length of stay (LOS). Targets must be incorporated
 Delayed transfers of care (DToC)- draft trajectories shared from September. 

(2.67% for Wirral)
 Non-elective admissions (NEL) remained- 3.5% for Wirral
 Stranded / super stranded patient targets (those patients with a greater than 7 and 

21 days stay
 High impact change model focus (see attached appendix 6 for Wirral’s current 

assessed position) 

5.3 Wirral has a single system plan, with BCF an integral element. This has been viewed 

as best practise.         

5.4 Wirral has also developed Capacity and Demand Model (CDM) with VENN 
consultants, which has been acknowledged by NHSE as best practise. This has been 
rolled out regionally. 

5.5 The CDM has been used to inform commissioning requirements and winter capacity 
for 18/19 across the system. (See appendix 7 capacity and demand model).

6. 18/19 developments and priorities: 
 
Appendix 8 provides summary of the unplanned care system sustainability plan. This is 
a comprehensive plan, incorporating mandated requirements and BCF. The plan may 
need some refinement, dependent upon final guidance awaited. 

7. Next steps:

7.1 Revise plans in accordance with awaited guidance

Page 60



5

7.2 Monitor performance and deliver against action plan

7.3 Continue to report quarterly against progress to NHSE 

RECOMMENDATION/S

Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to: 

 Note the progress and next steps

 Include further update on progress at future Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 61



6

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
N/A

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

N/A

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
N/A

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
N/A

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

REPORT AUTHOR: Jacqui Evans
Assistant Director for Unplanned Care and Community Care 
Market
telephone:  0151 666 3938
email:   jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk

Page 62

mailto:jacquievans@wirral.gov.uk


7

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 17/19 priorities

Appendix 1 - Month 
2 with spend to date.xlsx

Appendix 2 Performance overview 17/18

BCF Performance 
Dashboard - 2017-18 - FINAL YEAR.xls

Appendix 3 Month 2 18/19 performance summary

Copy of BCF 
Dash-May 18.xlsx

Appendix 4 DTOC targets

H&WBB July 2018 
app 4.docx

Appendix 5 18/19 revised scheme funding

BCF priorities for 
funding 18-19.docx

Appendix 5A Proposed winter funding allocation

breakdown of winter 
funding 18 -19.docx

Appendix 6 High impact change model

High impact change 
model appendix 6.xlsx

Appendix 7 Capacity and demand model

Winter 
Planning_Wirral_Modelling Presentation 27.6.18.pptx

Appendix 8 Unplanned system plan

Appendix 12 - Winter 
Plan 28.06.18(1).docx

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Board

14.3.18
15.11.17
19.07.17
15.03.17
11.11.15
08.07.15

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Better Care Fund Schemes 2018-19

  Better Care Fund Scheme Title Provider Allocation

£,000
Wirral Independence Service Medequip 4,205
Care Homes Scheme - Nurse CCG Staff 40
Tele-triage recurrent costs WCT 208
Adapted Flats Indep Sector 36
Trusted Assessor - Dom Care TBC 110
Trusted Assessor - Care Homes WCT 71
BCF Scheme Lead/ROI Evaluation LA Staff 35
Home First Capacity - dom care, reablement, mobile nights Indep Sector 79
Administration TBC 12
Home First - MDT (Enhanced Rapid Response Service) WCT 400
Home First - Clinical Support/Discharge capacity WCT 541
Mobilisation Officer for T2A Model WUTH 29
Acute Visiting Service (AVS) GPs 710
10 x T2A Residential Beds - core funding Indep Sector 274
86 x T2A Nursing Beds - core funding Indep Sector 3,471
Growth in T2A Beds Indep Sector 220
T2A - 10 beds - Cover for Pressure periods Indep Sector 224
Additional MDT support, including clinical cover for extra beds (10) WCT 106
Primary Care & Therapies for T2A Beds GP    967
Community Offer (ASC) WCT 3,972
Community Offer (CCG) Various 854
Reablement - Commissioned Care Indep Sector 1,231
Dom Care Indep Sector 412
Enhanced Dom Care (Dom Care Plus) Indep Sector 143
Joint Posts - Mental Health CWP 474
Homeless Service 3rd Sector 93
Existing Schemes Various 1,270
ICCT - WCT WCT 426
Comms - Home First Other 12
Total Integrated Services N/A 20,625

Early Intervention & Prevention 3rd Sector 1,199
Carers Service Various 819
Mobile Night Service Indep Sector 694
Care & Support Bill Implementation LA Staff 497
Drugs & Alcohol Public Health 7,094
Protection of Social Care Various 14,881
Brokerage Other 27
Total ASC Services N/A 25,211

CCG Third Sector 3rd Sector 485
IV Antibiotics WUTH/WCT 627
Street triage CWP 152
Dementia LES GPs 71
Early onset Dementia CWP 146
Complex Needs Service CWP 250
Crisis Response CWP 151
Dementia Nurse CWP 151
Total CCG Services N/A 2,033

DFG Housing 3,858
Total Other N/A 3,858

Transformation Programme Manager Role Indep Sector 60
Whole System Modelling Senior Performance Analyst WUTH 40
Mental Health detention transport CWP 70
Street Triage - enhanced hours of operation CWP 113
Street Triage for NWAS NWAS 175
Ward Discharge Coordinators WUTH 155
Integrated Assessments Training & Implementation Other 8
Primary Care Bid - Clinical Streaming at Front Door TBC 300

N/A 921
Community Winter Escalation Capacity TBC 280
Complex/Specialist Commissioning Support TBC 200
Known Development Pressures TBC 128
Allocation of increase in CCG minimum allocation TBC 482

1,090
Total BCF 53,738

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Description Data 

Source

Reporting  

Period (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2017-18)

RAG

1 ICCT CT Mar-18 779 675

2 Community Rapid Response Team CT Mar-18 437 816

3 Street Triage CWP Mar-18 96 203

4 IV Antibiotics WUTH Mar-18 294 509

Provider Reporting  

Period (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2017-18)

RAG

LA1 WUTH average daily blocked beds (%) WUTH Mar-18 3.5% 1.5%

LA2
% of care packages able to commence within 24 

hours of initial contact 
Wirral CT Mar-18 90% 47.9%

LA3
Admissions to residential & nursing Care homes per 

100,000 population (65+)
Wirral CT Mar-18 691 530

LA4 Average Length of Stay in weeks (Intermediate Care) Wirral CT Mar-18 3.5 5.2

LA5 % Occupancy T2A Wirral CT Mar-18 95% 82.0%

LA6
% discharged to re-ablement who remain at home 91 

days later
Wirral CT Mar-18 85% 83.2%

Data 

Source

Reporting  

Period (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2017-18)

RAG

1 Non-Elective Admissions SUS Mar-18 46,274 48,865 2591 (5.6%) -83

Comments

Non Elective Admissions continue to rise against plan for 2017-18

Daily blocked beds now 1.5%

Admissions to residential & nursing Care homes per 100,000 population (65+)23% under target

Average LOS in intermediate care is 5.2 weeks

% occupancy now at 82%

Further Measures

Local Authority

48.6%

YTD Variance v Plan 

-2.1%

-83

-23.3%

-83

-57.1% 0

-13.7% -83

Comments

107 (111.5%) 107 Street Triage activity has increased significantly year on year. 

IV Antibiotic service avoided 73.1% more admissions than in 2016/17215 (73.1%)

YTD Variance v Plan 

0

Better Care Fund Scheme - Admissions Avoidance Monitoring

-104 (-13.4%)

379

-104

Packages of care 46.8% under plan

Comments

215

-46.8%

379 (86.7%)

0 % discharged to re-ablement who remain at home 91 daysis 83.2%

Business Intelligence Team

BETTER CARE FUND SCHEME MONITORING (Wirral CCG) 2017/18

Reporting Date: 09/04/2018

ICCT Activity is 13% lower than plan

Community Rapid Response Team activity reporting has changed from Claughton to Wirral CT.                     

YTD Variance v Plan 

Page 1 of 1 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Description Data 

Source

Reporting  

Period 

(YTD)

Previous Year 

Activity (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2018-19)

YTD Variance v Plan RAG Comments

1 ICCT CT May-18 211 222 42 -180 (-81.1%) R

2
Community Rapid 

Response Team
CT May-18 45 207 166 -41 (-19.8%) R

3 Street Triage CWP May-18 25 26 22 -4 (-15.4%) R

4 IV Antibiotics WUTH May-18 63 66 82 16 (24.2%) G

Description Provider Reporting  

Period 

(YTD)

Previous Year 

Activity (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2018-19)

YTD Variance v Plan RAG Comments

LA1
WUTH average daily 

blocked beds (%)
WUTH May-18 4.6% 3.5% 1.4% -60.0% G

LA2

% of care packages able 

to commence within 24 

hours of initial contact 

Wirral CT May-18 52.0% 90% 43.0% -52.2% R

LA3

Admissions to residential 

& nursing Care homes 

per 100,000 population 

(65+)

Wirral CT May-18
No Data 

available
691

No Data 

available
- -

LA4

Average Length of Stay in 

weeks (Intermediate 

Care)

Wirral CT May-18 4.9 3.5 6.2 77.1% R

LA5 % Occupancy T2A Wirral CT May-18 76.4% 95% 87.0% -8.4% R

LA6
% Occupancy of Carer 

Respite Beds
Wirral CT May-18 27.5% 90%

No Data 

available
- -

LA7

% discharged to re-

ablement who remain at 

home 91 days later

Wirral CT May-18 85.5% 85%
No Data 

available
- -

Description Data 

Source

Reporting  

Period 

(YTD)

Previous Year 

Activity (YTD)

YTD Plan YTD Actual 

(2018-19)

YTD Variance v Plan RAG Comments

1

Rate of Non-Elective 

Admissions per 100,000 

(All Providers)

SUS Apr-18 1,131.2 1,127.5 1202.0 6.6% R

2
Non-Elective Admissions 

(WUTH)
WUTH May-18 7821 - 8453 8.1% R

Better 

Care Fund 

Scheme - 

Business Intelligence Team
BETTER CARE FUND SCHEME MONITORING (Wirral CCG) 2018/19

Reporting Month: May 2018

Further 

Measures

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Summary of BCF proposed revisions for 18/19

1. We are halfway through a 2 year (17/19), BCF plan. The following summarises 
key proposals to review priority spending in year 2. 

(Full breakdown attached in appendix 1)

2. Delay in schemes implemented transferred to 18/19
Delay in schemes implemented transferred to 18/19  
 Care Home Scheme - Nurse -243
 Trusted Assessor - Care Homes -71,000
 Home First Capacity - dom care, reablement, mobile nights -65,620
 Home First - MDT (Enhanced Rapid Response Service) -187,071
 Home First - Clinical Support/Discharge capacity -141,456
 Mobilisation Officer -29,100
 Communication & Engagement Lead Role -15,000
 Mental Health detention transport -22,501
 Street Triage - enhanced hours of operation -78,294
 Street Triage for NWAS -83,001
 Ward Discharge Coordinators -116,250
 Winter Planning  -279,814
 Contingency -250,000
 Integrated Assessments Training & Implementation -8,250
 Efficiency from 17-18 -171,100
  
Total Home First Underspend -1,518,700

3. Additional Investments in 18/19
Additional Investments in 18/19  
 Mobilisation Officer (to support transformational change, 12 months - 5% funding) 29,100
 AVS (12 months - linked to review of Out of Hours / 111 / development of IUCAS 709,920

 Uplift of fees;  

 A)Res T2A beds 13,000
 B)Nursing T2A beds  113,000
 C)T2A beds  41,000
 D)Re-Ablement 69,000
 E)Dom care 212,000
 F)Enhanced Dom care (Volume) 143,000
 Carers service (Increase in respite bed) 164, 600
 Mobile nights (Increase in volume) 157, 794
 Protection of social care demographic growth/supporting soc care market and known 
cost pressures)) 5,200,000

 Winter capacity   279,814
 DFG (growth in allocation) 266, 276

Page 73



Total 7,398,504

4. Key points to note;
 New 12 months investment in AVS
 Streaming funding continues and further invested in(outside BCF)
 All fee uplifts absorbed to support stability of the care market
 Green car de-commissioned
 Investments in technology and support to care homes continued
 Winter increased capacity funding maintained. 
 Contingency maintained.

5. Whilst there has been progress in many areas, including;

 Implementation of phase 1 of streaming
 Enhanced primary care
 AVS pilot
 Redesigned discharge pathways and implementation of T2A
 Achievement and maintenance of DToC
 Roll out of teletriage, supporting care homes
 Trusted assessor

There remain significant challenges to the system. Notably revised approach to:
admission avoidance, implementation of the review of ED and assessment area 
pathways and internal flow to support the delivery of the 4 hour standard.

Key Transformation priorities;

A) Front door;
- Redesign of SPA
- Redesign and implementation of IUCAS
- Full implementation of streaming
- Admission avoidance redesign and focus

B) Internal flow;
- Redesign of ED and assessment areas
- Full implementation of safer and stranded patients. 

C) Discharge
- Move to MO discharge
- Redesign of ‘home first’ and community offer
- Full implementation of safer in T2A beds

Page 74



6. Please note that whilst further community funding has not been amended at this 
point. For 18/19 against key schemes i.e. ‘home first’. There is a clear 
expectation from commissioners that a revised approach which can demonstrate 
resilient delivery at scale, VFM and ROI must be implemented by start of Q2. 

Key focus areas for commissioners and providers are;

- T2A model (cost options appraisal of bed model & offer, connected with 
Clatterbridge review)

- Domiciliary care waiting list
- Home first model
- SPA
- Streaming
- IUCAS

Therefore, funding will inevitably need to be revised following conclusion of the 
focus areas in Q2. No new funding is available and all priorities will need to be 
achieved within existing cost envelope, delivering at scale, ensuring flow, 
improving ROI, VFM and patient outcomes. 

Jacqui Evans
AD for Unplanned Care and Integrated commissioning
April 2018

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Break down of BCF winter funding

Draft initial Winter Investment

  
1. Acute Capacity 48 Additional Beds  
2. T2A Nursing Beds 20 beds for 16 weeks 247,680
3. Exit Strategy April 2019 50,000
4. MDT Costs Supporting T2A Nursing Beds 88,743
5. Clinical Costs Supporting T2A Nursing Beds 17,600
6. MH Beds Full Year 3 x Res EMI plus 3 x Nurs 219,625

7.
Additional MH beds for Winter 
Pressure 2 x Res EMI beds for 16 weeks 18,592

8. Clinical Costs For MH Beds 2,000
9. Crisis Response Practitioner 55,000

10. Spot Purchasing Contingiency
Cover for dom care pressure etc - 10 beds for 8 
weeks 61,920

 761,160
 Dom Care Growth 7 day retainer plus removal of 15 minute call-out 212,000
 Enhanced Dom Care 143,000
 Growth in Dom Care (Currently balancing figure) 68,434
 423,434
  Total Winter Investment 1,184,594

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18
Q4 17/18 

(Current)

Q1 18/19

(Planned)

Q2 18/19

(Planned)

If 'Mature' or 'Exemplary', please provide 

further rationale to support this assessment

Chg 1 Early discharge planning Plans in place Established Plans in place Established Mature

Chg 2
Systems to monitor 

patient flow
Plans in place Established Established Established Mature

Chg 3
Multi-disciplinary/multi-

agency discharge teams
Established Established Established Established Mature

Chg 4
Home first/discharge to 

assess
Established Established Established Established Mature

Chg 5 Seven-day service Established Established Established Established Mature

Chg 6 Trusted assessors Plans in place Established Established Established Mature

Chg 7 Focus on choice Established Established Established Established Mature

Chg 8
Enhancing health in care 

homes
Established Established Established Established Mature

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2017/18
4. High Impact Change Model

Narrative

WirralSelected Health and Well Being 

Board:

Maturity assessment

P
age 79



Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18
Q4 17/18 

(Planned)

Q1 18/19

(Planned)

Q2 18/19

(Planned)

If there are no plans to implement such a 

scheme, please provide a narrative on 

alternative mitigations in place to support 

improved communications in hospital 

transfer arrangements for social care 

residents.

UEC Red Bag scheme Plans in place Plans in place Established Established Established

Hospital Transfer Protocol (or the Red Bag Scheme) 

Please report on implementation of a Hospital Transfer Protocol (also known as the ‘Red Bag scheme’) to enhance communication and information sharing when residents move between care settings and hospital.

P
age 80



Challenges Milestones met during the quarter / 

Observed impact

Support needs

implementing safer consistently.culture and 

behaviours. workforce recruitment and 

retention.

grip on stranded patients-focussed group and 

transparent data. Review of IDT toimprove 

progress to next level.

N/A

full implementation of safer. Increasing focus 

on MO and stranded. Flexing to winter 

workforce.

improved performance monitoring. SDIP now 

contractual. Capacity and demand modelling 

to inform pathways and flow. Electronic 

screens in wards.

N/A

refinement of approach following IDT review. nursing home trusted assessor in place and 

being  embedded. 

T2A model rolled out Oct ’17

Transfer of Care form signed off across 

healthcare economy

N/A

scaling up to deliver sustainable home first 

model.

t2A model in place. Home first pilot evaluated. N/A

adapting workforce across 7 days as required. 

Whole system challenge within cost envelope.

PTWR, planned weekend ward rounds well 

established. ‘Discharging consultant’ ward 

rounds for potential discharges in place for 

wards without job planned weekend ward 

rounds. review of 7 day services and gaps.

N/A

fully embedding across sectors. Culture and 

behaviours.

TA for Care Homes Nurse started 3rd Nov 17 

and currently shadowing  providers and 

supporting speedier discharges.  

MOU/Business process being finalised for full 

assessment to be undertaken by TA and single 

N/A

consistent application  to evidence mature in 

self assessment

New Early Intervention and Prevention 

commission started 1st Oct, Age UK Home of 

Choice (Right Time Right Place coordinators)  

and Home from Hospital (Home & 

Communities) support in place and integrated 

N/A

evidence consistent application and fully 

embedd to achieve mature self assessment

24/7 Teletriage Nurse/GPOOH Service in 30 

homes and rolled out to another 34 homes by 

end of Feb 18.  High usage over weekends 

admissions being avoided (85% of calls 

deflecting an admission) and AVS Doctor 

N/A

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2017/18
4. High Impact Change Model

Narrative

P
age 81



Challenges Achievements / Impact Support needs

consistent application progress made to scale up N/A

Hospital Transfer Protocol (or the Red Bag Scheme) 

Please report on implementation of a Hospital Transfer Protocol (also known as the ‘Red Bag scheme’) to enhance communication and information sharing when residents move between care settings and hospital.

P
age 82



Winter Planning 2018/19 
Wirral 

 

 
 

 
 

Demand and Capacity Modelling Exercise 
12.06.2018 

P
age 83



Methodology 

Identify Areas of Most Significant Impact 

Performance & Trends 

Learning from Winter 2017/18 

Target Setting 

Run Model & Provide Output 

Early Warning System ‘Triggers’ 

P
age 84



Areas of Most Significant Impact 
Numerous aspects of performance and capacity impact on the ability to meet demand. The 

following have the most significant impact when modelled through the demand and capacity tool 
 
• Community Services: 

• Admissions avoidance 
 

• NWAS performance: 
• See & Convey 
• See and Treat 
• Acute Visiting Service 

 

• Front Door & Streaming: 
• Volumes  
• Streaming Rate  
• Proportional admissions from Assessment Wards 
• WiC activity 

 

• Hospital Capacity & Flow: 
• Number of Beds (Baseline) 
• LoS 
• Occupancy Rate  
• Stranded Patients / Super Stranded 
• Discharge 
 

• T2A Capacity & Flow: 
• Capacity 
• Occupancy 
• LoS  

 

• Mental Health: 
• EMI / MH Beds 
• Community Capacity – HTT 

 

• Domiciliary Care: 
• Waiting lists 

 

P
age 85



Learning from Winter 2017/18 

P
age 86



Applying ‘Targets’ and Assumptions to the Key Measures 
Pathway Target Source 

Community Offer Admissions Avoidance 
Current Baseline in model 
3.5% reduction (BCF wider 

schemes) – 6 per day 
Monthly UC Performance Dashboard. D&C Model Baseline 

NWAS 

See & Convey 68% Current performance 

See  & Treat 20% Aim of 30% - Realistic figure 

See & Hear 12% Prediction based on recent performance 

AVS Based on continuation of performance – Feeds above %s 

Front Door & 
Streaming 

Volumes Daily Average 265 259 2017/18 multiplied by 1% (previous year uplift) 

Streaming Rate 25% Minors Current performance / targets 

Hospital Capacity & 
Flow 

Beds 
773 core beds and 48 
winter capacity = 821 

Core Bed Stock and Escalation Beds 

Occupancy 92% 

NHSE Target (taken an average of 90% and 94% occupancy, 
when system achieved 95%, as per guidance)  
Infection Control / flu potential impact. Allows 5% buffer in 
key pressure points.  

LoS 4.8 days average 
4.61 actual for 17/18 average.  0.3 of a day increase over 
winter. 4.8 modelled to be realistic.  

Stranded 967 
Winter target (feeds LoS metric) 27% improvement in bed 
days 

T2A Capacity & 
Flow 

Occupancy 80% 
Based on c. 79% occupancy 2017/18. Expect improvement to 
85% occupancy. 

LoS 4.2 weeks average 
Target set 
Winter average 17/18 – 5.1. ½ week pp / allowed as buffer. 
10% applied for delays.  

MH 
Beds & Community 
Capacity 

As per model baseline 

Dom Care Waiting List 25 Target based on 2017/18 performance 

P
age 87



Further Detail 
Indicator 17/18 Baseline 

17/18 Winter 
baseline 

18/19 Target 
18/19 Winter 

Target 
Wirral CCG only / ALL 

WUTH Activity 

A
vo

id
an

ce
 

Volume of NWAS calls 1,626,727 723,767 - - Wirral CCG Only    
Number self-presented at ED 73,987 26,538 - - Wirral CCG Only    
NWAS See & Convey 70.00% 68% 75% 75% Wirral CCG Only    
NWAS See & Treat 19.80% 20.40% 30% 30% Wirral CCG Only    
ED attendance 94,597 38,528 - - WUTH Activity 
Attendance at WiC 81,324 32,429 - - CT Activity 
Streaming 27.1% 29.1% 25% 25% CT Activity 
CRRT avoidance num 813 551 1236 512 CT Activity 
AVS 2089 996 - - CT Activity 
GPOOH’s 41,838 17,300 - - CT Activity 
Teletriage calls per home 18 14 - - CT Activity 

Fl
o

w
 

Acute Beds num - - 847 847 WUTH Activity 
Acute escalation Beds num - - 20 20 WUTH Activity 
% Admissions per attendance 31.8% 33.3% * - - Wirral CCG Only    

Number of GP emergency admissions 16,213 7,108 - - WUTH Activity 

Admissions from Assessment Units 31,011 13,658 - - Wirral CCG Only    
LOS on Assessment Ward 3.7 3.8 - - Wirral CCG Only    
Hospital Occupancy 89.6% 92.2% 92% 92% Wirral CCG Only    
LOS Hospital average 2.4 2.5 - - Wirral CCG Only    
Acute Medical LOS 2.8 2.9 - - Wirral CCG Only    
Stranded 2,314 987 2,264 967 WUTH Activity 
Super Stranded - - - - WUTH Activity 
WUTH A&E 4 Hour 74.65% 71.81% 95% 95% WUTH Activity 
WIC & MIU 4 Hour 99.28% 99.74% 95% 95% CT \ MIU Provider 

A&E & WIC & MIU 4 Hour  86.48% 85.94% 95% 95% WUTH \ MIU Provider \CT 
All NEL Discharges 44,242 19,244 - - Wirral CCG Only    

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 

DToC 3.31% (2,600) 1.94% (886) 2.00% 2.00% Wirral Local Authority 
T2A waiting - - - - CT Activity 
T2A occupancy 78.9% 78.4% - - CT Activity 
LOS T2A average 5.1 5.1 4.2 4.2 CT Activity 
Avg Daily Dom Care waiting 19 18 25 25 CT Activity 
Homefirst nums 365 184 - - CT Activity 
STAR waiting - - - - CT Activity 

P
age 88



Model Outputs 

Apply Targets and Assumptions 

Community Requirements / Pathway Enhancement 

Bed Requirements 

Additional Capacity Required 

Type Number Notes 

Beds 68 

Step-Up / Step-Down Bed Capacity 
T2A Capacity impacted significantly by reduction in LoS to 
4.2 Weeks. Equates to c. 19 ‘additional’ beds 
 
36 Beds required as escalation – Likely to be higher 
dependency. 48 in acute, 20 in community – nursing – T2A 

EMI Beds 5 
Additional bed capacity required to meet demand and 6 
core emi beds and 2 extra in winter.  

Community Mental 
Health - Crisis 

Additional case 
load – 4 per day 

Additional capacity required, additional crisis support cover.  

Reablement 0 
Based on reduction in Domiciliary Care waits, additional 
demand should be absorbed 

Domiciliary Care 
Additional Dom 
Care places - 52  

Number is variable. Based on Domiciliary Care Waiting list of 
25. Additional capacity / investment made. 

P
age 89



Applying ‘Tolerances’ and System Triggers 
Pathway Target Tolerance to Trigger 

NWAS See & Convey 68% 68.5% 

Front Door & 
Streaming 

Volumes Daily Average 265 +10% (291) 

Streaming Rate 25% Minors 23% 

Hospital Capacity & 
Flow 

Four Hour Standard 95% TBC 

Beds 92% of 775 Bed Capacity 95% 

LoS 5.2 +5% (5.5 days) 

Stranded 976 TBC 

T2A Capacity & Flow 
Capacity 

LoS 4.2 +10% (4.6 weeks) 

Dom Care Waiting List 25 +20% (30) 

Output Based on All ‘Tolerances’ Triggered (Simplified) 
Additional Capacity Required 

Type Number 

Additional Beds 36 plus additional 16 (52) 

EMI Beds 5 

Community Mental Health - Crisis Additional case load – 4 per day 

Reablement / Home First 5 

Dom Care 25 People waiting plus additional 5 (30) 

Assuming Winter 
demand is met, if 
all above 
tolerances are 
breached, equates 
to an additional 26 
people with unmet 
needs. 

P
age 90



Appendix 8

1
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Wirral Winter and Unplanned Care System Sustainability Plan 2018-19

Priority Area 1  - Ambulance & 111                                                                                                                                                     Ref. UC001                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Turnaround Times Programme of work to reduce ambulance 

turnaround times to achieve 30 minute 
standard.

NWAS and WUTH jointly working 
towards NHS-I Improving handover 
checklist standards

Sep 18 Handover target 15 
mins
Turnaround Target 30 
mins

Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Debbie 
Mallett (NWAS)

IU-CAS 
Development (AVS, 
111 Online, 111 
Direct Booking, 
APAS, GOOH)

Integrated Urgent Care development, 
including 111 CAS pathways as an alternative 
to A&E

Review and redesign of GPOOH’s and 
AVS.

Expand 111 CAS pathways

Implement direct booking into GP OOH, 
then into in-hours GP appointments

ongoing Debbie Mallett 
(NWAS)/Val 
McGee (WCT)

Conveyance Rates Reduce ambulance conveyance rates by 
utilising AVS and improving links with other 
services (links to SPA redesign)

Ensure robust AVS and community offer 
(SPA redesign)

NWAS to ensure that available services 
are utilised

ongoing Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Debbie 
Mallett 
(NWAS)/Paul 
Walton (NWAS)

NWAS adoption of 
ARP

NWAS Performance Improvement plan 
outlines actions required to achieve standards

Reduced conveyances (as above)

Increase in double staffed Emergency 
Ambulances

Internal efficiencies and standardisation 
within the Emergency Operations 
Centre (call handling)

Improvements in hospital turnaround 
times (as above)

Aug 18 Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Debbie 
Mallett (NWAS)

Admission 
Avoidance

Frequent A&E Users Reduction in the number of A&E attendances 
and non-elective admissions for the top 60 
most frequent users of A&E

Approaches will be tailored to each 
cohort: Drug & Alcohol, Mental Health, 
Older patients

Sep 18 Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)

P
age 91



Appendix 8

2
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Priority Area 2 - SPA Redesign  
Single Point Access (SPA) To support Physical Health, Mental Health & Social Care to bring together the existing models (x3) into a single collaborative SPA model for Wirral.   Ref. UC002                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

SPA - IT & Estates To oversee estates plan and co-location of key 
(SPA) services and review opportunities to 
align and/or integrate IT services

Develop, revise, design and implement 
electronic pathways & processes

Co-location to support the vision for 
Improved integration of current teams 
& services

Develop joint internal professional 
standards support integration

Reduced hand-offs and improved joint 
working

Aug 18 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

SPA - Workforce Work stream established to understand 
baseline workforce and to develop the current 
(SPA) workforce.

Develop a robust workforce model with 
joint internal professional standards 
and operating hours (7 day service)

Develop opportunities for training and 
cross-discipline working

Sep 18 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

SPA - Target 
Operating Model

To reduce the number of inappropriate 
referrals to the emergency department and to 
hospital.
To support workforce redesign for the future 
Target Operating Model

To streamline effective and appropriate 
pathways via a True Single Point Access 
(SPA)

To reduce the number of inappropriate 
referrals to the emergency department 
and to hospital.

To improve patient access to services 
for both NWAS and GPs (Primary Care)

Utilise PDSA approach and develop joint 
standard operating procedures (SOPs) 
to support the new model.

Lead the development of appropriate 
clinical and non-clinical pathways

Sep 18 Admissions avoided, 
numbers diverted 
through SPA

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Admission 
Avoidance

SPA - Information & 
Key Performance 
Indicators

Work stream established to confirm both 
current individual data requirements (Each 
SPA) and develop suite of collaborative data.

To strengthen existing information 
(including mandated data) and develop 
robust system-wide reporting process

Develop suite of shared and meaningful 
data to support improvement.

Sep 18 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

P
age 92



Appendix 8

3
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Priority Area 3 – Admission Avoidance Schemes                                                                                                                           Ref. UC003 
      
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Non Elective 
Admission (NEL)

Figure derived via a combination of the 
following services: SPA, Streaming, 
AVS/GOOH’s, RCR, Teletriage, Enhanced GP 
service to Care Homes & OPAT.

Ref: SPA- Priority Area 2, Streaming-
Priority Area 5, AVS/GOOH’s Priority 
Area 1, RCR Priority Area 3, Enahnced 
GP service Priority Area 21, OPAT 
Priority Area 3

Reduce NEL by 3.5% Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

OPAT OPAT provides IV antibiotic treatment in the 
home/community setting. The service 
supports hospital avoidance and also reduces 
LOS for people who can be managed within 
the community.

BCF investment for additional resources 
will provide focus on inpatients to 
reduce LOS for suitable patients to be 
managed within the community 

Q1 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

WIC & Integrated 
Urgent Care Clinical 
Assessment Unit

Primary Care support for ‘minor’ type 3 
patients in WiC.  Streaming patients from ED 
or ambulatory patients

Implement Streaming See Priority Area 
5
Extended GP access See Priority Area 
21

Q3 Zero tolerances of 
minor breaches.
100% of patients to be 
seen, treated and 
discharged within 4 
hours.

Rapid Community 
Response

Integrated social care and health team which 
delivers the Rapid Community Service 
interventions for up to 72 hrs. The aim of the 
service is the prevention of admission to 
hospital or facilitation of discharge

Remodelling RCR, Home first & 
Reablement  by end of Q2 to create one 
Community Offer that links closely with 
Dom Care, and remodelling of 
associated data. 

Q2 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Admission 
Avoidance

Links with Planned 
Care

Effective links with planned care/ICCH’s to 
ensure risk stratification of complex 
customers, with robust management plans in 
place to reduce ED attendance and acute 
admissions.

Regular meeting to be created to 
ensure joined up approach

Q2 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Priority Area 4 - Teletriage                                                                                                                                                             Ref. UC004
                            
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Phase 4 
Implementation

Teletriage is a 24/7 nurse and OOH GP video 
conferencing service available to Older people 
Nursing & Residential homes using ipads and 
skype for business.  Wirral currently has 76 
homes involved.  The service is an in house 
service and has access to AVS GP and for 
Winter Rapid Community Response team.

Phase 4 complete by end of June 2018 
76 homes on board

Q1 Min 80% of care 
Homes live and using 
Teletriage

Val McGee (WCT)
Admission 
Avoidance

Embedding Year 1 was roll out and initial implementation.  Mobile working for nurses, offering Q2 100% live and using Val McGee (WCT)

P
age 93



Appendix 8

4
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Year 2 focus on embedding the service to raise 
calls to minimum of 4 calls a month from each 
Care Home.

additional competency training and use 
of ipad/skype.  

Embedding the service across all 76 
homes and raising calls to a Minimum 
of 4 per month per car home. Approx. 
300 calls per month.

Q3

Teletriage 
Reduce calls to 111 by 
10%
4 calls per home per 
month

Care Home 
Connector Training

Basic Observation training for all care homes 
has been provided along with bags of 
equipment including: BP cuff, thermometer, 
Oximeter and urine dip sticks, training and 
prompt cards and escalation guide.

Complete training to all 76 homes by 
end of June 2018.
Provide homes with training video 
loaded onto the Ipads.

Val McGee (WCT)

Priority Area 5 – Streaming Implementation                                                                                                                                   Ref. UC005
Primary Care Clinical streaming is nationally mandated to stream appropriate patients from the front door of the Emergency Department into Primary Care.  This initiative will reduce 
crowding within the ED, improve patient safety and support improvements in the national 4 hour standard.                                                                                 
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Streaming - 
Operations

Whole system operational group to manage 
day to day operations of Primary Care Clinical 
Streaming Service, including

 Activity
 Rotas
 Service provision
 Model

Activity to follow national best-practice 
(ECIP/NHSI) and SDIPs

WUTH to establish substantive 
Streaming Nurse Rota

Utilise PDSA approach to improve 
model and align to ECIP and RCEM 
support

July 2018 & 
on-going

25 30% per day (20 -
25 people) streamed 
out of A&E to primary 
care or WiC

CQUIN -35 per day 
from July 2018

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Streaming - Clinical 
Governance

Whole-system Clinical governance group 
established to provide overview and scrutiny 
to

 Clinical Activity 
 Clinical Model (PDSA)
 Incidents

Case review of patients who were not 
streamed

Review those patients who returned to 
the ED

Understand destination and outcomes 
for all patients

July 18 & 
on-going

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Effective 
Assessment
, Admission 
& Flow

Streaming -  Data & 
Information

A whole-system data set & report (dashboard) 
has been established.
This provides daily, weekly & monthly 
reporting to system leaders.

Data and dashboard includes the 
following.
*Total ED Activity
*Breakdown of minors and BIBA activity
*Total patients streamed (Actual versus 
expected)

July 2018 & 
on-going

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

P
age 94



Appendix 8

5
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

*See SDIPs

Priority Area 6 – ED & Assessment Area Redesign                                                                                                                        Ref. UC006
                                       
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

4 hour standard ED and WiC at the Arrowe Park Site. Whole System Indicator End of Q2

Q4

Arrowe Park Site (ED 
& WiC) 90% patients 
to be seen, admitted 
or discharged within 4 
hours by end of Q2.
95% by the end of Q4

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/

Effective 
Assessment
, Admission 
& Flow

Assessment Area 
Redesign

Review of frailty and acute bed base

Review of direct admission to assessment 
areas from ED

Access for assessment areas for diagnostics

Levelling GP demand

Currently reviewing frailty & acute 
assessment bed base. Scoping our 
access to diagnostic services across 
assessment areas and performing 
baseline assessment of factors 
preventing direct admission to 
assessment areas. Agreeing criteria for 
assessment areas for referrals from SPA

Oct
2018

30% of non-elective 
medical patients are 
discharged the same 
day.
65% of all non-elective 
medical patients 
should have a length 
of stay less than 72hrs 
(including the 30% 
above)

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

Priority Area 7  - SAFER Implementation, Stranded & LOS/Capacity –                                                                                     Ref. UC007
All inpatient beds, except assessment units and T2A beds                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Senior review Senior Review – by clinician by midday – 
management & discharge decision

Every ward will have a consultant led 
MDT Board round every day at 9am                 
Every outlier will have Senior review by 
Midday 

Q1

Q1

Agree implementation 
plan for SAFER over 7 
days
90% patients reviewed 
by midday

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

All Patients All patients – expected discharge date & 
clinical criteria for discharge set by assuming 
ideal recovery and assuming no unnecessary 
waiting

Daily point prevalence to be completed 
by discharge trackers and fed back to 
bed bureau by 10:30                                            
All diagnostics / Specialist review for 
Inpatients to be prioritised above day 
case and OPD  

Q1 90% patients have an 
EED within 4 hours.

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

Effective 
Assessment
, Admission 
& Flow

Flow Flow - earliest opportunity from assessment 
units to inpatient wards. Wards will ensure 
the first patient arrives by 10am

Afternoon huddles to focus on, Board 
round action completion, EDDs and 
golden patients                                     
Clinical handover and transfer on 
Cerner of patients from base ward to 
Discharge Lounge                                                   
Ensure TTH & discharge summaries are 
completed in real time

Q2

Q2

Q3

80% patients arriving 
on inpatient wards by 
mid-day.

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

P
age 95



Appendix 8

6
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Early Discharge Early Discharge - 33% of patients will be 
discharged from base inpatient wards before 
midday.  

Clinical handover and transfer on 
Cerner of patients from base ward to 
Discharge Lounge
Focus on transferring 10 patients 
(Golden Patients) to the discharge 
lounge or discharge by midday

Q2

Q3

23% Q1, 28% Q2, 33% 
Q3 33% of patients 
will be discharged 
from base inpatient 
wards before midday 
by Q4  

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

Review Review - systematic multi-disciplinary team 
(MDT) review of patients with extended 
lengths of stay (>7 days)

Senior Clinical Forum attendance to 
present SDIP contracting agreement 
and awareness of the ECIP support, to 
ensure clinical engagement and support                 
ECIP attendance to support the 
embedding of afternoon huddles
ECIP supported site visits to Mid 
Yorkshire to review their processes                          
Enhance the features of the electronic 
whiteboard, specifically EDD, 
Red2Green and flow comments                                  
Through Patient Flow improvement 
group three worksteams over 8 weeks 
have been formed consisting of full 
MDT to look at Complex patients, 
diagnostics & pharmacy and Ward 
rounding process to ascertain barriers 
and gaps in delivery

Q1

Q2

Q2

Q2

Q2

See Stranded below.
Baseline & trajectory 
by Q1

Antony Middleton 
(WTH)

Stranded and Super 
Stranded patients

Stranded patients >7 days. 
Super Stranded patients >21 days.

National stranded LOS target is a reduction of 
27%.  Agreed Wirral target in SDIP is 37.5%

Acute: Targets set within SDIP’s for the 
Acute Trust.

Community: T2A Stranded meetings 
monthly during part of the MDT’s. 
MADE events prior to a Bank Holiday 
to support flow through T2A beds and 
increase capacity during Bank Holiday 
periods.

Q1
Q2

Q4

From agreed baseline: 
80.                               
Reduce 30 MO 
stranded patients by 
end of Q2 and 
maintain 
Reduce by 50 MO 
stranded patients by 
end of Q4 and 
maintain 

Antony 
Middleton (WTH)

Acute average LOS 
& Acute Medical 
LOS & Acute 
Capacity 

Reduction required in Acute Average & 
Medical LOS. 

Provide improvement plan and 
trajectory to reduce average length of 
stay to 4.8 days by end of Q3 
(recognising 0.3 a day increase over 
winter) and Acute Medical LOS to 5.5 
by Q3.

Max 92% occupancy for acute 
(allowing 5% flu/infection control 
issues). System delivered 90% / 95% 
and occupancy was 90-94%. Therefore 

Q3

Q3

Reduce Average 
Acute LOS to 4.8 days. 
Reduce Acute Medical 
LOS to 5.5

Max 92% Acute 
occupancy

Antony 
Middleton (WTH)

P
age 96



Appendix 8

7
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

assumed average of 92%. 

SAFER in T2A beds Processes to implement the SAFER bundle in 
the community beds to improve flow across 
the system.

Weekly MDT to review LOS in T2A Beds 
based on the SAFER bundle.  

Q1 Implementation of 
SAFER in T2A

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Priority Area 8 – Discharge Transformation & Sustainability Programme                                                                                Ref. UC008
                                                                   
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Transfer of Care 
Form solution

Transfer of care form in place, on- going 
monitoring and evaluation of form. 

Poor quality tocs numbers have significantly 
reduced 

Further development of the Toc to roll out to 
other services i.e OPAT and CHC 

Quality assurance process in place and 
escalation process agreed with 
providers with regard to quality issues

Continuous scrutiny of tocs with 
monthly RCA programme in place to 
review all TOCS identified through the 
escalation process

Toc for reviewed to replace nursing 
needs assessment and referral form to 
OPAT 

Training delivered to IDT and intention 
to develop discharge trackers to 
complete TOCs 

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

95% of TOCs are not 
returned due to 
quality

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

Discharge 
& Transfers 
of Care

Integrated 
Discharge Team

New Operating model reviewed to ensure key 
deliverables have been achieved

Reivew identified that 30% of patients are 
assessed in hospital and 70% outside,

Review of skill mix of IDT to ensure capacity to 
deliver skilled asset based assessment for 

Completed

Workshops arranged with clinicians to 
improve the board meeting focussing 
on respective challenge models

MDT function to be reviewed to ensure 
most effective  communication 

White board to be placed within IDT 
with live data to support MDT process

Alignment of stranded reviews with IDT 
MDT

June 18

July 18

June 18

Aug 18

July 18

15% of patients 
assessed in acute

85% of patients 
assessed in a Transfer 
to assess placements

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

P
age 97



Appendix 8

8
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

complex patients and timely discharge for 
people who transfer to T2A

Admin to work over 7 days 

Admin consultation on going
July 18

T2A Transfer 2 Assess Beds, currently 102 core 
beds.  Individuals who are Medically 
Optimised and require bed based provision 
due to not being able to go home will receive 
assessments & therapy through a MDT 
approach LOS up to 6 weeks.  Target for 
Winter is 4.2 weeks LOS.

Clarification of Winter Beds through the 
Capacity Demand Model and potential 
use of Clatterbridge site and 
remodelling of MDT’s to match the 
model.

Discharge Date to be set within 48hrs.

Q3

Q2

LOS as per spec: 50% 
LOS 3 weeks max, 25% 
72hrs, 25% 6 weeks 
max.
LOS down to average 
4.2 weeks

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Homefirst Pathway from Acute that gets people home 
following a NEL admission, with the support of 
Health Care Assistants supporting patients for 
72hrs while packages of care are being put in 
place.

Current Community Services Redesign 
work linking STAR, Homefirst and Rapid 
Community Response.  New service 
model to be in place by end of Q2

Q1

Q2

Q4

Support the System to 
From agreed baseline: 
Reduce 30 MO 
stranded patients by 
end of Q2 and 
maintain equivalent to 
5%
Reduce by 50 MO 
stranded patients by 
end of Q4 and 
maintain equivalent to 
8%

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)/Natalie 
Park (WCT)

CHC Ensure greater understanding of CHC 
processes from a medical perspective and IDT 
in particular fast track

Ensure that 85% of patients assessed outside 
acute currently over achieving.

Reduce the number of patients 
inappropriately referred for fast track 

Electronic referral in place 

Workshop to review process and 
documents

Process developed with team to include 
timescales and expectations

Educational programme for clinicians to 
be developed and implemented, senior 
consultants to have ownership

Ensure that all staff are registered and 
use the electronic referral process

Complete

July18

Aug 18

July 18

85% of patients 
assessed for eligibility 
outside the acute 
setting

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)/Sam 
(CSU)/Iain Stewart 
(CCG)

Mental Health 
Pathway

Mental health engagement to support 
management and flow of patients with mental 
health issues and to facilitate safe and timely 
discharges 

Education programme to be developed 
for IDT and clinicians to ensure 
understanding of mental health 

Outreach dementia team to be 
expanded to offer support for patients 
transferring from hospital to T2A beds

Aug 18

July 18

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

P
age 98



Appendix 8

9
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Training programme developed for 
discharge trackers

Delirium pathway to be developed and 
understood by all professionals 

July 18

Trusted Assessor in 
Care Homes/Dom 
Care

Care Homes: Trusted Nurse to undertake pre 
admission to Care Home assessments on 
behalf of the Registered Managers of Care 
Homes to speed up the Discharge process.
Dom Care: Several pilots underway with 
independent Dom Care providers – providers 
undertaking trusted assessments to either 
increase or decrease packages of care.

Care Homes: MOU finalised and 
circulated to Care Homes June 2018.  
Full assessments possible from June 18. 
BCF funded.
Dom Care: Implementation and 
evaluation of Pilots as part of the 
recommission of Dom Care and links 
with Community Services Redesign. 
Recommission 

Ongoing

Q2

April 2019

100% of Care Homes 
using TA for Care 
Homes by the end of 
Q2

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)/Natalie 
Park (WCT)

Jayne Marshall 
(WBC)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Integrated Therapy 
(Therapy Redesign)

Cross organisation review of therapy services 
the results in a proposal for integrated 
community based therapy model enhancing 
streamlined care pathways directly supporting 
streaming, internal flow and DTOC. 

See Priority Area 14 Allister Leinster 
(WUTH)/Natalie 
Park (WCT)

Patient Information
Patient information policy completed and in 
place.

Patient leaflets agreed and available on wards

Full implementation still to be realised 
Ongoing updates to policy require 
governance oversite and sign off

Clarification of ongoing funding,

Further work to embed policy across all 
divisions 

Review of IT systems, intranets to 
include for external information

Ongoing

July 2018

Aug 2018

100% of policy 
adhered too

100% patients receive 
leaflet on admission

Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

Culture & 
Communication

Improve communication 

Raise the profile of  IDT throughout the trust 
to ensure greater understanding of the role 
and function of the team

Raise the profile of IDT to external partners to 
ensure wider engagement and inclusion of 
community development schemes

Review attendance at medical board 
rounds

Develop plans to attend board rounds 
on surgery

Participate in any community re-design 
programmes

Engage with provider forums to 

Q2 Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

P
age 99



Appendix 8

10
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

maintain good productive relationships 
Further Provision 
Opportunities

Opportunity to review site at Clatterbridge to 
develop provider led medically optimised unit 

Review existing T2A models

Arrange Pre-tender engagement event 
to test the market

Meeting with Stakeholders to develop 
plan and identify areas for escalation

Increase the numbers of complex 
patients receiving assessments out of 
hospital

Full implementation plan to be 
developed following the pre tender 
event

Q2 Shaun Brown 
(WUTH)

Priority Area 9 – Redesign & Scale up of Community Services –                                                                                                 Ref. UC009
Redesign of key Community services including: Homefirst, Rapid Community Response, STAR to better link with Dom Care market and provide a broader crisis response.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Whole 
System

Modelling/Pathway

Implementation 

Community Services that support Discharge 
and Hospital Avoidance consist of several 
separate services: Home first, Rapid 
Community Response and Reablement (STAR). 

Undertake a rapid review of Community 
Services with a view to re-designing the 
offer to work closer with Dom Care 
providers to ensure that people are 
supported at the right time, right place 
and with the right service.

Implement new model by beginning of 
Q3 with flex and support across the 
system

By end Q2

Beg Q3

Val McGee 
(WCT)/ Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Priority Area 10 – Development of Workforce Strategy                                                                                                                Ref. UC010 
                                                        

Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Whole 
System

Workforce Strategy Strategic review of: 
 Reablement, 
 RCS
 Dom Care

Acute visiting service

Review Home First Pathway

Review of Workforce roles and capacity 
including safe sustainable staffing 
review
See Priority Area 9 above

July 2018

July – Aug 
2018      

July 2018

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

P
age 100



Appendix 8

11
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

WIC staffing review to strengthen resilience of 
7 day service

SPA review and redesign as part of Integrated 
Gateway

Operational review to enhance winter 
resilience eg schedule training and 
development outside winter months

Workforce Flexible staffing

Teletriage

Dom Care & Care Homes

Extend AVS service through to March 
2019, including in-hours and GPOOH. 
See Priority Area 1 above

Review of staffing for 7 day service

See SPA Priority Area 2 above

Review across WCFT to ensure risk 
based approach and consistency and 
engagement with staff side

Review current models in WCFT and 
WUTH and maximise benefits of 
integrated working.

Review re optimising this as part of an 
integrated community offer with 
GPOOH and neighbourhood nursing 
teams. 
See Teletriage Priority Area 4 above

See Priority Area 13 Community Care 
Market - Career Pathway 

July 2018

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

July – Sept 
2018

August 
2018

Q2

Priority Area 11 – Capacity & Demand modelling inc. proactive approach to OPEL & escalation management               Ref. UC011
                          
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Winter Bed 
modelling 

Using the Capacity & Demand model using 
assumptions plan requirements for winter, 
creating trigger flags and escalation plans to 
cope during pressure.
*Acute Escalation 48 beds
*Community Beds & Wrap around MDT 20 
beds

Run Capacity & Demand model & 
Identify additional beds and create 
escalation plan against triggers 
identified from the CDM.
See Capacity & Demand modelling 
Appendix 2: Capacity & Demand 
modelling assumptions & Winter Plan 
narrative.

End of Q1 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Whole 
System

Delayed Transfer of 
Care (DToC)

Maintain DToC at 2.67% or under (BCF 
targets for 18/19 not yet confirmed by 
National Team, therefore this assumption my 
need revision).

Whole System Indicator Q1-Q4 Maintain at 2.67% or 
below

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)/ Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Val 
McGee (WCT)

P
age 101



Appendix 8

12
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Priority Area 12 – High Impact Change Model – 8 intervention areas that can support local health & care systems to reduce transfer of care                Ref. UC012

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Early Discharge 
Planning

Robust discharge plans in place: elective – 
prior to admission. Unplanned: to allow 
discharge date to be set within 48 hours

Working towards Mature
See Priority Area 8 Discharge 
Transformation & Sustainability 
Programme - T2A

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Systems to Monitor 
Flow

Robust patient flow models for Health & Social 
Care

See Priority Area 11 Capacity & 
Demand modelling including proactive 
approach to OPEL & escalation 
management

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

MDT, including Vol 
& Community 
Sector

Co-ordinated discharge planning based on 
joint assessment processes & protocols

See Priority Area 8 Discharge 
Transformation & Sustainability 
Programme

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Home First/T2A Short term care & reablement in peoples 
home or ‘step down’ beds to bridge gap 
between hospital and home – assessments 
undertaken outside of acute setting.

See Priority Area 8 Discharge 
Transformation & Sustainability 
Programme 

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Seven-Day Services Joint 24/7 working to improve flow of people 
through the system and across the interface 
between Health & Social Care, providing 
better response to people’s needs.

See Priority Area 10 – Workforce 
Strategy 

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Trusted Assessors Using Trusted Assessors to carry out holistic 
assessments – speeding up response times 
and reducing duplication.

See Priority Area 8 Discharge 
Transformation & Sustainability 
Programme 

Q3 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Focus on Choice Early engagement with patients, families and 
carers.  3rd sector support so that people can 
consider their options and considering choice 
to be able to make decisions about their 
future. 

Further embed the Age UK  Right Time, 
Right Place Co-ordinators within the 
IDT.

Q2 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Whole 
System

Enhancing Health in 
Care Homes (CHIP)

Offering people joined up, co-ordinated health 
and care services, can help reduce 
unnecessary admissions to hospital as well as 
improve hospital discharge.

See Priority Area 5 Teletraige
Red Bag Scheme
Enhanced GP to Care Homes
Falls App
CHIP plan reiew including 
improvements to quality and training

Q1-Q4 Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

P
age 102



Appendix 8

13
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Priority area 13 – Community Care Market (Domiciliary Care & Reablement)                                                                         Ref. UC013
                                                                                      
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Domiciliary Care 
Trusted Assessor & 
other Pilots

Trusted Assessor – Dom Care
Piloted with 2 providers so far, where they are 
able to make small temporary changes in POC 
with an agreed governance and process in 
place.  They also have the ability to request 
and complete a review of individuals POC  this 
is overseen and validated by as Social Care 
Assessor 

Enhanced Dom Care  - 3 months pilot with 
Routes Health Care these are for difficult to 
place packages of care  due to complexity or 
behavioural issues  

Electronic Care Monitoring (PASS System) – 
this is currently being piloted for 6 months 
with Haven Care to monitor outcomes for 
individuals and also the open PASS system 
which allows other professionals, family and 
carers access to the individuals  care plan for 
real time info / changes to support.

Career Pathway – Developing a publicity 
campaign to raise the awareness of Care 
Workers to attracted recruitment in this 
market by mapping out a career pathway for 
domically care, nursing and social care, 
exploring  initiatives to support this i.e. 
employee benefits etc.

Buurtzorg  - this is a pilot that is being led by 
WCFT  which will be piloted in Wallasey with 2 
GP practices and Wallasey Community Nursing 
Team the Domiciliary Care providers are 
working closely with the CT and will be 
wrapping care support around this pilot  

Pilot initially 3 months this has been 
extended to 1st Aug with a view of 
rolling this out to all providers.

To be reviewed 1/8/18

1/6/18 – 1/11/18

Publicity Campaign 

Pilot running

Aug 2018

Aug 2018

Nov 2018

Q2

Q2

Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Whole 
System

Domiciliary Care New Commission for Care at Home Services  - New commission go live April 2019 April 2019 Jacqui Evans (CCG 

P
age 103



Appendix 8

14
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Recommission Specification in progress & WBC)

Reablement (STAR) Wirral Short Term Assessment and 
Reablement Service (STAR) is a Collaborative 
Service Partnership Model, originally set up 
between Wirral Council’s Department of Adult 
Social Services, WCFT and the Independent 
Sector for the provision of short term 
assessment and reablement services to 
maximise and promote independence as well 
as securing longer term efficiencies on local 
authority expenditure on domiciliary care by 
ensuring that people have timely support to 
recover and regain skills and independence 
following illness or injury.   

The current service model sees the front-line 
enablement part of the service provided via 2 
independent sector providers ie Community 
Caring as tier 1 provider backed up by 
Professional Carers, with the assessment and 
quality control part of the service provided by 
WCFT through staff based within locality 
teams and at Wirral University Teaching 
Hospital.  

The home based element of the Reablement 
service provides personal care, help with 
activities of daily living and other practical 
tasks , free of charge for a time-limited period 
of up to 6 weeks, in such a way as to enable 
users to develop both the confidence and 
practical skills to carry out these activities 
themselves.  These services are provided with 
the support of occupational therapy services 
which provides a time limited plan for 
improvements to physical functioning and 
participation in activities of daily living.

Reablement is part of a Remodelling 
exercise together with Rapid 
Community Response and Homefirst 
services – to be completed by end of 
September 2018 with the aim of 
creating one ‘Community Offer’ that 
works alongside and links closely with 
Dom Care

Q3 Val McGee 
(WCT)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

P
age 104



Appendix 8

15
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Priority Area 14 – Therapy Redesign                                                                                                                                                  Ref. UC014
                      
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

Development of a 
New Service Model

Joint recruitment: carried out joint 
recruitment in relation to band 5 
Physiotherapist.  Developed joint JD for core 
physiotherapy post, SLT posts and are in the 
development of joint core JD’s for Dietetics 
and Occupational therapy

Agreed to shared rotation of OT and 
Physiotherapy rotational staff with the new 
extended rotations taking place from March 
19.  This is not happening sooner due to the 
WUTH September 18 rotations having already 
been agreed with the rotational staff.

Trailed using a shared band system as are in 
the process of developing a shared bank 
process to assist in the covering of vacancies. 

Co-operation agreement in place between the 
two organisations (WUTH & WCFT) and a 
Memorandum of understanding and 
information sharing agreement should 
hopefully be signed off by end of July allowing 
staff to cross freely between services and have 
access to each other’s documentation 
systems.  

WCFT have already begun to place community 
staff within the WUTH Un-planned care team 
environment to improve patient referrals, 
assist patient transition and “pull” patients 
from the hospital into the community.

Working with commissioners and other 
health partners to develop a new 
shared model of rehabilitation to 
ensure equity of rehabilitation 
provided, and utilising pooled resources 
to improve the quality of service 
provided and patient outcomes. 

Working with commissioners to develop 
a outcome tool kit for rehabilitation and 
therapeutic intervention which will 
allow for benchmarking of services and 
assessment of patient centred 
outcomes.

From September 2018 the AHP 
integration steering group is changing 
into the Wirral AHP Managers meeting 
which will have representation from 
CWP, WUTH and WCFT to ensure that 
all issues are shared across the services 
and resources can be allocated 
correctly to where required. Thus 
making integration business as usual. 

Further work is currently ongoing to 
look at what other services and 
pathways can be integrated and all 
services have be RAG rated in relation 
to their appropriateness and readiness 
to integrate.

Ongoing

Ongoing

Sept 2018

Ongoing

Allistair 
Leinster/Natalie 
Park

Whole 
System

Review of Current 
Therapy Offer in 
T2A Beds

Review of T2A Therapy capacity and 
deployment

Neighbourhood development

Review the functional allocation of T2A 
patients to cohort based on acuity and 
rehab potential

Safe Sustainable Staffing review for T2A

Engage in development of 

July 2018

June 2018

Sept 
2018

Allistair 
Leinster/Natalie 
Park

P
age 105



Appendix 8

16
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

neighbourhood leadership teams

Ensure robust pathways linked to 
neighbourhood model to improve 
access and timely intervention to 
prevent admission and facilitating 
discharge.

Sept 2018

Develop 
Performance 
Measures

Currently Service Outcome measures across 
WCT and WHT.  Work commencing on 
standardising measures across the two 
organisations

Review of measures with 
commissioners and standardise the 
core measures looking at TOM’s and 
BARTHEL

End of Q2 Allistair 
Leinster/Natalie 
Park

Priority Area 15 – 7-Day Response                                                                                                                                                      Ref. UC015
                     

Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Staffing A seven day working review was undertaken 

during February and March 2018.  
Recommendations will be taken forward for 
further work with providers to ensure a 7 day 
offer in as many services as possible moving 
forward.

Embed 7 day principles into all re-
design work around community offer 
and Community bed offer.

Implement the recommendation from 
the review.

Q2

Q2

Val McGee 
(WCT)/Antony 
Middleton 
(WUTH)/Jacqui 
Evans (CCG & 
WBC)

Transport Transport to facilitate discharges is a key 
priority over winter. Escalation arrangements 
with PTS provider (WMAS) include refusing 
requests for same-day bookings for outpatient 
appointments in order to reserve capacity for 
discharges. 

A programme of work is ongoing 
between WMAS, CCG and WUTH to 
further develop working relationships 
and refine operational processes in 
order to maximise use of PTS for 
discharges. 

Ongoing Ian Williams 
(CCG)/Nesta 
Hawker (CCG)/ 
Shaun Brown 
(WHT)

Whole 
System

Age UK Transport Age UK 7 day transport and settling at home 
service. The aim is to proactively prevent re-
admissions by transporting patients home and 
supporting with immediate tasks and ongoing 
support from Age UK Homes and Communities 
service. Particularly for patients with complex 
social needs.

Continue to embed Age UK Going Home 
service within discharge lounge and 
ensure appropriate patients are 
referred.

ongoing Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)

Priority Area 16 – Flu Planning & Infection Control                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Flu Planning Wirral Seasonal Flu Group (including 

representatives of Wirral Health and Social 
Care organisations, Wirral Council and NHS 
England) meets throughout the year to 

Wirral Seasonal Flu Group to continue 
monthly meetings through the 2018-19 
flu season

July 2018 
onwards

Julie Webster Acting 
DPH (WBC)

Elspeth Anwar (WBC)

Elspeth Anwar 
(WBC)/ Paul 
Simpon 
(WCT)/Gaynor 

P
age 106



Appendix 8

17
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

facilitate co-ordination of seasonal flu 
preparedness. This includes individual 
organisationalplanning for staff vaccination, 
population vaccine programme 
implementation and communications during 
the season. This enables sharing of 
intelligence and best practice, reduces 
duplication, and supports effective 
surveillance.   

Each local health and social care organisation 
is responsible for ensuring that plans are in 
place for effective vaccination of essential 
staff. This is monitored monthly by NHSE and 
reviewed in the Flu Group.

All community and acute paediatric and 
maternity services promote uptake of the 
seasonal flu vaccine.

Primary Care organisations ensure adequate 
stocks of vaccine and promote uptake with 
key population groups.

Wirral’s Community Infection Prevention and 
Control (IPC) team continue to actively target 
higher-risk care homes to strengthen infection 
prevention and control measures.  This 
includes strengthening hygiene measures, 
encouraging vaccination of all care home staff 
and residents, and early recognition and 
control measures to limit the spread of any 
illness or outbreak. 

All Wirral care homes are provided with a 
Seasonal Flu Resource Pack on how to prepare 
for, prevent, and manage flu outbreaks. They 
are also supported directly to prepare for the 
flu season by strengthen infection prevention 
and control measures and actively providing 
and encouraging access to flu vaccination for 
all residents and staff. 

Vaccination programmes for staff 
initiated

Monitoring uptake as programs 
commence. 

Flu vaccination promotion materials 
sent to community services.

IPC team activity reports

Sending out of resource packs. 

Vaccinations being offered and 
encouraged across independent sector 
providers-dom care and residential and 
nursing homes

Sept 2018 
onwards

October 
2018

August 
2018

Sept 2018

Sept 2018

Sept 2018 
onwards

All Health and Social 
Care Organisations

Wirral CCG

Wirral CCG

Wirral Council

Wirral Community 
Trust IPC Team

Wirral Council

Wirral Community 
Trust IPC Team

Westeray (WHT

P
age 107



Appendix 8

18
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

Services are commissioned to ensure timely 
access to antivirals in the event of an outbreak 
in a care home both in and out of hours. 

Deliver the school-based vaccination 
programme.

Partners from the Wirral Seasonal Flu Group, 
including NHS England Screening and 
Immunisation Team and Wirral Council Public 
Health work together to identify resources 
and target a local seasonal flu information 
campaign to increase vaccination amongst 
potential transmission groups and ‘at-risk’ 
cohorts. Proposed focus on pregnant women, 
young children and people with long term 
conditions.

Delivery of agreed seasonal flu 
campaign actions

Commence 
Oct 2018

Sept – 
January 
2018/19

Wirral CCG

Wirral Community 
NHS Trust

Wirral Seasonal Flu 
Group 

Infection Control WCT & WUTH have Infection Control 
protocols in place and more detailed Winter 
plans will be developed.

PENDING WUTH INPUT

WCT will continue to provide specialist 
advice, support and training for Care 
Homes, this includes outbreak 
management working closely with GPs

The WCFT IPC service follows PHE 
national guidance.  This is aimed at 
reducing avoidable admission and 
improving care home bed occupancy

WCT will repeat the successful flu 
campaign for Trust staff

WCT will continue to work with 
commissioners to develop a model for 
antiviral provision in care homes

Q2

Q2

Q2

Q2

Paul Simpon 
(WCT)/ Joe Allan 
(WHT)/Lorna 
Quigley (CCG)

Priority Area 17 – CHC       
                                                                                                                                                                                              
Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner

CHC Wirral CCG and DASS have commissioned 
Transfer to assess (T2A) beds in a nursing 
home. MDT support, to ensure timely 
assessments. IDT (acute) transfer all potential 
CHC patients to T2A, and checklists are 

Iain Stewart (CCG)

P
age 108



Appendix 8

19
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

completed outside of the acute. 

In order to facilitate the process a transfer to 
assess form has been developed.

Assessments in acute setting = less than 15%

Positive Checklist and decision made within 28 
days = 80% of cases

Fast Track process optimised – 90% of 
packages in place within 48 hours

Maintain current performance for 
18/19 (cumulative position Q4 17/18 = 
13%)

Improve performance from 76% at Q4 
17/18 to 80% - additional nursing staff 
investment agreed for 18/19 (4.0 wte)

Improve performance from current 75% 
to 90% - dedicated CHC team member 
assigned to in-reach to acute-setting to 
optimise fast track process

Implementation of IEG4 to digitalise 
NHS CHC & Complex care,  to improve 
patients journey, deliver robust timely 
patient assessments, and use resources 
effectively and efficiently

On-going

By end Q2

By end Q2

Priority Area 18 – 7 Day Exec Cover                                                                                                                                                                             

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
7 Day Exec Cover Agreeing  7 day Exec cover for the urgent care 

system.  Review of daily escalation and 
conference call.  To be implemented mid 
October 18.

Discussions and agreement at Exec with 
recommendation to A&E Delivery Board

Mid 
October 
2018 until 
April 2019

Janelle Homes 
(WUH)
Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH(
Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)
Val McGee (WCT)

Priority Area 19 – Mental Health Services                                                                                                                                                                  

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Mental Health 
Services

Mental health crisis care - working through 
the crisis care concordat group to focus on 
improving mental health crisis support across 
Wirral.  Beyond places of safety DOH bid 

Psychiatric liaison - core 24 service 
implemented (additional psychology 
and nursing resource in situ) to reduce 
both A&E attendances (for repeat 

Sept 18 – 
March 19

Jo Watts (CCG)
Suzanne Edwards 
(CWP)
Sarah Quinn 

P
age 109



Appendix 8

20
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

successful which will result in development of 
alternative place of safety (calm zone – 
2020/21) and the development of an 
alternative mental health assessment area to 
be in place at Springview during 2018/19. 

Children and young peoples out of hours 
advice line has now been launched and will 
result in reduced attendance at A&E and 
increase in Mental health assessments to be 
undertaken out of hours to paediatric wards. 

attenders) and also reduce LOS for 
patients with mental health needs.  
Monitoring metrics in process of being 
agreed.

Street triage – extension of hours in 
street triage with the police and NWAS. 
Aim to reduce section 136 and A&E 
attendances for patients in crisis and 
also reduce NWAS conveyances too 
A&E. 

Project group developing PID with 
agreed timeframes relating to Calmzone 
and MH assessment area. 

(CWP)

Priority Area 20 – Contingency Plan B – OPEL 4/Non delivery of plan                                                                                                                     

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner
Contingency Plan B 
– OPEL 4/Non 
delivery of plan

Contingency Opel 2/3/4/ Planning – will be 
based on triggers identified from the Capacity 
& Demand Modelling.  

Contingency plan to be developed 
during July & August 2018

July – Aug 
2018

Janelle Homes 
(WUH)
Anthony 
Middleton 
(WUTH(
Jacqui Evans (CCG 
& WBC)
Val McGee (WCT)
Suzanne Edwards 
(CWP)

Priority Area 21 – Primary Care                                                                                                                                                                                          

Theme Programme Description Actions Timescale SDIP Target Acc Owner 
Primary Care 
supporting Winter 
Plan

GP Urgent Care Access Increased GP appointments compared 
to 17/18 via the Wirral GP Access Hubs 
service (180 hours per week or 720 
appointments per week)

All GP practices will be advised to focus 
on urgent care needs over the 
XMAS/New Year Period 2018/19.

All practices are advised to ensure 

Q1-Q4 Martyn Kent

P
age 110



Appendix 8

21
Winter Plan 2018/19 Appendix 12 28th June 2018

anticipatory care plans are in place for 
vulnerable patients over winter e.g. 
COPD Exacerbation plan/Flu 
Immunisation

Subject to additional funding and 
workforce availability offer additional 
GP appointments via (1) GP practices in 
hours and (2) Wirral GP Access Hubs 
out of hours (over and above the 180 
hours)

Enhanced GP service to Care Homes 
rolled out to 50% of Dual registered 
Care Homes plans to roll out to all 
homes by end of Q4

Online consultations will be rolled out 
from Summer 18 in some GP practices.

Q4

Q2

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
18 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE Draft Commissioning and Transformation Strategy

REPORT OF Director of Care and Health

REPORT SUMMARY

The draft Commissioning and Transformation Strategy shares the high level plans and 
commissioning priorities of Wirral Health and Care Commissioning up to 2021.

The Strategy is intended to share the outcomes that will provide the focus for 
commissioning.  The framework for the development of place based commissioning, and 
outlines our vision of how we will move to commission on population based health and 
care outcomes.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to comment upon the Draft Commissioning and 
Transformation Strategy prior to final version being presented in August to the Joint 
Strategic Commissioning Board.

Page 113

Agenda Item 5a



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
Report remains in draft to enable partners to comment on the strategy.

 
2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

NA

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Wirral Health and Care Commissioning (WHCC) was brought together as a 
strategic partnership to form a single commissioning function and to lead the 
development of a more integrated Health and Care System for Wirral.  The 
Commissioning and Transformation Strategy outlines the high level commissioning 
intentions for Wirral up to 2020/21.

WHCC is responsible for setting the commissioning agenda and will lead the 
development of a Place Based Care System (PBCS) in Wirral. The focus will be on 
people and place, not on organisations.  The transformation of service delivery is 
expected to reduce need for high cost acute care and improve health and wellbeing, 
reducing the need for long term care.  The aim is to improve the outcomes for the 
people of Wirral and also to deliver sustainable services, both clinically and 
financially.  Place Based Care is being developed in response to the challenges that 
the Wirral health and care system faces.  These include constrained funding, 
increasing demand, fragmentation of services and the need to deliver better health, 
better care and better value for the people of Wirral.  

The aim of the place based model is that local people who access care will have 
seamless care pathways and that there will be more focus on enabling people to 
remain well, without the need of help from traditional formal services.  

Our ambition for providing services at the most appropriate local level has led to the 
development of the 51 – 9 – 4 – 1 model.  This footprint has been developed on 
population needs and the 9 neighbourhoods as outlined in the Strategy will be the 
focal delivery point for care, which will be ‘wrapped around’ the person.  Therefore 
the neighbourhood’s development is our priority for 2018/19.  These neighbourhood 
teams will have an integrated workforce spanning primary, secondary, mental 
health and social care, and importantly community and voluntary groups.  

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The delivery of place based commissioning and neighbourhood working is strongly 
linked to the effective use of resources across the health and care system. 
 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Major services changes associated with the strategy will require consultation and 
will be subject to scrutiny.

Page 114



3

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
Nothing new outside of the Healthy Wirral Programme.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
No specific risks within strategy.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
The draft Strategy has been shared with our key stakeholders in development and 
feedback has been incorporated where possible.  Following formal approval public 
engagement will be undertaken regarding the ambition to deliver services in a more 
integrated way, wrapped around people, and with a focus on self-care and 
prevention.  Further engagement will take place on the development of outcomes 
that are meaningful to the public of Wirral. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

N/A

REPORT AUTHOR: Graham Hodkinson
Director of Care and Health
telephone:  (0151) 666 3650
email:   grahamhodkinson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Draft Commissioning and Transformation Strategy

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/A

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Joint Strategic Commissioning Board 19 June 2018

Page 115

mailto:grahamhodkinson@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Final Draft ONLY
Version 0.17
Date: 29/6/2018

Wirral Health and Care Commissioning

Commissioning & Transformation Strategy

2018-2021

Page 117



Page | 2 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Commissioning and Transformation Strategy outlines the high level commissioning intentions 
of the integrated commissioning team up to 2020/21.  

NHS Wirral CCG and sections of Wirral Council are coming together from April 2018 to form a 
single commissioning function, Wirral Health and Care Commissioning (WHaCC).  WHaCC will 
jointly commission all age health, care and public health services for the Wirral population.

WHaCC will be responsible for setting the commissioning agenda and will lead the development of 
a Place Based Care System (PBCS) in Wirral. The focus will be on people and place, not on 
organisations.  The transformation of service delivery is expected to reduce need for high cost 
acute care and improve health and wellbeing, reducing the need for long term care.  The aim is to 
improve the outcomes for the people of Wirral and also to deliver sustainable services, both 
clinically and financially.  Placed based care is being developed in response to the challenges 
Wirral health and care system faces of constrained funding, increasing demand, fragmentation of 
services and the need to deliver better health, better care and better value for the people of Wirral.  

The ambition of providing services at the most appropriate local ‘place’ level has led to 
development of the '51-9-4-1 model'  based on supporting health and delivering care at the most 
appropriate level. The intention is for services and pathways of care to be delivered through the 51 
(as at January 2018) General Practices, nine neighbourhoods, four localities and one district.  
Development of the nine neighbourhoods is a priority for 2018/19 as this will be the cornerstone of 
place based care.  Neighbourhood teams, with representatives from a variety of health and care 
disciplines and organisations, will be led by a GP, and will focus on the implementation of care to 
meet the needs of people within the neighbourhood.  

By 2021/22 WHaCC will have contracts for the PBCS for the delivery of agreed population based 
outcomes. The contract will incentivise a shift in resources to community, primary care and 
prevention services and initiatives to achieve a reduction in demand on hospital and long term care 
services.  

In order to enable the transition and development of a PBCS, Wirral Integrated Commissioning will 
phase in the approach for segments of the population as follows:-  

o 2019/20 – older people (50+) – with a focus on frailty pathways
o 2020/21 – all adults
o 2021/22 – all age population

Collaborative work will be undertaken during 2018 to develop the prospectus, which will outline the 
required delivery of care, for the first segment of the population.  Wide engagement will be 
essential to ensure that the prospectus is co-produced with the public and wide health and care 
provider system.  The prospectus will outline the agreed outcomes important to the people of 
Wirral and define how services can be transformed to meet these outcomes.  Providers will be 
required to work collaboratively together to deliver integrated services/pathways, which are 
sustainable, resilient and flexible to meet the holistic health and care needs of patients and 
improve patients’ experience and outcomes.  

During the next two years WHaCC will continue to commission services in different ways and 
identify opportunities to facilitate the development of a PBCS.  We will seek to develop formal 
contracts only with Providers who are working in collaborative arrangements required to deliver the 
defined outcomes. We intend to use contracting models in these areas to move towards the new 
PBCS approach, these will be viewed as enablers supporting the system move towards the aim of 
a PBCS by 2021.

Page 118



Page | 3 

2. INTRODUCTION

This Commissioning and Transformation Strategy sets out the key priorities and plans of the NHS 
Wirral CCG and Wirral Council partnership (known as Wirral Health and Care  Commissioning).

From 2020/21 Wirral Health and Care  Commissioning (WHaCC) will undertake place based 
commissioning to improve population health outcomes in Wirral. This strategy outlines our vision, 
how we will move towards the commissioning of high level population based health and care 
outcomes, and the timeline for achieving this change. 

Our strategy is intended to support, in a phased approach, a level of collaboration between local 
providers that enables the development of a Wirral Place Based Care System (PBCS) focused on 
people and not organisations. A timeline is shared within this Strategy for the stepped changes that 
are required in order to achieve our ambition of a PBCS.  The new commissioning model outlined 
in this document brings together health, care and public health resources in one place (under the 
WHaCC umbrella) to drive the necessary reforms and innovation needed to support the delivery of 
PBCS.

Our strategy is framed around the need to improve health and care 
outcomes for Wirral residents. The case for change within this strategy is 
clear that we have opportunities to improve our outcomes. 
Transformation in the way we commission and deliver services is 
required and supported by all parties through the Healthy Wirral 
Partners Board and by Wirral Health & Well Being Board partners. 

The commissioning priorities and work programmes described in this 
strategy are designed to drive the work of our newly integrated 
commissioning team during the next three years. They are also 
designed to help our providers to design and deliver local health and 
care services which are sustainable, resilient, flexible and able to adapt 
to the changing future needs of our population and improve quality of 
life. 

This Commissioning & Transformation Strategy is a living document which will change and develop 
as the new system evolves and will be reviewed annually. 

Page 119



Page | 4 

3. STRATEGIC CONTEXT

The Strategy has been developed in the context of a number of national and local drivers. These 
include:

Local

 Healthy Wirral Plan1  www.wirralccg.nhs.uk/healthy-wirral/- Healthy Wirral is a partnership plan with the 
aim of transforming how health and wellbeing services are delivered and designed in Wirral, 
putting residents at the heart of services.

 The Wirral Plan: A2020 Vision(2015) 2 www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision – The Wirral 
Plan is a set of twenty pledges which the Council and partners are working to deliver by 2020. 
The plan has three main themes: People (protecting the most vulnerable in the borough); 
Business (driving economic growth) and Environment (improving the local environment). 

 NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group Operational Plan (2017/18)3 www.wirralccg.nhs.uk/about-
us/plans-publications-and-reports/ - A one-year operational plan which describes the NHS Wirral Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (Wirral CCG) actions and priorities throughout this period.

 Wirral Residents Live Healthier Lives Strategy (2016)4 
www.wirralintelligenceservice.org/media/2119/residents-live-healthier-lives-strategy.pdf www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdfGP- 
The strategy is looking to address lifestyle change and work with local people to support them 
to take control over their health and wellbeing.

National

 Better Care Fund – Care Act (2014) drives integration of health, care and other public services

 NHS 5 Year Forward View (2014)5 www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf - sets out the 
strategic vision for the NHS by 2020/21. It details a shared view on how services need to 
change and the models of care that will be required in the future.

 Next Steps on the NHS Five Year Forward View (2017)6 www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/03/NEXT-STEPS-ON-THE-NHS-FIVE-YEAR-FORWARD-VIEW.pdf- sets out the strategic vision 
for the NHS by 2020/21. It details a shared view on how services need to change and the 
models of care that will be required in the future.

Page 120

http://www.wirralccg.nhs.uk/healthy-wirral/
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision
http://www.wirralccg.nhs.uk/about-us/plans-publications-and-reports/
http://www.wirralccg.nhs.uk/about-us/plans-publications-and-reports/
http://www.wirralintelligenceservice.org/media/2119/residents-live-healthier-lives-strategy.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdfGP
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/NEXT-STEPS-ON-THE-NHS-FIVE-YEAR-FORWARD-VIEW.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/NEXT-STEPS-ON-THE-NHS-FIVE-YEAR-FORWARD-VIEW.pdf


Page | 5 

 General Practice Forward View (2016) – sets out the NHS strategic plan for the development of 
Primary Care by 2020/21 

 Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (2016) – sets out the NHS strategic plan for the 
development of mental health services by 2020/21

 Transforming Care Programme for Learning Disabilities and/or Autism (2015) -    national 
strategy for improving health and care services so that more people can live in the community, 
with the right support, and close to home.                                       
https://www.england.nhs.uk/learning-disabilities/care/

None of the above narrative is new and whilst all the above strategies and plans have similar aims 
and objectives there has not previously been a single, place based, narrative that brought together 
a “Golden Thread” for the Wirral health and social care system and local people. The Healthy 
Wirral Partners Board therefore came together in May and June 2017 to agree a single Case for 
Change, Mission, Vision, Strategy, Benefits and set of Strategic Outcomes – a golden thread that 
key local stakeholders could buy into providing partners with a core baseline against which to 
transform. This single version of the truth has been used as a reference for the commissioning and 
transformation strategy presented in this document and can be used track our progress going 
forward. 

Figure 1– The Wirral Golden Thread

Page 121

https://www.england.nhs.uk/learning-disabilities/care/


Page | 6 

4. CASE FOR CHANGE
 
Health & Well Being

Wirral’s population is just over 321,000 people.  It is a borough of contrasts, both in its physical 
characteristics and demographics.  Rural, urban and industrialised areas sit side by side in a 
compact peninsula.  Despite its small area, the health and wellbeing of people in Wirral is varied, 
both across the peninsula itself and when compared with the England average7 Public Health England: 
Wirral Health Profile 2017.  http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-
profiles(see also Appendix B).

Wirral is one of the 20% most deprived districts in 
England and about 24% of children live in low income 
families, with significant problems relating to alcohol 
usage in both adults and young people.

 

Life expectancy is 11.7 years lower for men 
and 9.7 years lower for women in the most 
deprived areas of Wirral compared to the least 
deprived areas.   

The number of physically active adults across Wirral is 
significantly lower than the England average. 

These issues present a difficult challenge for public 
health, commissioners and providers of health and 
care services across the region.

For the younger population there are some key issues to address:

 One in four children in Reception are overweight or obese
 One in three children in Year 6 are overweight or obese
 The number of Looked after Children is still too high at 842 (as at 8th January 2018)
 A head teachers survey (Dec 2017) which asked about the key issues affecting the mental 

health and wellbeing of pupils identified; lack of self-confidence, low self-esteem and poor self-
image as having the greatest impact. This was followed by exam/school pressure, behavioural 
problems and issues in the home/family environment.

People are living longer and it is estimated that by 2031 the proportion of older people aged 65 and 
over will have increased faster than any other age group. This is key, because older people are 
more likely to be living with complex health conditions, necessitating regular intervention from 
health and care services.  

Page 122

http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles
http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles


Page | 7 

Consequently, health and social care services across Wirral - in line with the rest of England – are 
experiencing a period of sustained financial pressure.  Demand for health and care services are 
increasing, at the same time that the funding for health and care services remains flat (or is 
decreasing in real terms)8 Wirral Council and NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group Integrated Commissioning : Financial 
Risks and Mitigations (PwC, September 2017). The statistics below provide a snapshot of some of the issues 
that Wirral faces:

What causes Wirral residents to die early?  
The key reasons of causes of what is classed as avoidable deaths has been analysed by Wirral’s 
Intelligence Service.  The main causes are outlines in Figure 2 below:

Page 123



Page | 8 

Figure 2 - Causes of avoidable mortality in Wirral 2014-2016 (calendar years) pooled data

As Figure 2 shows, the largest cause of avoidable death in Wirral for the period 2014-16 was
Cancer (neoplasms). Definitions of avoidable conditions are produced nationally and relate to 
specific age ranges12. For example, a death from breast cancer is considered avoidable if it occurs 
under the age of 75, whereas deaths from falls are avoidable at all ages

Cancer accounted for 1 in 3 of all avoidable deaths in Wirral (n=844) in this period. The next 
largest cause was cardiovascular disease (CVD), which accounted for 1 in 4 of all avoidable 
deaths (24% or 596 deaths). Reductions in smoking and other risk factors produce reductions in 
CVD more quickly than cancer. Hence, deaths from CVD are falling while deaths from cancer are 
not reducing as quickly.  It is worth noting that alcohol will have had a wider impact than the 119 
deaths from alcohol-related liver disease reported, as it will have made a sizeable contribution to 
deaths from other causes such as circulatory disease, cancer and digestive disease.

In addition to the above drivers, expectations from the public have increased and there is rising 
public expectations of the NHS for personal and convenient care and effectiveness of prevention. 
Services need to deliver more personalised, patient centred services. Expectations have also risen 
due to new forms of diagnosis and treatment which have contributed to long term improvements in 

population health.

Financial Pressures 
The Wirral health and care system is facing financial pressures and changes are required, in order 
to ensure health and care services are sustainable in the future and able to meet the predicted 
changes in the Wirral population. Within Wirral, organisations are facing significant financial 
challenges. A “do nothing” approach would see the expected funding gap over the next five years 
increase substantially.

Between 2011/12 and 2015/16 spending on NHS Foundation Trusts and NHS Trusts increased by 
11%, while Council spending on adult social care has reduced by 10% since 2009/10 (17% in real 
terms). Adult social care is the most unpredictable element of a Council’s budget and is not ring Page 124



Page | 9 

fenced, this makes it almost impossible for councils to completely protect social care from cuts. 
During the same period the number of ‘people aged 65 and over’ has increased in England at more 
than twice the rate of the increase in the population as a whole. It is more difficult for people to get 
publicly funded social care, with the numbers of people receiving social care having fallen by 25% 
since 2009. This lack of access to social care is increasing the potential risk of people being 
delayed in hospital when they are ready to be discharged. 

The continuation of these trends will result in three widening gaps:
 
1) A health and wellbeing gap – a failure to prioritise primary prevention, health promotion and 

self-care will stall improvements in life expectancy and health inequalities will widen

2) A care and quality gap – unless care is integrated and re-designed to tackle variations in 
quality and safety, then patients’ needs will go unmet

3) A funding and efficiency gap – if demand is not controlled across health and social care, and if 
services are not integrated to maximise efficiencies, minimise duplication at a time of resource 
constraints, the financial challenges and pressures for the commissioners of health and care 
services across Wirral will result in worse services, fewer staff, deficits and restrictions on new 
treatments.

The financial challenge facing the Cheshire & Merseyside health system is significant. The ‘do nothing’ 
financial gap for this area is forecast at c.£908million by 2020/219 
www.democracy.wirral.gov.uk/documents/s50037828/STP%20Update%20with%20Cheshire%20and%20Wirral%20LDS%20Plan%2016
1116.pdf- with Cheshire and Wirral facing a c.£314m financial gap.  The NHS in Wirral is facing an estimated 
£100m gap in the same period10 Source: Outputs from Healthy Wirral Accountable Care Workshops (May & June 2017). 
Workshops facilitated by PwC involved: NHS Wirral CCG, Wirral Council, Wirral Community NHS Trust, Wirral GP Provider (GPW-FED) 
Limited, Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Cheshire & Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and Primary 
Care Wirral Limited. It is forecast that Wirral Council will be required to reduce its spending or generate more 
income, by at least £130 million by 
202111www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Performance%20and%20spending/2017-
2021%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20.pdf. 

By 2020/21 the financial position of the health and care system in Wirral is projected to result in a 
£124 million deficit if no changes are made to how services are delivered.

Within the Healthy Wirral Programme we have committed to creating a health and care system that 
will be financially balanced and sustainable by 2020/21.  Delivering our ambitions for a new way of 
commissioning, as outlined in this strategy will contribute to meeting the financial challenge whilst 
also ensuring that services  meet the needs of local people by achievement of outcomes agreed 
with them and the system.  

The Key Issues

There is a strong case for changing the commissioning and delivery of health and care in Wirral, as 
the current system is not sustainable for the following reasons:

 An ageing population is increasing demand and pressure on the system
 Wirral people have poor health outcomes relative to the England average
 There is a wide variation in outcomes across Wirral – there is a difference in 11 years in life 

expectancy between the east and west side of Wirral peninsula
 Our health and care organisations do not always work effectively together so people do not 

always receive joined up care

Page 125

http://www.democracy.wirral.gov.uk/documents/s50037828/STP%20Update%20with%20Cheshire%20and%20Wirral%20LDS%20Plan%20161116.pdf
http://www.democracy.wirral.gov.uk/documents/s50037828/STP%20Update%20with%20Cheshire%20and%20Wirral%20LDS%20Plan%20161116.pdf
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Performance%20and%20spending/2017-2021%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20.pdf
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Performance%20and%20spending/2017-2021%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20.pdf


Page | 10 

 Too many people spend too much time in hospital, when they could be cared for in a more 
appropriate setting

 People have increased expectations of the care they should receive
 Without significant transformation in both the commissioning and provision of health and care 

there will be not be the workforce available or sufficient funding to maintain the quality and 
standards that we want local people to experience.

Page 126



Page | 11 

5. MISSION & VISION

System Wide Transformation – Towards Place Based Commissioning

The Healthy Wirral Partnership recently agreed a mission and vision statement as below: 

Mission

Better health and wellbeing in Wirral by working together

Vision for Wirral Place Based Care System

To enable all people in Wirral to live longer and healthier lives by taking simple steps of their own 
to improve their health and wellbeing.  By achieving this together we can provide the very best 
health and social care services when people really need them, as close to home as possible.

The vision stresses the importance of preventing ill health and our people being in the right place 
at the right time.  The outcomes highlighted in blue are what local people can expect to experience.

The members of the Healthy Wirral Partners Board are committed to working together to ensure 
that every penny we spend of the Wirral pound will deliver an improvement in line with the strategic 
objectives of Healthy Wirral which are outlined in figure3 below.

Triple Aim: Figure 3

Page 127



Page | 12 

A proposed outcomes framework is included here (and in more detail within the Appendix) which 
shows the partnership’s commitment to measuring the progress of transformation plans against the 
health and care priorities that matter to local people. For local people using health and care 
services in Wirral that means a way to measure whether the services they receive (activities) will 
improve their health, wellbeing and experience of care and support (outcomes). The full outcomes 
framework is included in the Appendix, including indicators and measures. Before these draft 
outcomes are adopted, work will be undertaken with people and other stakeholders to agree the 
outcomes indicators, measures and level of achievement expected.  A high-level summary of the 
outcomes framework is provided below. 

Figure 4 – Healthy Wirral Outcomes

As part of the future place based care system, these outcomes will be reviewed and additional outcomes 
developed in partnership with local people and the wider health and care system.

In order to deliver the Healthy Wirral and 2020 Plan,  Wirral Partners Board have agreed a number of 
enabling and primary work streams which are shown below.  Each of these have identified leads from 
across the system and will report progress.  The primary work streams are also reflected in the 
commissioning intentions described within this Strategy. 

Page 128



Page | 13 

6. Wirral Health and Care Commissioning (WHaCC)

In order to facilitate the development of PBCS fundamental changes are required in how 
commissioners and providers work together.  In December 2017 Wirral Council and Wirral CCG 
presented papers through their governance arrangements advocating the development of joint 
commissioning arrangement for health and social care. Both the Council Cabinet and CCG 
Governing Board recognised that to deliver sustainable high-quality care to the populations they 
served that they needed to look beyond their own organisational boundaries to ensure that 
collective resources could be deployed to maximum benefit. The proposals for a new 
commissioning model for Wirral to reflect this stated ambition have been in development for over a 
year.

Our vision for the commissioning model is designed to:

 Drive implementation of the new arrangements
 Be aspirational

Vision for Wirral Health and Care Commissioning Model

A single, fully integrated commissioning body (joint vehicle) with the delegated authority to 
commission all age health, social care and public health services for the Wirral population 

– using a single budget, under a single governance arrangement and a fully integrated 
management structure.

Page 129



Page | 14 

It is assumed that Commissioners will remain statutorily responsible for improving the health and 
wellbeing of the populations they serve. The role of the CCG and Council as system leaders is 
crucial in shaping the provider landscape, orchestrating the set of provider relationships that allow 
the PBCS to come into being and ensuring that the PBCS is commissioned in a way that delivers 
maximum value.

WHaCC will be responsible, in conjunction with residents and patients, for setting the population 
level outcomes that the PBCS will be expected to deliver and for holding the PBCS to account for 
delivery. It is recognised that commissioners will need to move to contract in a different way for the 
future PBCS partnership. Our role will be to:

 Commission services that provide better health, better care and better value by improving 
health and care outcomes for the people of Wirral

 Focus on place and population health needs, taking a holistic view of health, care and wider 
public-sector reform - setting outcome measures at the population level and defining the broad 
models of care required from providers

 Ensure statutory duties are met

 Ensure that outcomes are co-produced with the people of Wirral and that commissioned 
services address equity and reduce the variation in health outcomes and years of life with 
disease burden currently experienced by local people.

 Develop integrated health and care strategic planning arrangements 

 Ensure alignment with broader public services e.g. employment, education and housing

 Keep abreast of national and international best practice ensuring that this is implemented by 
providers as appropriate

 Commission population based contracts – we will commission a system on behalf of the whole 
population not services from individual providers

 Support the development of a Place Based Care System that provides safe, high quality, 
evidence based, appropriate services offering choice, where appropriate, and control to 
residents

 Continually assess the requirements and needs of the population to ensure our contracts with 
the provider system deliver population based outcomes in line with national benchmarks

 Develop innovative contracts to enable services to work together and hold providers as a whole 
to account for delivery against agreed outcomes

 Create incentives and disincentives to deliver aligned place based service aims and outcomes, 
to support innovation and best practice

 Undertake strategic market shaping and oversight

 Ensure financial, performance and quality targets are met – on a system wide basis

 Ensure continuity of care and mitigate against market failure

 Maximise the use of technology as part of the solution required to meet needs of the population

 Continue to develop the right intelligence to understand our population now and in the future to 
ensure commissioning based on resident need.

As part of the WHaCC’s approach to commissioning we will also emphasise the need to build and 
enhance an ‘asset based’ and ‘place based’ population management approach working with the 
four localities and nine neighbourhoods making up the Wirral peninsula. 

Our ambition is to drive significant behaviour change across our population, organisations and 
workforce.  Our population need to be less reliant on public services and more proactive in their 
lifestyle choices.  Our organisations need to think beyond their organisational boundaries towards Page 130



Page | 15 

people and place.  Our workforce needs to think differently in their relationships with local people 
and with other organisation.

7. COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS

WHaCC has a number of high level aims which we wish to achieve through our commissioning 
activities. 

The principles we will adopt are detailed below:-

A. Empowering Citizens and Communities. We want to support local people to take control of 
their own lives, health and care. This will require a significant culture change in our 
organisations and communities which will shift the balance of power from services and service 
providers to citizens themselves. We need our commissioning process to enable local people 
to develop the skills and confidence to take control of their own lives, reducing dependency on 
our traditionally paternalistic health and care system. New commissioning approaches to 
achieving behaviour change are a key feature of our strategy.  Our approach will be asset 
based, co-production, utilising social capital, inclusive and equitable.  

B. Commission for the ‘Whole Person’. We will commission services that will take responsibility 
for accommodating and supporting the psychological, emotional, economic and social aspects Page 131



Page | 16 

of people’s lives in seeking to improve their health, wealth and wellbeing; this includes taking 
account of the needs of the wider family. We are committed to supporting the most vulnerable 
people in the community and where long-term support is required this will be community and 
outcomes focused to maximise independence and wellbeing.

C. Create a Proactive and Holistic Population Health System. While interventions focussed on 
individuals and integrating care services for key population groups are important, these must 
be part of a broader focus on promoting health and reducing inequalities across whole 
populations.  We want to improve outcomes form individuals, local communities and the whole 
population.

Our commissioning activities need to support the development of a local population health 
system that improves the conditions in which people are born, live and work. The most 
significant factors that impact on health and wellbeing include poverty, housing, education, 
lifestyle and employment.  It will therefore be a real advantage of the close alignment of WIC to 
these wider community factors.

We need to use our collective commissioning capability and capacity to support the 
development of strong whole system leadership that will tackle these wider determinants of 
health and wellbeing. We also need to reduce the variance in health and wellbeing outcomes 
across our local system; reducing inequalities across Wirral.

D. Take a ‘Place-Based’ Commissioning Approach. Take a place based commissioning 
approach to improving health, wealth and wellbeing. By this we mean:

 Operating as one integrated system, focussing on people and places rather than 
organisations or sectors, pulling services together and integrating them around people’s 
homes, neighbourhoods and towns.  This will lead to more ‘one stop’ appointments for 
people where they can access a range of help at the same place and time ensuring 
efficiency is also achieved in the delivery of services. 

 By having a rich picture of local needs and assets we will harness these assets that exist in 
communities to align and co-ordinate them with local government, health and care services, 
for the benefit of people living in those communities.

 Increasing community resilience and supporting communities to use their own assets 
(skills, strengths and resources) to tackle the issues that affect their lives.

 Tailoring commissioning activity and care delivery to the specific needs of local 
communities taking account of the assets that already exist there, utilising an asset-based 
community development approach.

E. Target Commissioning Resources Effectively. We have a universal responsibility for 
population health. However, within this we need to differentially target our commissioning 
resources to different groups of people e.g. frail and vulnerable people and those that are 
considered at high risk.

We intend to use an approach that will breakdown the population by place, to enable services 
to adapt care and resources according to the needs of that place, and the ability to deliver the 
most benefit; this will also have a positive impact on reducing health inequalities.

We also need to target our resources towards evidence based and cost-effective care, 
optimising both outcomes and value for money and to actively decommission services that are 
not value for money and / or are not improving outcomes.  WHaCC will agree measures 
against which these decisions will be made with the people of Wirral and our stakeholders.  We 
will work with people and providers to improve outcomes. 

The use of technology and innovative interventions will be key to the delivery of these principles.

Page 132



Page | 17 

We will measure the effectiveness of our strategy using national sources of benchmarking 
information together with local information to provide us with objective and comparative 
performance data on the delivery against our outcomes. This will in turn inform our future 
commissioning intentions and our ongoing priorities.

Development of a Place Based Care System (PBCS)

Wirral CCG and Wirral Council intend to lead the development of a PBCS in Wirral through their 
actions of becoming an integrated commissioner, and the intention of moving to place based 
commissioning to improve the population health outcomes.  

Placed based care is being developed in response to the challenges Wirral health and care system 
faces of constrained funding, increasing demand, fragmentation of services and the need to deliver 
better health, better care and better value for the people of Wirral.  

In Wirral the Place Based Care System approach will build on previous efforts to integrate health 
and care services, across organisational boundaries, including the Better Care Fund. Our local 
approach will involve an alliance of providers delivering place based integrated healthcare from an 
integrated commissioner of health and social care.  Not all aspects of health and care need to 
change; indeed there is a great deal to be proud of locally. 

This strategy is designed to support the development of a Wirral Place Based Care System within 
which the providers of services work together to improve health and care for the populations they 
serve. This means organisations collaborating to manage the common resources available to them 
rather than each organisation adopting a ‘fortress mentality’ in which it acts to secure delivery of 
their individual contract, regardless of the impact on others.  The aim of our PBCS is that local 
people who access care will have seamless care pathways without any impact of organisational 
boundaries.  

For providers of health and care services there will be a requirement for commitment to work in 
partnership across a wide range of organisations that impact on the health and care of Wirral 
residents. It is recognised that there is an important role for the Third Sector and Independent 
services in the delivery of PBCS.  

As part of PBCS it will also be expected that an asset based approach will be adopted. Using asset 
based approaches considers what the assets within a community are, how assets can be 
supported and developed, what communities can do for themselves, how individuals and families 
can be enabled to connect with their community and how this impacts on outcomes.  

Development of Place

A focus on providing services at the most appropriate local ‘place’ level has led to the '51-9-4-1 
model'  based on supporting health and delivering care at the most appropriate level. The intention 
is for services to be delivered through 51* General Practices, nine neighbourhoods, four localities 
and one district. Each of the nine neighbourhoods will be made up of a population of between 30-
50,000 residents using health and care needs of the population as the building stone for the 
geographic boundary. Each of the four localities would have a population of between 60-100,000 
residents. The neighbourhoods would be contained within each of the four localities. The district 
would be where services should only be provided once at this level.   Primary care leaders, 
including General Practice (GPs), will be at the centre of the PBCS, transforming community-based 
services and care pathways for a defined population.
 

 51* Wirral general practices, ‘population health’ approach  

 9 neighbourhoods serving communities of 30-50,000 people, supporting better 
coordination and a risk-based approached to care planning 

 4 localities with more specialist servicesPage 133



Page | 18 

 1 Wirral district

Neighbourhood teams will become the cornerstone of delivery of place based care and therefore 
their development is a priority for 2018/19.  Within the neighbourhoods it is expected that services 
will collaborate to meet the needs of the people in that particular place and these needs may well 
be different from other places within Wirral.  Services will need to flex their approaches towards 
delivery and to meet these needs and achievement of system outcomes.  As General Practices 
(GPs) are at the centre, services will wrap around GPs to ensure a seamless access point and 
pathway for people. The neighbourhood teams will be led by a GP to ensure co-ordination of 
health and care.  This is expected to free up GP time as more care will be delivered proactively to 
people.   Neighbourhood services will include a number of community services such as drug and 
alcohol teams, social care teams, advocacy services, primary mental health and rapid response 
teams.   The expected benefits of the improved co-ordination between these teams include 
patients having to tell their story once due to shared information, improved knowledge of the place 
such as what is available in the community to help support people and keep them independent and 
well, and enhanced crisis prevention and intervention. 

Services within the 4 localities are also expected to collaborate with GPs and neighbourhood 
services to deliver place based care.  These services will be more specialist community services 
such as specialist mental health services, specialist out-patient clinics e.g. memory clinics and 
rehabilitation services.  

The one Wirral district will be provided from one location, such as in-patient hospital services, and 
such services will also be expected to collaborate to ensure a seamless pathway.   

51 GP Practices

There will be no change to the core GP contract national requirements.  Involved at this level is the 
team within the GP practice including all clinicians and those with special interest.  These could 
provide services for other GP practices as per local agreement. Page 134



Page | 19 

This could include the opportunity to share back office functions across practices.  

It is important to recognise that GPs are highly trained and their time should ideally be focused on:

 • managing clinical (therefore cost) risk through the long term nature of the professional 
relationship with the patient

 • managing complex patient care

 • working preventatively and proactively

 • maximising MDT team working (clinical and non-clinical) within the practice and also 
neighbourhood team engagement

• managing health seeking behaviour, specifically around low risk common conditions

The role of GPs as medical generalist will remain critical for success in delivery of care.  This 
involves deep contextual knowledge of patients and their family and social situation to understand 
and interpret symptoms and problems.  It enables GPs to hold clinical risk in the community 
without onward referral to other services.  Evidence shows that for about a quarter of patients it 
can help to ‘de-medicalise’ problems for which medicine may be unable to find an answer.  

This role of the GP practice and being able to improve the ease of access to more self-help low 
level community intervention is a critical aspect of place based care.   

Place based care will enable GPs to spend their time more effectively by freeing up capacity as a 
result of the wrap around services that will be easily accessible. 

Neighbourhoods

An integrated workforce, with a strong focus on partnerships spanning primary, secondary, mental 
health and social care and importantly community and voluntary groups.  Neighbourhoods will also 
utilise the support (assets) available in their area to the benefit of their particular population. The 
aim is to improve outcomes for people and to deliver consistent and continuity of care.  
Neighbourhoods teams will work with the GP practices and the overall approach is of one team: 

 who know and have affinity with the local population and their needs 
 to stratify the neighbourhood population to identify people who would benefit from proactive 

multidisciplinary support and co-ordinated care planning –  those people with rising risk 
 to have intervention and priority for addressing those with complex care needs, classed as 

rising risk and also those that are mainly well. 
 with knowledge of people, services and community assets and where people are 

empowered to make the best choices, plans and actions for health and wellbeing 
 who “make every contact count” to promote health and wellbeing.

The neighbourhood leadership team will be led by a GP to ensure co-ordination of the 
neighbourhood team in the delivery of health and care pathways.  There will be a clear focus on 
the delivery of prevention, early intervention and proactive care to reduce the demand for reactive 
and specialist care. 

Localities

In this footprint the pathways will join with more specialised services and teams that will be 
available in the four localities across Wirral.  These will include more specialist services, such as 
for specific long term diseases e.g. diabetes, respiratory, memory clinics and will require Page 135



Page | 20 

involvement of more specialist clinical involvement to deliver the patient care. In this part of the 
model there will be opportunity for the provision of services that are currently provided in the acute 
hospital, such as some out-patient clinics.  

Wirral District

View of overall population group and with services can only be provided at this level, such as 
provision of in-patient beds and urgent treatment centre.  These services will be part of the 
community offer and the pathway to and from hospital will need to be linked to the work of the 
neighbourhoods and localities.  There will remain a proportion of services that will need to be 
commissioned across a wider geographic footprint, such as Cheshire and Merseyside.  These 
services require a larger population in order to ensure clinical outcomes and sustainability both 
clinically and financially can be maintained.  Examples of such services are specialised services, 
emergency and patient transport services and some aspects of obesity services. 

Commissioning Approach

To support this journey of moving to PBCS the commissioning priorities and work programmes 
described in the following section are designed to drive the work of our newly integrated 
commissioning team during the next two years. As a consequence, they are also designed to help 
our providers to design and deliver local health and care services which are sustainable, adapt to 
the changing, future needs of our population and improve quality of life. 

In order to develop a Place Based Care System it will be critical to develop the system, the 
outcomes and how services are delivered with local people.  Both commissioners and providers 
will work in partnership with local people to coproduce the future outcomes and how services are 
delivered.  This will ensure that local people will be at the centre of what their care in their 
particular ‘place’ will look like in the future and what improvements they can expect.  

As outlined in the figure below, what we are describing here is the use of PBCS as means of 
delivery of population health.  This enables our system to have a wider scope and impact than 
most of the approaches to integrated care in Wirral and elsewhere in England to date. While 
interventions focused on individuals and integrating care services for key population groups are 
important, these must be part of a broader consideration on promoting health and reducing health 
inequalities across whole populations. Figure 5 – Health Systems

37

Integrated Care Models

Co-ordination of care services 
for defined groups of people 
(e.g. older people and those 

with complex needs)

Individual Care Management

Care for patients presenting 
with illness or for those at high 
risk of requiring care services

Population Health Systems

Improving health outcomes 
across whole populations, 

including the distribution of 
health outcomes

Making Every Contact Count

Active health promotion when 
individuals come into contact 
with health and care services

Populations

Individuals

Care Services Health Improvement

Unit of
Intervention

Focus of
Intervention

Improving 
population   

health requires 
interventions 

across systems

THE FOCUS OF POPULATION HEALTH SYSTEMS

Page 136



Page | 21 

Place Based Care System Commissioning Timeline

The ambition of the WHaCC is to commission on a place based care basis by 2021. The scope of 
the financial budget will be agreed as we progress towards this date.  In order to achieve this goal 
and to ensure development of a sustainable health and care system, a gradual approach will be 
adopted, where locally driven evolution will be key.  We will phase in this approach for segments of 
the population, as indicated below:

 2019/20 – older people (50+) with a focus on frailty
 2020/21 – all adults
 2021/22 – all age population

To support the approach described above the ambition of WHaCC is to work with all stakeholders 
between July and November 2018, to co-produce a prospectus.  This will include neighbourhood 
teams undertaking wide engagement and consultation with local people to ensure that they are 
involved in how services and pathways are transformed for the frailty population.  This feedback 
will form the detail within the prospectus and will define our placed based commissioning 
requirements for the frailty population and will include agreement of the definition for frailty.   We 
will outline what is expected from providers to meet the outcomes and requirements of the 
particular pathways to be agreed for inclusion within this segment of PBCS.  

The prospectus will identify our populations needs and the outcomes that are important to the 
people we serve in their particular place, and this will include defining what success looks like. 
These outcomes, against which system performance will be measured against, will be linked to our 
vision and include the proposed outcomes framework shared in the Appendix.  

On completion of the prospectus a response will be required from providers of health and care on 
how the expectations and outcomes within are to be met.  As a result of the expected 
transformation of pathway delivery it is expected that the response will be a collaborative response 
incorporating the wide provider system, including third sector and independent sector.  Within the 
response, as well as meeting the agreed PBCS outcomes it will also be a requirement for 
assurance from providers that they will meet the NHS constitutional standards.  

Commissioning/Contracting enablers for development of PBCS

As a next step towards place based care system our intention is to support the development by 
contracting for outcomes which are important to the people of Wirral.  We will work with our 
regulators in order to gain assurance on our approach.  Our future commissioning and contracting 
approach will therefore be based on the following principles:

 Delivering an agreed set of outcomes for our population ensuring our legal duty to involve 
patients in all aspects of commissioning is maintained

 Enabling providers to work together to deliver integrated services/pathways to meet the needs 
of patients and improve patients’ experience

 Enabling the development of a strategic health and care commissioner with reduced 
transactional and transformational functionality as this migrates within the remit of the PBCS.

As we transition from volume-based to value-based health and care, the population approach will 
be fertile ground for incentives around reducing risk, driving appropriate utilisation and improving
outcomes.

Contractual approach Page 137



Page | 22 

Wirral commissioners have sought to integrate pathways through contracting models.  There are 
various options for contracting and formalising how providers can work together in PBCS.  WHaCC 
will work with providers to agree the most appropriate contractual option for PBCS in the 
development of the prospectus. 

These options will include prime contracts, alliance contracts and contractual joint ventures.  Wirral 
commissioners have utilised the prime provider contracting model in order to facilitate providers to 
work collaboratively and to reduce the transactional burden of contract management on the 
commissioner.  The prime provider moves from potentially many providers holding contracts with 
the commissioner to one provider, who is responsible for the whole service pathway including 
costs, outcomes, quality etc. It is important to note that the prime provider is only one example of a 
contract framework that can be adopted to enable providers to collaborate across 
pathways/services.   Other collaborative contracting arrangements may be utilised depending upon 
specific circumstances and outcomes to be achieved and WIC will engage with providers to agree 
which option wherever feasible. 

During the next two years WHaCC will continue to commission services in a different way and 
have identified opportunities to facilitate the development of a PCBS.  These enablers are 
identified below, and we will seek to develop formal contracts only with Providers who are working 
in appropriate collaborative arrangements and the most capable to deliver the required outcomes. 
We intend to use contracting models in these areas to move towards this new PBCS approach to 
the commissioning of health, care and public health services.  These will be viewed as enablers of 
moving the system towards the aim of a PBCS by 2021 and all such services and contracts will 
become part of the future PBCS.

 Muscular Skeletal Services
 Drug and Alcohol Services
 Urgent Care Service
 Frailty pathways
 Obesity
 Mental Health –  integration of primary 

and secondary mental health 

Figure 6 – Commissioning Timeline

Page 138



To support the approach described above WHaCC will work with local people and providers to 
develop outcomes based contracts with the characteristics of the new population, outcome based 
commissioning approach. In effect the development of contracts in these areas will represent steps 
in the transformation of our commissioning approach which we will be testing with our provider 
system including:

 Detailed outcome based service specifications
 Contracts which will have a focus and incentives for achieving outcomes
 Utilising a range of contractual approaches as we progress along the journey towards PBCS.  

http://slidehunter.com/

• MSK – Prime 
Provider Contract 
- (Summer 2018).

• Diabetes 
Pathway –
Contract Model

• Respiratory 
Pathway  –
Contract Model 
Urgent Care 
Services –
Contract Model 
TBI (December 
2018)

• Drug and 
Alcohol Services 
– Contract Model 
TBI (Date TBI).

* Work undertaken 
with PBCS to develop 
Commissioning 
Prospectus.

• Older People 
Living Well –
Contract Model TBI 
(April 2019).

• Obesity, Mental 
Health, Learning 
Disabilities, T–
Contract Model TBI 
(Date TBI).

• Shadow (Year 1) 
Older Peoples 
Population, 
Outcome Based 
contract  with 
Shadow Place 
Based Care System

• Mental health and 
IAPT/emotional 
health and 
wellbeing (Date 
TBC).

2017/18

2017

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

• Diagnostics –
Prime Provider 
Contract –
Wirral 
University 
Teaching 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 
(April 2017).

• All Adults 
population, 
outcome based 
contract with the 
Wirral PBC.

• By April 2020 
Wirral will have 
a fully integrated 
Place Based Care 
System with a 
formal 
agreement to 
collaborate on 
risk and reward 
for the benefit of 
the whole system 
to deliver 
improved value 
for money and 
improved patient 
outcomes.

Commissioning/Contracting Enablers

2021/22

• Whole 
population, 
outcome based 
contract with the 
Wirral PBC.

Page 139



Page | 24 

APPENDIX 
A. Proposed Healthy Wirral Outcomes Framework

Proposed Outcomes Framework

The Healthy Wirral Outcomes Framework shows our commitment to measuring our progress against the health and care priorities that matter 
to you. 

For local people using our services, that means a way to measure whether the services they receive (activities) will improve their health, well-
being and experience of care and support (outcomes). 

Overall we want to improve the health and wellbeing of our population, the quality and experience of health and care services, and keep this 
affordable.

Draft for Discussion

Page 140



Page | 25 

 

BETTER HEALTH

We want to improve health and wellbeing for local people

Outcomes These indicators and measures will tell us how we are doing...

Children are supported to have 
a healthy start in life

The proportion of babies who were fully or partially 
breastfed

Increase in percentage of babies aged 6-8 weeks who were fully or partially breastfed

The rate of obesity among children
Reduction in excess weight in children aged 4-5 years
Reduction in excess weight in children aged 10-11 years

The proportion of mothers known to be smokers at the 
time of delivery

Reduction in percentage of mother known to be smokers at the time of delivery

People are supported to have a 
good quality of life The proportion of people reporting a good quality of life

Improve health-related quality of life for older people 
Improve social-care-related quality of life for adults
Increase in number of people who feel they have enough social contact

The rate of overall mental wellbeing
Increase in proportion of people who say they are not anxious or depressed 
Decrease in attendances at A&E for self-harm per 100,000 of  local population

People are supported to live in 
good health The average number of years a person would expect 

to live in good health

Healthy life expectancy at birth for men 
Healthy life expectancy at birth for women

The rate of preventable deaths
Reduction in preventable mortality
Reduction in mortality amenable to healthcare

We want to reduce health inequalities for local people

Inequalities in healthy life 
expectancy are reduced

The gap in rates of obesity in children between the 
most and least deprived areas

Reduction in the gap in excess weight of 4-5 year olds between the most and least deprived areas
Reduction in the gap in excess weight of 10-11 year olds between the most and least deprived 
areas

The gap in health related quality of life for older people
between the most and least deprived areas

Reduction in the gap in health-related quality of life for older people between the most and least 
deprived areas

The gap in rates of preventable deaths between the 
most and least deprived areas

Reduction in the gap in preventable mortality between the most and least deprived areas
Reduction in the gap in mortality amenable to healthcare between the most and least deprived 
areas

Page 141



Page | 26 

We want to put people in control of their health and care

Outcomes These indicators and measures will tell us how we are doing...

People and their carers feel 
respected and able to make 
informed choices about services

The proportion of people using services who feel they 
have been involved in making decisions about their 
support

Ensure people using services receive self-directed support
People receiving services feel they have enough choice over their care and support services 
People receiving services feel they have as much control as they want over their daily life

The proportion of carers who feel they have been 
involved in decisions about services

Carers feel they have been involved or consulted as much as they wanted to be, in discussions about the 
support or services provided to the person they care for
Carers feel that their needs as a carer were taken into account in planning their support

People and their carers have 
choice and control over services 
and how they are delivered

The number of people in receipt of direct payments for 
their carer or personal heath budgets

Increase in the number of people using services who receive direct payments for their care 
Increase the number of people in receipt of personal health budgets

Increase in the number of carers using services who receive direct payments

We want good communication and access to information for local people

People can find jargon free health 
and care information in a range of 
locations and formats

The proportion of people and carers reporting they find 
it easy to access and use information about services

People find it easy to find information and advice about support, services or benefits. Carers find 
it easy to find information and advice about support, services or benefits

Carers assessments and respite arrangements are clearly articulated and understood

Health and care services talk to 
each other so that people receive 
seamless services

Carers feel connected to their communities, less 
lonely and socially isolated

People who contact us about their support have not had to keep repeating their story Carers 
who contact us about support have not had to keep repeating their story

The proportion of people and carers reporting they have only had to tell their story once

Carers are signposted to carers groups and or wider support networks

We want to deliver services that meet people's needs and support their independence

People are supported to be as 
independent as possible

People are supported to live at home and access 
support in their communities

Increase in people accessing the support available to them in their local communities
Fewer people are permanently admitted to residential and nursing care homes

The proportion of people with support needs who are in 
paid employment

Increase in the proportion  of adults with learning disabilities in paid employment
Increase in proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services in paid employment

The proportion of people who regain their 
independence after using services

Proportion of people 65+ who are still at home three months after a period of rehabilitation 
Proportion of people needing less acute, or no ongoing, support after using short-term services

People are supported to feel safe
The proportion of people and carers who report feeling 
safe

People feel as safe as they want
People feel care and support services help them feel safe Carers feel 
safe and have no worries about their personal safety

BETTER VALUE

We want to demonstrate financial and system sustainability

Outcomes These indicators and measures will tell us how we are doing...

People have access to timely and 
responsive care

The waiting times for primary care GP services and 
community support and care services

Waiting time to get a GP appointment
Waiting time to initiation for home care packages

Rapid response services enable support packages 
to be implemented in a timely manner

Response times for assessment and support planning
Effective decision making in NHS CC packages

The referral times for health treatment Constitutional NHS standards are met

The system supports the timely discharge of medically 
optimized patients back into their local community

Reduction in length of stay in hospital for identified cohort
Reduction in delayed transfer of care out of hospital

People access acute hospital services 
only when they need to

The number of people accessing hospital in an 
unplanned way

Reduction in number of A&E attendances 
Reduction in number of non-elective admissions
Reduction in emergency admissions for chronic 
ambulatory care sensitive conditions
Reduction in emergency admissions by people with alcohol and or drug related dependencies

Financial balance is achieved across 
the system

Single Population Health Budget Control totals are delivered across the system

We want to deliver joined up information technology
People and staff working within the 
system have access to shared and 
integrated electronic information

The proportion of staff in all health and care settings 
able to retrieve relevant information about an 
individual's care from their local system

Increase in proportion of staff able to retrieve relevant information about an individual's care from their local 
system using the NHS number
Increase in number of settings across which relevant health and care information is currently being shared 
(through open APIs or interim solution)
Implementation of Digital Integrated Care Records has started
Use population level health information to improve decision making and to stratify and respond to individual 
risk

We want to prioritise prevention, early intervention, self-care and self-management

Interventions take place early to tackle 
emerging problems, or to support 
people in the local population who are 
most at risk

The flow of investment from acute hospital services to 
preventative, primary GP, and community health and 
care services

Increase the proportion of funding invested in preventative, primary and community provision

The proportion of services developed to intervene 
proactively to support people before their needs 
increase

Activation measures demonstrate that people have 
knowledge skills and confidence in self care

Number of people being screened for frailty
Increase early interventions for people with psychosis

Number of people who have a care plan from a proactive service Proportion of people 
accessing services through case finding

Proportion of identified cohort who have access to active care coordination

Page 142



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
18TH JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE Supporting an integrated approach to identifying and 

assessing Carers health and wellbeing - MOU

REPORT OF Carol Jones, Commissioning Lead, Wirral Health and 

Care Commissioning

REPORT SUMMARY
A Carer can be defined as anyone who cares, unpaid, for a friend, partner or family 

member who needs help due to illness, disability, a mental health problem or an addiction 

who would not manage without their support. 

The Memorandum of Understanding – Supporting an integrated approach to identifying 

and assessing Carers health and wellbeing needs provides the basis for organisations to 

show their commitment to support, identify and assess Carers in Wirral.  It provides the 

opportunity for organisations to adopt the approach that ‘Carers are everybody’s business’.  

The MOU was developed by NHS England, ADASS and others.  It has been supported 

locally by key partners represented at the Carers Partnership Board, who are committed to 

working together for adult Carers and Young Carers.  

Background
In 2014, a mandate from the Department of Health to NHS England included the 

objectives ‘to ensure that the NHS becomes drastically better at involving patients and 

their Carers, and empowering them to manage and make decisions about their own care 

and treatment’.  In response, NHS England and the Royal College of General Practitioners 

launched their Commitment to Carers report which sets out 8 priorities and 37 

commitments and the Commissioning for Carers guidance https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2014/05/commitment-to-carers-may14.pdf

In 2016, NHS England launched ‘An integrated approach to identifying and assessing 

Carers health and wellbeing’, this paper addresses changes to the way in which Carers 

Page 143

Agenda Item 5b

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/commitment-to-carers-may14.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/commitment-to-carers-may14.pdf


2

health and wellbeing need is identified, assessed and supported as a result of the changes 

introduced by the Care Act 2014.  It is a resource to help promote working together 

between adult social care, NHS commissioners and providers and the third sector 

organisations that support Carers, of all ages, with a specific focus on developing an 

integrated approach to the identification, assessment and support of Carers and their 

families across health and social care.

In June 2018, the Department of Health and Social Care launched the new Carers Action 

Plan 2018 – 2020, and it is cited that Carers will be central to the social care Green Paper 

expected to follow later in the summer.  The Carers Action Plan retains the strategic vision 

for Carers being recognised, valued and supported and that ‘caring is everybody’s 

business’.  It sets out 5 Primary themes from the Call for Evidence consultation in 2016:

 Services and systems that work for Carers

 Employment and financial wellbeing

 Supporting Young Carers

 Recognising and supporting Carers in the wider community and society

 Building research and evidence to improve outcomes for Carers 

The new Carers Action Plan 2018 – 2020 will be used to refresh Wirral’s Strategy for 

Carers, Caring for our Carers, in which The Vision for Carers in Wirral is ‘Carers in Wirral 

will feel supported in their caring role, feel valued within their communities and recognised 

by professionals for their valuable contribution’.

Local Picture
There are 40,340 self-reported Carers in Wirral (census 2011), which is 12.6% of the 

population; this is a higher percentage than the North West (11.1%) and England (10.2%). 

In Wirral, there is a projected increase in the number of Carers to 42,644, which is a 

further 2% of the population, 2018 - 2028.  Carers come from all age groups and reside in 

all wards across the Borough. They can provide a range of physical, practical and 

emotional tasks to support the person they care for, whilst this can be rewarding, it also 

can be very demanding and puts a strain on the Carers own health and wellbeing and can 

impact on wider aspects of a Carers life such as, social interactions with other family 

members and friends, finances, work and leisure opportunities.  People can begin to 

provide care to a relative, family or friend at any time in their life, this can occur suddenly 

due to someone experiencing acute ill-health or following an accident or gradually due to a 

Page 144



3

deteriorating condition.  There are approximately 22,000 people in Wirral combine work 

with caring responsibilities for someone else.  Young Carers maybe providing 

inappropriate care for an adult and the care a Young Carer provides is likely to have a 

significant impact on their health, training, education and social needs.

Research shows that a Carer is more likely to experience poor health with the increasing 

number of hours that they provide care to someone else.  Census data 2011 showed that 

there were over 9,000 residents over 65 years who provide 50 hours plus per week caring. 

The number of Carers known to General Practices and other NHS service remain very low 

and the number of Carers known to social care services receiving a Carers Assessment is 

also low, with no significant increase since the introduction of the Care Act 2014, as is the 

case for the identification of Young Carers, under the Children and Families Act 2014 and 

Care Act.

Valuing Carers 2015 (Carers UK) estimated that the local economic value of the 

contribution made by Wirral Carers was £851 million/ year.  The increasing contribution 

that Carers are making is not only because of an increase in the number of people 

providing care to a relative or friend over 85 years, but also the number of people with 

limiting long-term care conditions and increase demand for health and social care support.

By agreeing to commit to the integrated approach, to recognise and value the role that 

Carers play across health and social care is key to work together to identify people who 

have caring responsibilities (even if they do not identify themselves as Carers).  We will be 

able to identify Carers earlier in their caring role, to signpost people to the appropriate 

support services available and help maintain their health, wellbeing and continue and to 

support them to have a life outside of their caring role.  Carers will be better informed as to 

who to go to if their support needs begin to escalate or access services available to them 

in the community to enable them to continue caring.

RECOMMENDATION/S

 The Health and Wellbeing Board members agree to the need to improve the 

identification, recognition and support of Carers in Wirral

Page 145



4

 Members endorse the NHSE Memorandum of Understanding – Supporting an 

integrated approach to the identification and assessment of Carers health and 

wellbeing

 Progress on developments will be reported by the Carers Partnership Board to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 146



5

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
To support the integration of services and the implementation of requirements of the 

Care Act 2014 and the Children and Families Act 2014.

One in eight of the Wirral population has a caring responsibility, providing 

appropriate support to those Carers to improve their physical and mental health, 

economic wellbeing will assist to meet the pledges and objectives set out in the 

Wirral 2020 Plan and Healthy Wirral.  

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
N/A

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/A

5.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
N/A

6.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
N/A

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Carers Partnership Board

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

The Care Act 2014 introduced new rights for Carers eligibility to an assessment, 

meeting identified needs and outcomes and placed them, for the first time, on an 

equal footing to the person that they care for.  There is also a duty to identify Young 

Carers and adult Young Carers on ‘appearance of need’.

Page 147



6

REPORT AUTHOR: Carol Jones
Carers/ Commissioning Lead
telephone:  (0151) 666 5200
email:   caroljones@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Draft MOU Agreement

Supporting 
integrated approach to identifying and assessing Carer health and wellbein1.docx

NHS England – An integrated approach to identifying and assessing Carer health and 

Wellbeing

identifying-assessing
-carer-hlth-wellbeing.pdf

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
N/A

Page 148



PAPER B 
 
 

 

 

Cheshire and Merseyside Transforming Care Partnership 

Update - Quarter 4, 2017/18 

 

1. Introduction 

This report provides an overview of the performance of the Cheshire and Merseyside Transforming Care 

Partnership during Quarter 4, 2017/18 and highlights key points for the attention of Partnership 

organisations across Cheshire and Merseyside.  

2. Summary Position  

 

During this quarter the Partnership has undertaken a range of actions to make progress against the 

seven workstream areas within its Workplan which aims to: 

 help people live in homes and not hospitals 

 improve people’s health, quality of care and quality of life  

 

The Partnership recognises that, despite ongoing reductions in admissions, the overall inpatient position 

remains significantly challenging, particularly around inpatients with longer lengths of stay.  Strategic 

Board members have agreed that it is unlikely that the TCP will achieve the target trajectory for March 

2019 (82 inpatients). However, significant improvement on the current position is possible with targeted 

action from commissioners across Health and Social Care.  

 

3. Performance by Workstream 

 

3.1. Leadership and Governance 

During Quarter 4, the TCP Programme Management Team has stabilised with its final recruits 

commencing in post.   

In March 2018, the Strategic Board approved the TCP’s Workplan for 2018/19, together with its 

governance and meeting structure.  The following key priority areas have been agreed:  

• Market development of housing and care providers, working in particular to develop the complex 

community care offer  

• Development of intensive community support across the footprint 

• Development of safe place support in a crisis -  as an alternative to hospital admission (where safe 

and appropriate) 

• Services to help Children and Young People experiencing challenging behaviour and crisis 

• Development of community based forensic support  

 

3.2. Inpatient Performance 

To meet the needs of the more complex Learning Disability and/ or Autism population, the TCP requires 

access to:   Page 149

Agenda Item 6a



Page 2 of 10 

 Secure beds  

 Inpatient Assessment and Treatment beds 

 Longer-term rehabilitation beds 

 Respite and crisis/ safe place provision (not necessarily hospital provision) 

Currently secure and ATU beds are commissioned through the NHS, with longer-term rehabilitation and 

respite provision commissioned through a varying mix of either NHS, social care or independent sector 

arrangements across the footprint.  

Inpatient performance has not met trajectory requirements – Q4 ended with 133 inpatients against a 

target of 118.  Of the 133 current inpatients, 45 are in spot-purchased beds in independent sector 

hospitals.   The adult inpatient position remains broadly similar to that recorded in March 2016.  

 

Graph 1: Adult Inpatients with LD and/ or ASD (Secure and Non-Secure) 

41 of these inpatients have been in hospital for more than 4 years – a breakdown by CCG is shown 

below.  Commissioners in CCGs will be asked to focus on these cases as a priority in 18/19.  

 

As at 30/03/2018 

  NHSE CCG Total 4+yr Inpatients 

East  Cheshire 
 

2 2 

Halton 1  1 

Knowsley 1  1 

Liverpool 7 6 13 

South Cheshire 1 2 3 

South Sefton 2  2 

Southport & Formby 1  1 

St Helens 3 3 6 

Vale Royal 

 

1 1 

Warrington 2 2 4 

West Cheshire 1 2 3 

Wirral 4 

 

4 

Summary Position  23 18 41 

Overall TCP Inpatient Position 41 

 

Table 1: Adult inpatients with a LoS greater than 4 years, shown by CCG.  

0

20

40

60

80

NHS Spec Comm (Secure) CCG (Non-Secure)

31st March 2016 30th March 2018

Page 150



Page 3 of 10 

A detailed breakdown of the inpatient position can be found in Appendix 1 showing cases by CCG and 

details of patients whose discharges have proved more challenging than anticipated.  

Discharges 

Cheshire and Merseyside continues to find the longer-stay, more complex individuals challenging to 

place in the community.  18 inpatients were discharged in Q4, including 6 children.  Not all planned 

discharges for the Quarter occurred due to a range of reasons.  A rolling programme of deep dives into 

complex 3 year+ cases projected for discharge has commenced with the TCP creating an escalation 

policy to provide support to individual CCGs experiencing difficulties.    

Admissions  

Improvement to the rate of adult admissions has continued.  This trend is the result of considerable 

work through MDTs and the Care and Treatment Review (CTR) process.  In Q3 and Q4, Blue Light 

Meetings (pre-CTR meetings) helped to avoid 21 admissions (out of 26 cases).  

 

Graph 2: Adult and Child Inpatient Admissions (Secure and Non-Secure): 1
st
 April 2017 – 30

th
 March 2018 

 

3.3. Housing and Providers 

To support the commissioning of housing, the TCP has developed its Housing Plan for people with 

Learning Disabilities and/ or Autism.  This was approved in March 2018 and has two broad aims to: 

• Meet the requirements of the immediate cohort of inpatients (134 at time of plan) 

• Plan for the future provision of client group 

by delivering 

• Settled accommodation (security of tenure / residence in medium to long term, or part of a 

household with such) 

• Short-term accommodation (crisis and respite support) 

 

Resettlement 

The TCP continues to support commissioners to resettle long-stay inpatients.  The TCP held a market 

stimulation event called “The Art of the Possible” in March 2018 where a number of housing and care 

providers showcased their offers for people with more complex needs to commissioners from across 

Health and Social Care.  Since then, the TCP has circulated a contacts list to all attendees to stimulate 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Adult Admissions Child Admissions

Page 151



Page 4 of 10 

networking, together with a leaflet outlining support available from the TCP team in relation to housing 

and resettlement.   

2 tools have been developed and circulated to commissioners to help support person-centred decision-

making.  These are the Confirm and Challenge tool and a detailed Housing Needs template.  

The TCP is now working with commissioners to identify opportunities for cluster commissioning for 

people with more complex needs.  

Wider Housing Market 

A number of priority actions in relation to the wider housing market are identified in the Housing Plan, 

namely:   

• The need to map existing stock (TCP will need support from each area to complete this) 

• Develop a provider framework approach (Cheshire and Merseyside, or Local Authority groupings) 

• Develop respite provision (Mid and North Mersey) 

• Short stay accommodation for children and young people 

• Focus on Personal Health Budgets 

 

3.4. Adult Hospital and Community Services 

Service Specifications (Inpatient ATU and Community LD Services) 

The TCP aims to produce two service specifications which will be adopted across Cheshire and 

Merseyside to provide a consistent service across the footprint.  The draft specifications have been 

revised by Task and Finish and we expect final versions to be issued for approval during Q1 2018/19.  

Cheshire and Wirral Area 

The Intensive Support Service covering Cheshire and Wirral has continued, with CWP presenting 

anonymised patient stories at both Operational and Strategic Boards. Commissioners report an 

improved impact in hospital admissions and patient outcomes.  

Commissioners in Cheshire and Wirral are developing an LD dashboard to support the contractual 

process.  

Mid Mersey Area 

Intensive commissioning support has been provided to Mid Mersey Commissioners and North West 

Boroughs to work up proposals to address sustainability issues at Byron Ward, together with the need 

to develop enhanced community support.  A proposal for interim services was discussed with NWB 

senior management on 29th March 2018, with a view to stabilising existing services whilst a more 

detailed plan is agreed for future provision.   

North Mersey Area 

Commissioners and Mersey Care have agreed that work needs to take place to strengthen the existing 

community infrastructure and address the need for stronger intensive support, crisis response and 

forensic support.   A “plan for a plan” has been developed with the TCP facilitating a further meeting 

scheduled in April 2018.  

 

Page 152



Page 5 of 10 

3.5. Workforce and Education 

Recruitment and skills development 

The TCP has continued to participate in the North West ODN Workforce sub-group raising the need to 

address recruitment and initial skills on a wider North West footprint.  HEE have provided some support 

to identify the number of students currently working towards Learning Disability and Mental Health 

qualifications across Cheshire and Merseyside.   

Training and development for staff already in post 

CTR and CETR training has continued to be progressed with good feedback from participants across 

health and social care.  

Working with regional colleagues, the TCP has developed a bespoke Health and Social Care 

Commissioners Development Programme for Cheshire and Merseyside which will commence in April 

2018 (further details in Appendix 3).  

Following nominations at the North West Regional conference, a working group of service users and 

carers has been identified to develop training proposals moving forward.   

 

3.6. Finance 

Transformational and short-term monies 

The TCP completed its planned expenditure for 2017/18, including additional monies.  Proposed spend 

of the indicative allocation of £280k for 18-19 is being finalised.  The Partnership has requested 

additional financial support from the North region in 18/19. 

Further long-term revenue 

NHS Specialised Commissioning are finalising the process for Financial Transfer following the closure of 

Low Secure Beds.  This is likely to come as one-off funding in 18/19 and recurrent revenue from 19/20, 

with funding released dependent on bed usage within low secure.  The TCP will be discussing the 

approach to using this funding at its Strategic Board in June 2018, both in terms of supporting 

individual packages of care and intensive support across the community.  

Wider financial impact of the programme 

In Q4, the TCP circulated revised financial templates to CCGs and Local Authorities in order to map 

wider financial flows supporting people with Learning Disabilities and / or Autism.  Following feedback 

from Local Authorities, the TCP is working to define which Local Authority services it should include 

within its financial scoping.  The aim of this wider financial dataset is to inform the distribution of 

funding following closure of secure inpatient beds.   

Capital Funding 

Expressions of Interest in relation to capital funding to support housing development in 2018/19 have 

been received from Knowsley and Wirral.   

  

Page 153



Page 6 of 10 

3.7. Co-Production, Communications and Engagement 

The TCP has continued to involve service users and stakeholders in a range of events and ways, 

recognising that experts by experience are members of both its Operational and Strategic Boards.   

3.8. Children and Young People 

The TCP has mapped children and young people’s services across the TCP footprint which has shown a 

variable offer with some pockets of good practice.  The analysis was presented to the Transforming Care 

Operational Board and Strategic Boards, highlighting areas for attention and action planning as: 

 Developing links between programmes of work through SEND Boards – reducing duplication 

and ensuring that Transforming Care informs and supports other work (for example the Local 

Offer) 

 Closing any gaps in vision and strategy, including strategies around parenting and developing 

joint outcomes frameworks 

 Considering best practice in transition and applying this across the footprint 

 Developing forensic support 

 Developing crisis support, including the development of dynamic support databases 

highlighting those CYP at risk of crisis supported by a robust CETR process 

Additional funding has been secured to develop and implement a Dynamic Support and At Risk of 

Admissions Register for Children and Young People across Cheshire and Merseyside. 

4. Key Risks and Challenges 

During Q4, the TCP thoroughly reviewed its Risk Register.  Details of the open risks with a score of 16 

and above are included in Appendix 2.  

 

5. Conclusion and Recommendations 

Q4 has seen progress across a range of actions.    

Local Authority and CCG Commissioners will need to address housing and care provision for people 

with more complex needs in order to meet the ambitious national targets.  The focus in 18/19 will be 

on: 

 reducing the number of people in hospital for 4 or more years 

 agreeing future service provision across Mid and North Mersey 

The TCP office is supporting commissioners with a bespoke commissioning development programme, 

market stimulation events and a detailed offer of support.  

A collaborative commissioning approach, encouraged by Accountable Officers, would greatly increase 

pace in this area.  

It is recommended that: 

 Accountable Officers and NHSE Directors note the progress made during Quarter 4 

 Accountable Officers and NHSE Directors enable  and support commissioners to work 

collaboratively to agree future service provision across Cheshire and Merseyside 

 

Page 154



Page 7 of 10 

Appendix 1:  Detailed Inpatient Information  

Table 1:  All Inpatients by CCG (Adult and CAMHS) 

 

As at 30/03/2018 

 
NHSE CCG Total inpatients 

East  Cheshire 1 8 9 

Halton 2 3 5 

Knowsley 3 5 8 

Liverpool 14 17 31 

South Cheshire 6 5 11 

South Sefton 6 2 8 

Southport & Formby 2 0 2 

St Helens 4 9 13 

Vale Royal 1 4 5 

Warrington 2 4 6 

West Cheshire 8 7 15 

Wirral 10 10 20 

Summary Position  59 74 133 

Overall TCP Inpatient 

Position 133 

 

Table 2:  All Inpatients by CCG with a Length of Stay 4+years (numbers are included in Table 1) 

 

4+ & 5+ Q4 2017/18 

 

As at 30/03/2018 

  NHSE CCG Total 4+ Inpatients 

East  Cheshire 0 2 2 

Halton 1 0 1 

Knowsley 1 0 1 

Liverpool 7 6 13 

South Cheshire 1 2 3 

South Sefton 2 0 2 

Southport & Formby 1 0 1 

St Helens 3 3 6 

Vale Royal 0 1 1 

Warrington 2 2 4 

West Cheshire 1 2 3 

Wirral 4 0 4 

Summary Position  23 18 41 

Overall TCP Inpatient 

Position 41 

Page 155



Page 8 of 10 

Table 3:  Patients scheduled for Q4 2017/18 discharge with revised discharge dates  

Estimated 
Discharge 
Quarter 

Commissioner Q Ref Key reason for discharge date 
slip 

Comments - 

Q4 Eastern Cheshire Q44-774 Provision of robust placement Discharge imminent 
Placement has been agreed and transition has commenced.   

Q4 Knowsley CCG Q30 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved 
Patient refused to go back to previous accommodation, so out of area provider found.  This placement now agreed 
and discharge is progressing in line with clinical condition.   

Q4 Knowsley CCG Q33 Provision of accommodation  Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
2 providers now found – one includes accommodation not available until June 2018. Case escalated to LA provider 
accommodation panel.  

Q4 Knowsley CCG Q21 Property modifications Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Provider found.  Property adaptations required.  

Q4 Liverpool CCG Q48-99A-6 Provision of robust placement Discharge imminent 
Placement now identified and patient happy following visit to provider. 

Q4 Liverpool CCG Q48-99A-55 Clinical condition Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Clinical condition deteriorated and extra support provided to day service.  MDT meeting every fortnight to assess 
progress. Discharge plan delayed due to clinical condition.  

Q4 South Cheshire CCG 306 Legal issues Extremely complex case.  Discharge plan includes guardianship order to run alongside SOPO to provide robust 
legal framework. MAPPA meeting with new area in place.  Discharge relies on all parties agreement.  

Q4 South Sefton CCG Q48-01T 41 Property modifications Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Property and provider identified.  Property modifications now required.   

Q4 Vale Royal CCG 408 Provision of robust placement Discharge imminent 
Provider identified and will access residential care - accessible by mother in South Manchester. Transition has 
commenced with final discharge imminent.  

Q4 Vale Royal CCG Q44-308 Agreement on care specification  Discharged moved to Q3 18/19 
Complex case – currently agreeing level of care required in order to discharge  

Q4 Vale Royal CCG Q44- 719 Property modifications Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Property modifications required.  

Q4 Warrington CCG Q44-798 Clinical condition  Discharge imminent 
Discharge to family home has been agreed.  

Q4 Warrington CCG Q44-364 Legal issues Discharge moved 
Placement identified and funding in place.  Section 41 issues remain to be resolved with MoJ.   

Q4 West Cheshire CCG Q44-279 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved  
Imminent discharge pulled following serious concerns about provider’s suitability and sustainability. CCG now 
looking for alternative provider.  

Q4 West Cheshire CCG Q44-464 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved 
Current specification out to tender and awaiting services  

Q4 West Cheshire CCG Q44-771 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Provider identified but struggling to recruit team to meet individual’s needs.     

Q4 Wirral CCG 411a Provision of robust placement Discharge moved 

P
age 156



Page 9 of 10 

Estimated 
Discharge 
Quarter 

Commissioner Q Ref Key reason for discharge date 
slip 

Comments - 

Suitable placement yet to be identified – 4 providers have been approached.  

Q4 Wirral CCG 583 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved 
Suitable placement yet to be identified 

Q4 NHSE Q44-532 Provision of robust placement Discharge slipped to Q1 18/19 
Residential care placement now identified and patient happy following visit to provider. 
Discharge meeting planned for 12/04 
All MDT are supportive of this placement in preference to supported living placement.   

Q4 NHSE Q44-169 Clinical condition  Discharge moved to Q4 18/19 
Patient at Auden Unit. Clinical condition deteriorated and unsettled since learnt of closure plan. 
Now arranged internal move to low secure (Whalley) but still planning for discharge. 

Q4 NHSE Q44-733 Additional care needs found on 
assessment 

Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Provider found.  Additional SALT provision requested and funding to be agreed.   

Q4 NHSE Q44-438A Legal issues Discharge moved to Q1 18/19 
Placement found at Residential Care.  Family did not respond to contact and, following discussion MDT have 
agreed to proceed.  MAPPA 2 referral has been made and awaiting date.  

Q4  NHSE Q44-189 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved to Q3 18/19 
Original plan to move to local rehab has been reconsidered at patient request following site visit.  Now considered 
supported living/ residential placement.  

Q4  NHSE Q44-588 Provision of robust placement Discharge moved to Q2 18/18 
Planned transfer from high to medium has fallen through.  Commissioners looking for alternative option.  

Q4  NHSE Q44-237 Provision of robust placement Discharge slipped – internal Spec Comm transfer 

Q4  NHSE Q44-568 Provision of robust placement Discharged moved to Q 18/19 
Internal spec comm transfer – transition moved to Q1 

Q4  NHSE Q44-783 Provision of robust placement Discharge slipped 
Assessed in January and several options for consideration (LSU or locked rehab).  

Q4  NHSE Q44-351 Provision of robust placement Discharge imminent 
Funding secured, placement identified and transition programme underway   

Q4 NHSE Q44-778 
(CAMHS) 

Provision of robust placement Discharge slipped 
Original plan to move to family home has fallen through.  Now looking for Residential Care placement.  

Q4 NHSE Q44- 782 
(CAMHS) 

Provision of robust placement Discharge slipped 
Plan is to return home with additional care support package when in place.   

Q4 NHSE Q44-791 
(CAMHS) 

Clinical condition  Discharge slipped 
Clinical condition to improve and work with family to be undertaken prior to discharge. 

 

P
age 157



Page 10 of 10 

Appendix 2 – High Level Risks to the Programme 

 

Domain Risk Title Score 

Strategic Aims There is a risk that patients with a longer length of stay remain in hospital when they are considered fit for discharge 16 

Performance 
There is a risk that delays in MoJ cases can hinder the progress of people scheduled for discharge (MM Judgement, Court of 

Protection) 

16 

Finance 
There is a risk that delays in financial transfers from NHSE Spec Comm impede agreement of adequate support packages and 

support to community teams. 

16 

Adult Hospital 

and Community 

Services 

Closure of Supported Living Service (Sefton/ Liverpool)  16 

Sustainability on Byron Ward following concerns raised by North West Boroughs 
16 

Children and 

Young People 

There is a risk that CYP at risk of admission are not highlighted to local services/ partnerships and their care is not pro-actively 

planned 

16 

Workforce 
There is a risk that there are not sufficent people wanting to work in LD/ ASC (recognised shortage) 16 

There is a risk that the existing workforce (paid and unpaid) do not have the right skills and training to deliver effective care 16 

 

Appendix 3 – Health and Social Care Commissioners Development Programme 

This is open to commissioners from Health and Local Authority, as well as NHS provider organisations and currently has 17 people signed up to attend.  

Following consultations with local commissioners, the course will cover: 

 Person-centred housing 

 Making connections 

 Planning for children and young people 

 Commissioning for personalised futures 

 Showcasing good practice across the North West 

Further details about the Programme are available from Julie Green in the TCP Office (email: Julie.Green20@nhs.net) 

P
age 158



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             1

                                                                                                                        

Health and Care Partnership for Cheshire and 
Merseyside

Strategic Workforce Programme
& Supporting Documentation

Karen Howell: CEO SRO
Christine Samosa: Programme Director

Page 159

Agenda Item 6b



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             2

Contents  

Section Page
Section 1 Introduction and objectives 3
Section 2 Governance:

Health & Care Partnership for Cheshire & Merseyside 
Strategic Workforce Programme Board 
Local Workforce Action Board
Social Partnership Forum

5

Section 3 Key Work Programmes 8

Section 4 Risk Register 15

Appendix 1 Terms of reference – Strategic Workforce Programme Board 18
Appendix 2 Terms of reference – Local Workforce Action Board 21
Appendix 3 Draft Terms of Reference – Social Partnership Forum 24
Appendix 4 Plan on a Page 28

Version Control

Version 
No

Type of Change Date Description of Change

1 New April 2018

Page 160



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             3

Section 1
Strategic Workforce Programme 

Introduction and objectives 

The strategic workforce programme is one of four enabling programmes to support 
the delivery of the place based care systems and the clinical and transformational 
programmes across Cheshire and Merseyside.

The agreed aims of the programme are as follows:

 To understand the workforce aspects (challenges and opportunities) of the 
clinical work streams, place based programmes and other cross cutting 
programmes across Cheshire and Merseyside, understanding the implications 
and the scale of change required.

 To develop key programmes of work on those elements of the workforce 
agenda, which are better done together, including the development of a 
Cheshire and Merseyside employment offer and the streamlining of workforce 
processes and systems.

 Identify the workforce implications of the back office / Carter programmes of 
work, including the opportunities of having a consistent payroll and 
Occupational health offer.

 Develop a Cheshire and Merseyside integrated workforce and development 
plan and strategy including identification of the workforce implications of 
system and organisational change such as restructuring, mergers and 
acquisitions, integrated care systems and new models of care and care 
delivery.

 Understand the impact of national skills shortages on the wider system and 
develop strategies to minimise the impact.

 Create a knowledge repository which enables anyone working in the health 
and care system to engage with each other, share best practice and research 
in workforce issues and celebrate success/ share learning across Cheshire 
and Merseyside.

Page 161



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             4

Section 2
Diagram 1

Strategic Workforce Programme Board Governance Structure

ADASS 
& LGA

NHS 
Provider 

rep

Primary 
Care

SPFHRDMedical 
Director 

Dir. of 
Nursing

NHS 
Employers

CQCNHSINHSE

LWAB

STRATEGIC WORKFORCE 
PROGRAMME BOARD

HRDs

Clinical 
Senate

Clinical 
Academy

C&M Provider 
CEO Group

P
age 162



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             5

Diagrams 2-6

Cheshire & Merseyside Partnership Governance

Page 163



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             6Page 164



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             7

Strategic Workforce Programme Board

The Board provides oversight, leadership and support for the delivery of a 
sustainable, high quality workforce for the Cheshire and Merseyside health and care 
system.  The Board will meet quarterly and be aligned to the LWAB.

The Board will work with clinical leaders to create a shared vision for the future 
workforce across Cheshire and Merseyside and ensure that there is an appropriate 
infrastructure to enable clinical staff to focus on clinical service delivery. Terms of 
reference have been reviewed and agreed and the membership of the group has 
been amended to include NHSI, NHSE, the CQC and NHS Employers.

A key challenge for the Board is how it engages across all health organisations, with 
the 387 GP practices, local authorities and seven place based systems including 
independent care providers. Briefings will be produced following each meeting of the 
Board.

Terms of reference can be found at Appendix 1. 

Page 165



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             8

Local Workforce Action Board (LWAB)

The LWAB is the delivery board for the strategic workforce programme. Terms of 
reference have been reviewed and agreed. The Board meets bi monthly and has a 
membership that spans health and care providers, place based care representatives, 
Local Authorities, Public Health, the voluntary sector, commissioners, education 
providers, The Innovation Agency, the NHS Leadership Academy and Skills for 
Care.

A revised funding application process has been introduced which will require 
applicants to provide clarity on expected outcomes and detail how the benefits can 
impact across health and care .It is essential that there is an alignment between the 
work of the LWAB and the funding streams from HEE to ensure that there is a 
cohesive work programme that is focused on outcomes and benefits the Cheshire 
and Merseyside system.

Terms of reference can be found at Appendix 2.

Social Partnership Forum

The first meeting of the Cheshire and Merseyside SPF is scheduled for June 2018 
and brings together the full time officers of professional organisations and trade 
unions. This forum will not replace local consultation and negotiation arrangements 
but provides a regional forum for engagement on matters of transformation at scale 
and across organisations and geography. All of the recognised trade unions will have 
a representative at the forum.

Draft terms of reference can be found at Appendix 3.

Page 166



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             9

Section 3 
Key work programmes

The following is a summary of the agreed priorities and projects for the strategic 
workforce programme: 

Understand and support when necessary the workforce aspects of the 
strategic programmes and place based developments:

Actions: Ensure that there is an appropriate framework to understand the workforce 
implications of each programme, that these are shared at the appropriate time with 
the social partnership forum and approved by the Strategic Workforce Programme 
Board and that the workforce elements are fully understood and that there is an 
implementation plan for meeting the revised workforce requirements, having involved 
the appropriate partners, Higher Education Institutes, commissioners and regulators.

Ensure that any workforce implications are shared with the Social Partnership Forum 
and that robust consultation and negotiation takes place at organisational and 
programme level.

Identify any adverse workforce implications of the programmes/ place based 
schemes and facilitate reskilling and redeployment across the health and care 
system wherever possible.

Identify any implications for the care sector of the programmes and work , via Skills 
for Care to minimise these.

Risks:

WP 1a:  Workforce implications of a number of programmes not yet identified or 
known.

WP 1b:  Timing of meetings results in delays in decisions, commissions etc.

WP 1c: Identification and lack of funding for training of new posts and 
development of current workforce.

WP 1d: Time to train may be prohibitive to implementing change; interim 
solutions to be identified which are safe and quality.

Develop key programmes of work on the various elements of the workforce 
agenda which are better done together across the Cheshire and Merseyside 
health and Care system:

Actions: To develop a Cheshire and Merseyside offer of employment, with 
consistent benefits and incentives, supported by an employment charter. This work 
will be developed in partnership with the HR Directors / Deputy Directors of HR and 

Page 167



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             10

tested through the Directors of Nursing, COO’s, Primary Care representatives, Local 
authority officers and Skills for Care (through the registered manager forums)   
before sharing with the Social Partnership forum.  The work will report into the LWAB 
with oversight by the Strategic Workforce Programme Board.

To develop a model recruitment and retention strategy which will include an ethical 
and sustainable approach to oversees recruitment for Cheshire and Merseyside with 
a range of initiatives and campaigns to cross all sectors.

To develop a validated and quality assured bank of investigators to support all health 
and care organisations in minimising the amount of time it takes for investigations to 
be concluded, reduce the time and impact of suspensions and ensure that the quality 
of reports and evidence is to a level required at Employment Tribunal. To ensure a 
consistent approach to investigations, report production and collection of evidence 
and an on-going relationship with the individual trust or organisation until the case is 
concluded.

To determine the merits of having a consistent and standard legal service to all 
organisations, through a centrally negotiated contract/procurement. 

To ensure implementation and evaluation of the recommendations from the various 
streamlining programmes developed across Health organisations in Cheshire and 
Merseyside.

Risks 

WP 2a: Lack of support for a Cheshire and Merseyside employment offer.

WP 2b: Inability of the independent care sector to fulfil the offer / Charter due to 
financial or other pressures.

WP 2c: Lack of support funding available to prosecute recruitment campaigns 
including overseas.

WP 2d: Lack of early identification of emerging gaps and shortages of staff in 
specific groups.

Identify the workforce implications of the back office / Carter programmes of 
work 

Actions: Identify areas of workforce savings through the streamlining programmes 
including the potential for a Cheshire and Merseyside payroll service, a standard 
Occupational health service/ provider , a collaborative bank and an pool of validated 
and quality assured investigators to minimise costs (both human and physical) of 
disciplinaries/ grievances and dignity at work/ whistle blowing cases.

Determine the workforce implications of any proposed shared service models and 
ensure that these are shared through the Social Partnership Forum.

Page 168



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             11

Risks:

WP 3a: Lack of organisations commitment

WP 3b: Risks to current providers within the Cheshire and Merseyside system

WP 3c: Costs associated with change of providers 

WP 3d: Length of time to implement to avoid contractual penalties 

Develop an integrated workforce and development plan including identification 
of the workforce implications of system and organisational change such as 
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions and new models of care and care 
delivery.

Actions: To understand, collate and co-ordinate the NHS workforce plans 
(submitted to HEE / NHSE at the end of April 2018) and understand the current and 
forecasted establishment and vacancies (both paid and unpaid workforce). Work 
with Skills for Care to collate information on local authority and independent provider 
workforce.

Understand and articulate the impact of the place based development on the 
employment status of staff and provide guidance on the various employment models, 
together with the risks and implications of each model. In partnership with individual 
organisations develop appropriate strategies to manage organisational change such 
as mergers and acquisitions.

Understand the new roles and competencies required within the systems and work 
with HEE to commission appropriate programmes of education to meet those needs.

Develop a comprehensive workforce strategy and development plan to support the 
Health and Care Partnerships overarching strategy.

Determine, in partnership with the digital work stream, the impact and opportunities 
of technically enabled roles. 

Risks

WP 4a: Lack of accurate workforce information from both health and care 
providers

WP 4b: Lack of consistency in the requirement for new roles resulting in an 
inability to commission at scale from education providers.

Page 169



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             12

Understand the impact of national skills shortages on the wider system and 
develop strategies to minimise the impact.

Actions: Gather information on regional ‘hard to recruit’/ national shortage posts and 
understand the impact of this on local providers, including workforce implications, 
quality and financial impact and the resultant regulatory consequences.

Determine, in partnership with providers, the priority areas and develop appropriate 
strategies to attract candidates/ change roles / develop new roles. Understand and 
influence the commitments of HEE to commission new roles, additional placements 
etc. and how this will impact on providers.

In partnership with the communications team and organisations, develop an 
appropriate Cheshire and Merseyside recruitment and retention campaign to 
promote careers across Cheshire and Merseyside.

Maximise the opportunities available through the apprenticeship schemes.

Risks:

WP 5a: Inaccurate or inconsistent information on hard to recruit / national 
shortage posts

WP 5b: Pace of development of clinical apprenticeship frameworks and service 
pressures impact on the viability of engaging apprentices.

Create a workforce knowledge repository which enables anyone working in the 
health and care system to engage with each other, share best practice and 
research and celebrate success.

Actions: Ensure that there is a facility/ portal on the Heath and Care Partnership 
website for all partners to access and contribute to research, best practice, case 
studies, local information and OD / change tools.

Collect relevant evidence based benchmarking data and research to develop a 
range of scenario modelling, with a suite of tools and techniques.

Develop a library of local case studies. 

Share the learning from all funded programmes of work agreed by the LWAB/ HEE.

Risks:

WP 6a: Lack of input from partners to share case studies  

Additional programmes/ projects being supported by the workforce 
programme

The workforce programme is also supporting the following areas of work:

Page 170



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             13

Streamlining: The focus is on recruitment processes to reduce the length of time it 
takes for the appointment process, improving the applicants experience and enabling 
a more agile workforce that can easily move from one employer to another. The aim 
is to ensure that all organisations adopt the standardised processes during 2018.

Collaborative Bank: The aim of the collaborative bank project is to create  a 
workforce that is able to be mobile and work across the Cheshire and Merseyside 
area undertaking bank shifts with a common system of recording and a single 
agreement  payment structure thus reducing agency spend and improving the 
provision of safe effective patient care. 

Cancer and Mental Health workforce planning: The team have fulfilled the 
requirements to submit the required cancer and mental health workforce plans in line 
with the national strategy requirements.

Endoscopy staffing/ diagnostic radiology: Working with the programmes to 
determine the appropriate options for endoscopy and radiology staffing across 
Cheshire and Merseyside.

Talent management: The aim of this work is to create a standard approach to talent 
management and succession planning across health and care, linking into the 
regional talent banks managed by the Leadership academy.

Advanced clinical practitioners/ IAPT staffing: Through the offices of HEE NW we 
will be commissioning additional training posts for advanced clinical practitioners and 
IAPT staff.

Skills for Care: Working in partnership with Skills for Care and their networks of 
registered managers, to understand the challenges and opportunities that face care 
providers in recruiting and retaining staff. 

Working in conjunction with Directors of Nursing - Nurse Directors across 
Cheshire and Merseyside recognised that significant change is required to enable 
Trusts to be able to retain its current nursing workforce and safeguarding its future 
supply. Collectively, the Nurse Directors have developed a programme of work with 
five key priority areas: 

A. Nursing Workforce Intelligence & Dashboard to enhance understanding, 
standardise reporting and making better use of the available nursing 
workforce intelligence.

B. Quality Clinical Placements to ensure sufficient clinical placement capacity 
and excellent learning experiences. There are current placement capacity 
issues, inefficiencies and quality risks in Cheshire and Merseyside which need 
to be addressed.

C. Development of a Core Continuing Professional Development Offer 
aiming to seek consensus and application of a common model, ensuring that 
this model makes best use of significant resourcing opportunities such as the 
Apprenticeship Levy and the wider education resources

Page 171



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             14

D. Towards Zero Vacancies will progress collaborative activity designed to help 
reduce nursing vacancies within Cheshire and Merseyside, through activities 
such as celebrating the joy of nursing, standardising recruitment through the 
streamlining of processes and Continuous Professional Development offers to 
help strengthen attraction, share learning from the Rapid Retention 
programme and exploring how recruitment initiatives such as international 
recruitment can be maximised.

E. Shared Services at Pace will use a coalition of the willing to consider how 
shared service models can be safely planned and efficiently advanced in the 
proposed following areas; Emergency Planning, Safeguarding, Infection 
Prevention, Complaints and Mortality Reviews.

There will be an Executive Nurse sponsor for each of the 5 areas with support from a 
Deputy Director and a PMO.   

WRaPT (workforce modelling tool) – we are  promoting the use of the WRaPT 
workforce modelling tool to better understand the workforce outputs of the revised 
models of care . 

Page 172



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             15

Section 4
Strategic Workforce Programme Risk Register

Introduction 

The workforce programme risk register provides the Strategic Workforce Programme 
Board with a simple but comprehensive method for the effective and focused 
management of the principle risks associated with delivery of its objectives and the 
current programmes of work. It also provides a structure for providing evidence and 
assurance and identifying if the delivery of an objective is at risk. The following risk 
management matrix has been used to assess the risks. 

Objective/task Risk Rating Control Assurance Gaps
WP1a - Workforce 
implications of programme 
not yet identified or known.

3x3 Standard 
reporting within 
each programme

Regular reporting 
to SWPB from 
each scheme 
workforce lead

Programme 
management 
reporting not yet 
in place

WP1b- timing of meeting 
schedules may result in 
delays in decision making 

3x3 Schedule of 
meetings to be 
developed and 
shared across 
HCP – delegated 
authority given to 
SWPB/LWAB 
chair should 
decisions need to 
be taken urgently 

Schedule of 
workforce 
committees 
published 

Meeting 
schedules 
currently 
programme 
focused

WP1c – Lack of funding for 
training new posts

3x4 HEE 
commissioning 
plan and funding 
agreed nationally

Local LWAB 
funding notified in 
May/ June 

All HEE 
commissioning 
decisions now 
have HCP input 
through the 
LWAB/ SWPB

HEE funding of 
new posts/ 
training  must be 
agreed at SWPB

Workforce plans 
not yet developed 
to detail new 
posts required.

Current 
commissions not 
based on agreed 
HCP  workforce 
trajectories

Understand the 
workforce aspects 
of the strategic 
programmes and 
place based care 

 WP1d-Time to train may be 
prohibitive to implementing 
change quickly

4x3 HEI providers are 
members of the 
SWBP and LWAB 
and will be able to 
influence other 
providers in 
developing 

HEI’s , HEE, 
NHSI, NHSE, 
CQC and NHS 
employers now full 
members of the 
SWBP

Not yet tested the 
ability of HEI’s to 
respond to 
requests for 
revised training , 
accreditation etc 

Page 173



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             16

revised 
curriculum, new 
courses etc 

WP2a – Lack of support for 
C and M employment offer 

3x3 Memorandum of 
understanding 
across all partners 
to engage in this 
programme

CEO/ Chairs / 
HRD endorsed 
approach and 
Deputy HRD’s 
leading in 
developing the 
offer

No MOU in place 

WP2b- Inability of the 
independent care sector  to 
fulfil the offer/ charter due to 
financial or other pressures

4x4 Skills for Care 
represent the 
independent care 
sector on the 
LWAB 

CEO/ Chairs / 
HRD endorsed 
approach and 
Deputy HRD’s 
leading in 
developing the 
offer

No contact with all 
registered 
managers to date.
 
Independent 
providers not 
contracted  to 
engage in this 
piece of work 

WP2c – Lack of funding to 
support recruitment 
campaigns 

2x4 HEE allocation of 
monies and 
agreed funding 
mechanism / 
approval and 
monitoring via  
LWAB and SWPB

Funding process 
agreed at LWAB 
and this is a 
standard item 
agenda for all 
LWAB meetings

Confirmation of 
ability to use HEE 
funding on wider 
health and care 
sector initiatives 
yet to be 
confirmed

Develop key 
prgrammes of 
work on elements 
of the workfore 
agenda that are 
better done 
together across 
the HCP

WP2d – shortage of staff in 
specific groups results in 
limited outcomes 

4x3 Workforce plans 
for health 
organisations due 
to be submitted at 
the end of April 
2018

Understand the 
current 
commissioned 
places across 
Cheshire and 
Merseyside  

Lack of robust 
data on current 
workforce gaps 
across both health 
and social care

WP3a – Lack of 
organisational committment

3x2 Memorandum of 
understanding 
across all partners 
to engage in this 
programme

CEO/ Chairs / 
HRDs endorsed 
the programme fo 
work

No MOU in place Identify the 
workforce 
implications of the 
back office / 
Carter 
programmes of 
work WP3b – Risks to current 

providers (i.e. payroll/ 
Occupational Health )  within 
C and M system

4x4 C and M risk / 
gain share 
agreement.

Contract reviews 
for all providers 
( where services  
outsourced)

No information on 
services  used 
outside of health 
organisations.
 
No understanding 
of the contractual 
terms of current 
arrangements or 
variance in costs 
and quality of 
services.

No C and M risk/ 
gain share 
agreement in 
place

WP3c/ 3d – costs and time 
associated with a change of 
provider 

3x3 Improved 
negtiation 
potential over 
larger numbers of 
providers

Streamlining of 
HR processes

CEO/ Chairs / 
HRDs endorsed 
the programme fo 
work

No information on 
services  used 
outside of health 
organisations 

No understanding 
of the contractual 
terms of current 
arrangements or 
variance in costs 
and quality of 
services

Page 174



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             17

WP4a- lack of accurate 
workforce information 

4x3 Workforce plans 
for health 
organisations due 
to be submitted at 
the end of April 
2018

HEE / NHSE 
collection of data 

Skills for Care 
staffing database 

Lack of robust 
data on current 
workforce / gaps 
across both health 
and social care

Primary care data 
not included in 
workforce plans

Develop 
integrated 
workforce and 
development 
plans including 
the identification 
of the workforce 
implications of 
system and 
organisational 
change WP4b-lack of consistency in 

the requirement for new 
roles results in an inability to 
commission at scale from 
education providers

3x3 Workforce plans 
for health 
organisations due 
to be submitted at 
the end of April 
2018

WRaPT tool 

NHSE/NHSI/
NHS employers 
on SWPB

HEE / NHSE 
collection of data 

Skills for Care 
staffing database 

Clinical leadership 
across both health 
and social care in 
determining new 
roles and 
competencies

Primary care data 
not included in 
workforce plans

WP5a- Inaccurate or 
inconsistent information on 
hard to recruit/ national 
shortage posts

3x3 National data sets 

Workforce plans 
for health 
organisations due 
to be submitted at 
the end of April 
2018

HEE / NHSE 
collection of data 

Skills for Care 
staffing database 

Organisational 
perception varies

Lack of data on 
independent care 
provider staff

Understand the 
impact of national 
skills shortages on 
the wider system 
and develop 
strategies to 
minimise the 
impact 

WP5b- Pace of 
development of clinical and 
care apprenticeship 
frameworks and system 
pressures impacts on the 
viability of engaging 
apprentices

4x4 National and local 
apprenticeship 
frameworks and 
guidance

Financial 
implications of the 
apprenticeship 
levy
 

Cheshire and 
Merseyside NHS 
apprenticeship 
group in place

Lack of 
knowledge of 
progress in both 
health and care 
organisations

Create a 
workforce 
community of 
practice  and 
knowledge 
repository which 
enables anyone 
working in that 
system to engage, 
share best 
practice and 
research and 
celebrate success

WP6a- Lack of input from 
partners to share case 
studies

2x2 HEE funding 
spreasheet and 
monitoring 
process in place

Reporting through 
to SWPB

Funding and 
progress item on 
every agenda of 
the SWPB

LWAB agenda 
based on the 6 
principles of the  
draft national 
workforce strategy 
and so will 
capture success 
stories

Mechanisms for 
reporting not fully 
embedded 

Page 175



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             18

Appendix 1

Strategic Workforce Programme Board Terms of Reference

Strategic Workforce Programme Board
Terms of Reference 

Constitution: The members of the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care 
Partnership (CMHCP) hereby resolve to establish a programme 
entitled: Strategic Workforce Programme Board

Purpose: The purpose of the programme is to provide oversight, leadership 
and support to the delivery of a sustainable , high quality workforce 
for the Cheshire and Merseyside health and care system

This programme will be delivered through 4 stages;
 design, 
 approve,
 implement and 
 evaluate.

 with system-wide engagement throughout.

This will include: 

 The design of a Cheshire and Merseyside-wide workforce 
strategy, to deliver a sustainable, high quality and safe 
workforce.

 Liaising with, and supporting each programme to bring 
workforce requirements to the fore and to articulate these in a 
strategic workforce context focusing on place as well as 
function / programme

 Working with clinical leaders to create a shared vision for the  
future clinical workforce across Cheshire and Merseyside and 
to ensure that there is an appropriate non clinical / support 
infrastructure to enable clinical staff to focus on clinical work

 Identification of key priorities and/or core themes for 
workforce solutions in the short , medium and long term

 Creating the Cheshire and Merseyside ‘offer’ and ‘brand’ for 
our workforce

 Ensuring that workforce changes are managed on a Cheshire 
and Merseyside footprint rather than at an organisational 
level (ie redeployment / clearing house facilities to minimise 
unnecessary severance payments )

 Ensuring workforce collaboration through the development of 

Page 176



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             19

initiatives such as the Cheshire and Merseyside collaborative 
bank and streamlining approaches to enable the development 
of an agile workforce 

 Determine where savings can be made by working at system 
level 

 Agreeing process for CMHCP-level responses to national 
workforce strategies and plans

The strategy will exclude individual organisation workforce plans and 
will not replace the need for organisation and place-based workforce 
plans, but it will give the system a shared framework and principles 
to support delivery of the future workforce.

It is anticipated that individual organisations, places, and integrated
care systems will fundamentally be responsible for implementing the 
Cheshire and Merseyside Workforce Strategy for Health and Care in 
their area.  

For this to happen, it is required that:
 Each partner understands the future service models and 

workforce implications and impact
 The subsequent future requirements of their workforce to 

inform the Strategic Workforce Programme Board
 The SWPB will work through the Local Workforce Action 

Board (LWAB), and other networks such as the HRDs Forum, 
the Strategic Partnership Forum and clinical networks, to 
enable the system to deliver the workforce requirements of 
the Partnership's whole system transformation

Membership:  The Strategic Workforce Programme Board shall consist of:

Karen Howell CEO/SRO for the Cheshire & Merseyside 
Strategic Workforce Programme (Chair)

Christine Samosa Programme Director for the Cheshire & 
Merseyside Strategic Workforce Programme

Neil McLauchlan & Liz Thomas Health Education England
Mike Gibney SPF
Melissa Swindell HRD Network representative
Hazel Richards DoN and CN representative
tbc Medical representative
tbc Public Health representative
Delyth Curtis tbc Local Authority advisor
tbc Place-based care representative (interim)
Angela Parfitt tbc CQC
Tony Leo Primary Care/NHSE
Jill Copeland NHSI
Jane Raven NHS Employers
Carole Spencer The Innovation Agency

Page 177



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             20

Members are expected to attend each meeting of the 
Programme Board; members who cannot attend should ensure 
that wherever possible their nominated deputy is in attendance.

Attendance: Each meeting will require the attendance of all of the 
membership; members who cannot attend should ensure that 
their brief is covered in advance and a representative is 
arranged (where necessary to the conduct of business).

Quorate:  A quorum shall be the SRO (or nominated deputy) with 50% 
members in attendance 

Wider Attendance: Invitees to the Strategic Workforce Programme Board will be on 
an ‘as required’ basis.  The Chair of the Strategic Workforce 
Programme Board reserves the right to invite other colleagues 
from local government/NHS to attend for particular items. 

Frequency:  A meeting shall be held every quarter unless advised otherwise. 

Approach:  The approach of the Strategic Workforce Programme Board will 
be exercised, and constrained, as follows:

In scope: the Strategic Workforce Programme Board will be 
accountable for the delivery of the identified deliverables and act 
as a reference group for workforce matters. 

Out of scope: the Strategic Workforce Programme Board will 
not be responsible for individual organisation's workforce 
planning and development. 

Duty:  The duty of the Strategic Workforce Programme Board Review 
is delivery of a Cheshire and Merseyside Workforce Strategy for 
Health and Care, and oversight and leadership in 
implementation.

Reporting:  The notes of the Strategic Workforce Programme Board 
meetings shall be recorded. The notes will routinely be reported 
to the C&M Executive Team and System Management Board; 
moreover, specific items for information/action will form part of 
communications bulletins to the wider membership.

Approved by: SRO Strategic Workforce Programme
Version: Issue 1.0
Date: March 2018
Review Date: October 2018

Page 178



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             21

Appendix 2 

Local Workforce Action Board (LWAB) Terms of Reference 

Local Workforce Action Board
Terms of Reference 

Constitution:  Health Education England developed Local Workforce Action 
Boards (LWAB) in each Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) to be the workforce arm of the STP. 

In Cheshire and Merseyside, the LWAB is the Delivery Board for 
the STP Workforce Programme Board.  The Workforce 
Programme Board provides oversight and leadership of the 
delivery of a sustainable, high quality workforce for the Cheshire 
and Merseyside health and care system

Purpose:  LWABs have two main areas of responsibility:
 Supporting STPs across a broad range of workforce 

activity
 The local delivery of the HEE mandate from the 

Department of Health and other key workforce priorities in 
line with national policies

LWABs will utilise the six principles of future NHS decisions, developed by Health 
Education England in Facing the Facts, Shaping the Future (2017)1, to support both 
areas of responsibility, these being:

1. Securing the supply of staff that the health and care system needs to deliver 
high quality care in the future

2. Enabling a flexible and adaptive workforce through investment in education 
and training new and current staff

3. Providing broad pathways for careers in health and care
4. Widening participation in health and care jobs so that people from all 

backgrounds have the opportunity to contribute and benefit from public 
investment in our healthcare

5. Ensuring the NHS and other employers in the system are inclusive model 
employers with flexible working patterns, career structures and rewards

6. Ensuring that service, financial and workforce planning are intertwined

Membership:  The LWAB shall consist of representative roles including Chief 
Executives, Medical Directors, Nursing, Allied Health 
professions, HR/OD Directors, Finance Directors and will 
represent the organisations and sectors outlined below and 
constituted by HEE.

Page 179



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             22

Health and Care Providers
 CEO/SRO for the Cheshire & Merseyside Strategic 

Workforce Programme (co-chair)
 Programme Director for the Cheshire & Merseyside 

Strategic Workforce Programme 
 Place-based care representation
 Secondary care representation
 Tertiary care and specialist care representation
 Director of Social Care (Association of Directors of Adult 

Social Services)
 Director of Children’s Services
 Voluntary Sector representative
 Chair from one of the Cheshire and Merseyside Health 

and Wellbeing Boards
 Director of Public Health 

Commissioners
 Health Commissioner representation
 Social Care Commissioner representation
 Public Health Commissioner representation

Education Innovation and Development
 Health Education England Local Director (co-chair)
 Post Graduate Medical and Dental Education Dean or 

local Deputy Dean from Health Education England
 Health Education England Workforce and Education 

Transformation Lead
 Higher Education Institute representative
 Further Education Colleges representative
 Innovation Agency
 NHS North West Leadership Academy
 Skills for Care

Attendance: Each meeting will require the attendance of all of the 
membership; members who cannot attend should ensure that 
their brief is covered in advance and a representative is 
arranged (where necessary to the conduct of business).

Quorate:  A quorum is required due to the financial responsibilities of the 
board.  The quorum will be the SRO (or nominated deputy) with 
at least 50% Board members in attendance. 

Wider Attendance: Invitees to the LWAB on an ‘as required’ basis.  The Chair of the 
LWAB reserves the right to invite other colleagues from local 
government/NHS to attend for particular items. 

Frequency:  A meeting shall be held bimonthly unless advised otherwise. 

Page 180



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             23

Approach:  The approach of the LWAB will be exercised, and constrained, 
as follows:

In scope: the LWAB will report to the Strategic Workforce 
Programme Board its two areas of responsibility.  

Out of scope: the LWAB will not be responsible for individual 
organisation’s workforce planning and development. 

Duty:  The duty of the LWAB is to support STPs across a broad range 
of workforce activity and guide the local delivery of the HEE 
mandate from the Department of Health and other key workforce 
priorities in line with national policies

Reporting:  The notes of the LWAB shall be recorded. The notes will 
routinely be reported to the Workforce Programme Board; 
moreover, specific items for information/action will form part of 
communications bulletins to the wider membership.

Finance: The majority of funding that HEE allocates or distributes to C&M 
is activity driven and is based upon national payment 
mechanisms and tariffs and predominantly goes to NHS and 
other providers.  As a result of huge education funding reforms 
for non-medical education the funding associated with university 
tuition fees and student bursaries distributed will no longer be 
distributed through HEE.  Underpinning the allocation of training 
places and funding are the quality requirements set out by the 
HEE Quality Framework and regulators and medical colleges.  
Workforce development funding needs to support the delivery of 
the HEE Mandate, workforce transformation and other nationally 
determined priorities set by the DH or ministers.  HEE would 
look to work with CMHCP to ensure there are mechanisms to 
influence investment in support of C&M workforce priorities.

Finance will be governed by Health Education England North’s 
LWAB Funding Framework with the LWAB Chairs’ holding 
ultimate responsibility for the overall allocation and utilisation of 
the local resources.  This will be monitored by the HEE 
Workforce Transformation Lead for each LWAB.

Chairs’ actions: In the event of Chair’s action being taken by either co-chairs 
outside of the meeting, it is agreed that membership will be 
advised virtually of the issue and asked to respond.  The final 
decision will be with the co-chairs.  The co-chairs will report on 
any action at the next meeting.

Approved by: Local Workforce Action Board
Version: Issue 1.0
Date: November 2017
Review Date: October 2018

Page 181



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             24

  Appendix 3 
Social Partnership Forum – Draft terms of Reference 

                                                                                                               

Health and Care Partnership for Cheshire and Merseyside Social Partnership 
Forum 

(DRAFT)  Terms of reference

Purpose:

The Cheshire and Merseyside Social Partnership Forum (SPF) brings together NHS 
organisations from across Cheshire and Merseyside, trade unions, NHS employers 
and staff-side representatives. The forum acts as a way of communicating to and 
from the North West SPF sub group, highlighting specific workforce issues and 
ensuring a clear flow of information to and from local employer organisations.

It is recognised that effective partnership working will bring important benefits to 
staff, patients and our partner organisations and the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Health and Care Partnership are committed to working in partnership to ensure the 
delivery of high quality services through an appropriately skilled and resourced 
workforce.

The forum is a sub group of the North West SPF and the North of England SPF and 
will report formally through to the North West SPF.

The Partnership recognises respective roles and responsibilities will establish shared 
objectives, a common purpose and formulates principles for effective partnership 
working.

The forum will consider the workforce implications of the Health and Care 
Partnerships plans, recognising that the implications may be across both 
organisational and sector boundaries. This forum will not replace the need for 
organisational consultation and negotiation mechanisms and agreed organisational 
processes.

The forum will support the aims of the North of England and North West SPF, 
namely:

 Providing constructive comments on  implementation at a formative stage
 Contribute ideas on the workforce implications of schemes 
 Promote effective communication between partners
 Promote good practice
 Keep the patient at the centre of everything we do 

Page 182



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             25

Roles and responsibilities 

To enable effective operation of this partnership arrangement, all parties must agree 
to recognise and respect each other’s roles and functions which are distinct but 
complementary. The partners recognise that individual organisations have 
responsibility for implementing national policies but are independent organisations in 
their own right. Trade Unions have a responsibility to represent and act in the 
interest of their members and other stakeholders will have views which will need to 
be taken into account.

Shared approach

The partnership is underpinned by the following shared values and common 
purpose:

We will have a shared commitment to continuous improvement including access to 
high quality services and delivering value for money to the public.

We believe that the NHS should promote good practice in all areas of staff 
management, including equality and diversity and a commitment to security of 
employment.

The NHS should take a collaborative approach to supporting staff that may be 
affected by change.

Principles:

All partners recognise the importance of formal and informal working relationships, 
built on trust and a shared respect, whilst respecting differences.

All partners commit to building trust and a mutual respect for each other’s role and 
responsibilities.

All partners commit to having a positive and constructive approach.

All partners commit to engaging in early discussions of emerging issues and 
maintaining dialogue on progress and priorities.

All partners commit to openness, honesty and transparency.

All partners commit, where appropriate to maintain confidentiality and an agreed 
eternal position.

All Partners commit to make the best use of available resources.

Working arrangements

Page 183



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             26

The partnership forum will meet on a bi monthly basis scheduled to allow feedback 
into the North West Social Partnership Forum.

The meeting will be formally recorded and minutes and agenda circulated at least 5 
working days in advance of the meeting.

Membership 

The forum is made up of representatives from:

Staff-side representative groups from NHS organisations across Cheshire and 
Merseyside

 The British Medical Association
 CSP
 Chartered Society of Physiotherapy
 GMB
 Managers in Partnership 
 Royal College of Nursing 
 Royal College of midwives
 Society of Radiographers
 The Federation of Clinical Scientists
 The British Dietetic Society 
 The British Dental Association
 The British Association of Occupational Therapists
 The British Orthoptic society
 The Royal College of Speech and Language Therapists
 The Society of Chiropodists and Podiatrists
 UNISON
 Unite Union

Management side:

Karen Howell CEO/SRO for the Cheshire & Merseyside 
Strategic Workforce Programme (Chair)

Christine Samosa Programme Director for the Cheshire & 
Merseyside Strategic Workforce Programme

Anne-Marie Stretch Director of HR/Deputy CEO St Helens & 
Knowsley Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 
(Secondary Care)

Mike Gibney Director or HR & OD at The Walton Centre 
NHS FT (chair – HRD Group and SPF 
Liaison)

Tracy Hill Director of Strategy & OD, North West 
Boroughs Healthcare NHS FT (Mental 
Health)

Jo Harvey Director of HR & OD, Wirral Community NHS 
FT (Community Services)

Page 184



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             27

Heather Bebbington Director of Workforce and OD, The 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre NHS FT 
(Tertiary Care)

Jane Raven Area Head of Engagement, NHS Employers

Liz Thomas Health & Care Partnership Executive 
Director (tbc)

Key Stakeholders/ partners – to attend as necessary 

SRO’s for programmes and place based schemes

Workforce leads supporting the SRO’s

Communications

Every effort will be made to provide information in good time for meaningful 
discussion and consultation. All partners will undertake to respect confidentiality 
where that is required or requested and otherwise conduct their dialogue openly.

Partners also have a responsibility to bring the views of those they represent to the 
SPF and to disseminate and cascade agreed communications.

From time to time joint communications will be required and all partners will be 
required to agree that in advance of any publication.

At the close of each meeting the group should be clear on the agreed 
communication points for wider dissemination or escalation 

Review of Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference will be reviewed at least on an annual basis

Page 185



Strategic Workforce Programme v1                                                             28

Appendix 4
Strategic Workforce Programme – Plan on a Page 
Understand the workforce aspects of the strategic programmes and place based care

Understand the workforce aspects of the strategic programmes and place 
based care
• Understand the implications and scale  of change required
• Understand  the time lines , investment and  partners to make chane happen

Develop key programmes of work on elements of the workforce agenda  which 
are better done together across the Health and Care Partnership .
• Develop  a  Cheshire and Merseyside recruitment  and retention  strategy
• Develop a Cheshire and Merseyside  brand 
• Develop a Cheshire and Merseyside  Offer

Identify the workforce implications of the back office / Carter programmes of 
work
• Identify areas for workforce  efficiencies , including payroll, Occupational 
heallth

• understand the streamlining befnefits of the Cheshire and Merseyside offer

Develop integrated workforce and development plans,  including identification 
of the  workforce implications of system and organisational change such as 
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, accountable care systems and new 
models of care and care delivery.

• Understand the impact of national skills shortages on the wider system and 
develop strategies to minimise the impact

• Explore new sources of recruitment including global recruitemnt
• Maximise the opportunities  from the apprenticeship levy 

Create a Workforce community of practice and knowledge repository which 
enables anyone working in that system to engage with each other, share best 
practice and research and celebrate success across Cheshire and Merseyside.

Page 186



  

Cheshire and Merseyside Women’s and Children’s Partnership 
Strategic Highlight Report  

Name: Catherine McClennan Reporting 
to:

Programme Board 

Date: 3rd January Work 
stream 

Strategic

Period 
Covered

November 2017 – January 2018 

Key points to Communicate

Vanguard 
Funding has now been released following further evidence of return on investment to the 
Investment Committee. The quarterly review meeting was held on 14th December and the team 
were praised for the work they had delivered and the positive outcomes of the Vanguard.

Next Steps
Agree reporting requirements and deadlines until end of vanguard

Evidence collation has commenced to support the evaluation being undertaken by RCPCH and 
RCOG for the overarching vanguard programme, a number of focus groups are underway.

Progress Against Milestones 
 Case for Change 
 Clinical Delivery Networks established and operational
 W&C data collection for STP wide modelling tool
 Redesign workshops held for Gynaecology, Maternity, Neonatology & Paediatrics 
 Communication Strategy – including engagement events and roadshows
 Option Appraisal Process commenced
 Review of Neonatal Intensive Care Services complete
 Paediatric Primary & Secondary Interface Group 
 Joint approach to Public Health across all work streams
 Neonatal Activity, Capacity, Demand and  Cot requirement review
 Neonatal surgical pathway review and options appraisal
 Integrated Palliative Care Pathway
 Positive engagement with range of family groups
 Sourced ‘free’ Sustainable Leadership training via Innovation and Technology Work 

streams
 Development of a New Care Models product library and ‘How to guide’ in development 

phase
 Delivered Neonatology ICU option appraisal recommendations
 Working with the Innovation Agency to create a Maternity Cluster
 Commissioned programme evaluation by RCPCH and RCOG
 Working with Edge Hill University to evaluate ‘Pop up MLU’, Baby Box Scheme and 

‘ADVANCE’ APNP programme.
 Continued working collaboratively with Walton Vanguard on governance framework

Page 187

Agenda Item 6c



 Neonatal procurement consortium created
 Continuity of carer audit undertaken
 Supporting cultural manifesto 
 Work being undertaken on Child Bereavement Pathway with Child Bereavement UK
 Producing ‘How to Guides’ for:

o Game Changer – Health as a social movement
o Baby Box Communities
o Clinical Networks
o Partnership Model and Governance
o Community Hubs
o Partnership 

 Evaluation
 Sharing Learning

Events
A number of meetings and events have been held and attended to ensure the prominence of the 
programme at local and national level, these include:

 Launch of maternity voices
 Presentation to Cheshire and Merseyside DONs meeting
 Presentation to SRO maternity conference

Workforce
 A workforce sub-group has been developed as part of the LMS and held its first meeting 

on 11/01/18.  
 Cross provider training has been delivered in hypnobirthing, and choice and 

personalisation
 An Early Adopter Operational Group has been established to design new models of care. 
 Work is underway with the University of Liverpool (UoL) and the RCM to roll-out its Poppy 

study which supports maternity teams to cope with PTSD following trauma and reduce 
stress, sickness and attrition rates as well as building resilience and improving the health 
and wellbeing of the workforce.

 The regional midwifery strategy which has been developed by the HOMs was launched 
and a workshop was held and agreement reached for a joint C&M approach to A-Equip.

 Collaborative work has been ongoing with providers currently facing workforce shortages 
and gaps in rotas and work continues with NHSE and NHSI to support these as an LMS 
and mitigate against future impact and risks.

Maternity and Gynaecology

LMS Plan 
 The C&M LMS plan was submitted on 31st October 2017 and feedback has been 

received from NHSE. Work is underway via a task and finish group within the C&M 
partnership to agree specific key trajectories and targets to reduce maternity and 
perinatal mortality and improve safety. The final deadline is 31st January and STP sign on 
23r January.

 Continuity of Carer –Information from providers has been collected and collated and work 
continues with BUMP.  A number of providers have identified pilots which they will be 

Page 188



implementing. Information and progress will be reported via the EA to ensure 
identification of gaps, lessons learnt and sharing of good practice.

 LMS gynaecology, workforce subgroups have been arranged
 The Next LMS meeting will be held on 29th January 2018

Maternity Choice and Pioneer
 Personalised Maternity Care Budgets – following the initial launch of the PMCBs in 

Liverpool for the standard pathway. There will be a full roll out in January. 
 A standardised PMCBs booklet has been agreed and training is currently taking place for 

midwifery teams across all trusts. 
 A new pricing formula is being developed with Liverpool CCG, the Choice and 

Personalisation Team and NHS pricing to support the next phase of PMCBs which will 
include choice across providers. 

Baby Box
 The Baby Box programme has been rolled out, with sessions, feedback and engagement
 Community engagement initiatives continue 
 Proactive pathways with Runcorn libraries established  to increase engagement
 A partnership has been agreed with all Libraries across C&M which enables families and 

our partners to access Library facilities free of charge.

Early Adopter Programme
 Pop-Up MLUs – The first Pop-Up MLU will be opened at Seacombe Children’s Centre in 

January 2018 and services will be provided by a dedicated midwifery team from Wirral 
University Hospital Trust (already recruited and trained). The location of the site and the 
additional services provided within the centre are supported by the local authority, third 
sector and hospital trust will be ideal for the development of a Community Hub and this 
will be scoped out in the New Year. 

 The Communications Lead is working with the Head of Midwifery at WUTH to develop a 
communication strategy for circulation to all GPs and providers.  

 The second site will be at Widnes Urgent Care Centre and services will be provided by 
Bridgewater Midwifery Services. An implementation team will be working to get this 
operational and opened in the first quarter of 2018.  

 A midwifery led guidelines manual is being developed for use by all FMLUs when they 
open and plans for joint procurement and staff training and development is underway. 

 The Pop-Ups model will be evaluated by Edge Hill University Health research 
department.

Single Point of Access:  
 The core service offers have been mapped from all 9 C&M providers through the Early 

Adopter Operational Delivery Group.  This information needs to be standardised and work 
was underway with NHS Digital to digitise the information but this has now been halted by 
NHS Digital. This will be picked up in January with the team and in the meantime the 
information for the Single point of Access and PMCBs will be developed and accessed 
within the Improving Me website.

Collaboration 
 Work continues with Comedy Trust on Perinatal Mental Health 
 Continued working with Edge Hill University on evaluation. 

Page 189



 Further invitations to share learning and presentation at national conferences.
 Early Adopter highlight reports submitted and attendance at regional and national update 

meetings.
 Monthly meetings of Heads of Midwifery and Early Adopter Operational Delivery Group to 

gain input and share learning and ideas for new models of care.
 Continued work to agree baseline data for workforce and national standards.
 Progress on plans to deliver the agreed outputs for the Early Adopter programme.
 Exploring pricing model with national team and continued joint working on innovation and 

technology.
 Current working with Southport & Ormskirk Trust and local commissioners regarding 

obstetric rota cover and further service provision

Children and Young People (Paediatrics)
 The Paediatric Network Meeting took place on 27th November 
 Working on development of pathways to reduce variance and increase collaboration – 

Current pathways from across the network collated and shared 
 Primary Secondary Care Interface Sub Group has taken place and  Paediatric/ Children 

and family centres of excellence discussed and new models being worked upon
 High/Low acuity care reviewed – clinicians remain in discussion. 
 Quarterly meetings arranged for 2018
 EOI’s have been sent out for a Lead Advanced Paediatric Nurse Practitioner (APNP) lead 

and a Lead Nurse.
 Student APNP’s continue on programme, 18 to graduate in the summer, 32 currently in 

year 1 of training.
 Agreement to conduct a workforce review and an updated review of facing the future 

standards
 Collation of provider dashboards to explore the potential of a Cheshire and Merseyside 

dashboard for C&YP.

Innovation & Technology
A wide range of scoping and research has been underway to explore the most appropriate 
technology to support maternity, postnatal and early year’s services in Cheshire and 
Merseyside.
A sub-group has been set up and met on 7th December, next meeting 17th January.
Work is underway to scope the implement of SYML to support electronic patient notes and e-red 
book. This has been adopted in Wales and approved by the Welsh Health Boards there. A 
number of demonstrations and sessions have been held with the HOMs and Warrington and 
Halton Hospital Trust. A further session took place on 21st December
The Improving Me programme will also adopt OCHRA as an APP based approval system and is 
implementing Lincus as a supportive, behavioural change APP to go alongside the Baby Box 
programme to help to support healthy lifestyles and emotional wellbeing and support. 
Elemental Social Prescribing platform   is also being piloted across Halton to improve access to 
heal and support from within the community in pregnancy and postnatally.

Tom Dawson - Lincus

Activities planned next period: 
 Paediatric Network 12th January
 Interviews to take place for a APNP lead and a Lead Nurse on 30/01/18

Page 190



 Creation of a model of care for Children and Families Centres of Excellence / Community 
Hubs, which aims to support and treat women and children.

 Continue  APNP training
 Roll out the social prescribing platform and link to the baby box pathway
 Further community engagement events to be undertaken across the Cheshire and 

Merseyside area. E.g. Street stall in local town centre. 
 Develop a Baby Box Buddies/peer support/ Baby Box women supporting Baby box 

women concept 
 Intergenerational development - work to commence with U3A and retired groups to 

consider feasibility of developing support groups. Work will be undertaken to engage 
Local care homes to gather feedback and communication. 

 Support the sustainability of Maternity Voices across the LMS.
 Update LMS plan with NHSE recommendations to include key trajectories and targets 

Development of option appraisal process and resubmit to NHSE
 Agree Women and Children’s communication and engagement strategy with FYFV- 

Primary secondary care interface meeting.
 Launch of ‘The Female Mind’ Event in Bluecoat Gallery, Liverpool on 30th January 6-8pm.
 Vanguard Celebratory Event 2nd March 2018. 

Risks

 Retention of staff
 Lack of data sharing agreement
 Moving to option development – project support
 “Feeding the beasts”
 Engagement
 Replicability and spread
 Politics
 Data Collection
 Managing expectations

Other areas of potential interest:

Approaches from national team and national organisations to do joint work with other regions 
and areas.

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
18 JULY 2018
REPORT TITLE 2018 Annual Report of the Director of Public Health

Harmful Gambling - The Other Side of the Coin 

REPORT OF Julie Webster, Acting Director for Health & Wellbeing

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with the annual report of the Director of Public 
Health.   The purpose of the Public Health Annual Report is to draw attention to local issues of importance 
which have an impact on population health. Since the Council took back responsibility for Public Health in 
2013 we have published five reports on the topics of social isolation, healthy schools and children, domestic 
violence and the roles of the Council and the NHS in promoting health and wellbeing. These reports have 
led to action in the reduction of the number of people smoking in the borough, to levels below the national 
average; increased support for people who were feeling socially isolated plus significant activity across a 
range of partners to highlight and reduce the damage caused to our communities from alcohol abuse e.g. 
Drink Less Enjoy More Campaign.  

The 2018 annual report reflects on the public’s concern about the impact of gambling on local people.  It 
supports the delivery of the Wirral 2020 Plan and the Pledge ‘Wirral Residents Live Healthier Lives’. 

The annual report aims to describe what harmful gambling is and to illustrate the impact it has on local 
residents, their families and friends.

RECOMMENDATION/S
The report details a number of recommendations that have been developed in conjunction with local 
partners and key Council departments e.g. licensing and planning. The recommendations cover 
action on the following themes: 

 Raising the profile of harmful gambling via a communications campaign to highlight the 
impact of harmful gambling; working with schools and promoting the help and support 
available to people who are struggling with their gambling habits 

 Supporting people at risk of harmful gambling by raising the awareness of frontline staff of 
the support that is available

 Understanding and measuring harmful gambling in the borough to inform future licensing 
decisions

 Work with other Councils to identify action to reduce the risks that consumers, especially 
those that are vulnerable, face from gambling e.g. enhanced consumer protection for online 
gambling

In addition it is proposed that a working group is established with the Gambling Commission to 
consider how we can use local powers to support a reduction from harm relating to gambling.

The Health & Wellbeing Board is requested to support the recommendations outlined in the report. 

Page 193

Agenda Item 7a



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The 2018 Public Health Annual Report focuses on the public’s concern about the impact of 
gambling in our population. The report calls for action to minimise the harm that results from 
addiction to gambling and particularly the impact on people who are already in financial 
difficulty. It supports the Wirral Plan 2020 pledge: Wirral Residents Live Healthier Lives. 

1.2 The production of an annual report is a statutory requirement of the Director of Public 
Health. It is an important vehicle to identify key issues, flag up problems, report progress and 
inform local inter-agency action. The council has a duty to publish the report.

2.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 Gambling has been a part of society for thousands of years. For the majority of people it is a 
harmless and sociable activity, commonly practiced and accepted as part of everyday life. 
However, this leads us to normalise gambling behaviours to an extent that we don’t 
recognise when it has become a problem.

2.2 Harmful gambling can lead to a wide variety of health and social issues, including debt, job 
loss, homelessness, drug and alcohol addiction and domestic abuse. Due to this complex mix 
of personal and social issues, harmful gambling cannot be addressed in isolation; action is 
needed across a variety of organisations and services.

2.3 With the increasing media interest in harmful gambling, and the recent announcement by 
the government on the introduction of a maximum stake for fixed odds betting terminals 
down from £100.00 to £2.00 this Public Health Annual Report is timely. But whilst this policy 
change with regard to fixed odds betting terminals is to be welcomed, there is still much to 
do to understand the radical shift to online gambling.

2.4 We need to do more to prevent harmful gambling from happening and also to provide 
support to those who already have a problem. This offer should also be extended to the 
friends and families of those affected.

2.5 We look forward to reflecting on this report in years to come and to see what changes have 
been achieved locally, how we have influenced wider conversations on this topic. We hope 
that this report helps to further our local understanding of the issue and reinforce the 
growing narrative that harmful gambling is a wide spread threat to the health and wellbeing 
of local people.

REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Webster
  Acting Director for Health and Wellbeing

telephone:  (0151) 666 5142
email: juliewebster@wirral.gov.uk

Page 194



1

Harmful Gambling 
The Other Side  
of the Coin
2018 Annual Report of the 
Director of Public Health

Page 195



2

I am pleased to present this year’s public health annual 
report which reflects public concern about the impact 
of gambling in our population. The report calls for action 
to minimise the harm that results from addiction and 
particularly has an impact on people who are already 
in financial difficulty. The work has been led by Julie 
Webster, Acting Director for Health and Wellbeing in 
the borough, and she sets out below why we need to 
collectively act to reduce harm.

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Gambling has been a part of society for thousands of 
years. For the majority of people it is a harmless and 
sociable activity, commonly practiced and accepted as 
part of everyday life. However this leads us to normalise 
gambling behaviours to an extent that we don’t 
recognise when it has become a problem. 

Harmful gambling can lead to a wide variety of health 
and social issues including indebtedness, poor mental 
health, domestic violence, criminal activity, job loss, 
homelessness and drug and alcohol abuse. Due to this 
complex mix of personal and societal issues, harmful 
gambling cannot be tackled in isolation; action is 
needed across a variety of organisations and services.

There has been increasing interest in the national media 
with regard to harmful gambling, making this Public 
Health Annual Report very timely. My report aims to 
describe what harmful gambling is and illustrate the 
impact it has on local residents. I hope it helps in both 
furthering our local understanding of the issue and 
reinforcing the growing narrative that harmful gambling is 
a wide spread threat to public health. As with most issues 
which are public health concerns, harmful gambling 
affects the poorest members of our community the most 
as I explore in my report with regard to the clustering of 
fixed odds betting terminal locations. 

We need to do more to prevent harmful gambling 
from happening and also to provide support to those 
who already have a problem. This offer should also be 
extended to the friends and families of those affected. I 
look forward to reflecting on this report in years to come 
and see what changes we have achieved locally and how 
we have influenced wider conversations on this topic.

As we went to press, the Government announced the 
introduction of a maximum stake of £2.00 for fixed odds 
betting terminals down from £100.00 – this is great 
news.  However, as we outline in this report the impact 
of gambling on residents, their families and friends is 
significant.  Whilst the policy change with regard to fixed 
odds betting terminals has grabbed our attention, there 
is still much to do to understand the radical shift to 
online gambling.

Julie Webster
Acting Director for Health and Wellbeing, Wirral Council

Fiona Johnstone
Statutory Director of Public Health, Wirral

Foreword

Introduction

Page 196



3

“...Harmful gambling can lead 
to a wide variety of health 
and social issues ”

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 197



4

What is Harmful Gambling?  P6

Harmful gambling is a Public Health Concern  P8

Young People and Future Trends  P10

Legislative Barriers  P10

What is the Picture of Harmful Gambling in Wirral  P11

Projections for Wirral  P14

Local Stories  P15

Examples of Local Service Providers Who Can Help
with Harmful Gambling and Debt  P22

Recommendations  P27

Further Help and Information  P28

References  P29

Contents

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 198



5

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 199



6

Gambling in the UK is regulated by the Gambling 
Commission on behalf of the Department for Digital, 
Culture, Media and Sport under the 2005 Gambling Act. 
However, unlike other public health concerns such as 
alcohol consumption, there are no specific policy targets 
relating to harm minimisation from gambling. The 2005 
Gambling Act has three main licensing objectives:

n Prevent gambling from being a source of crime or  
 disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or  
 being used to support crime
n Ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open 
 way
n Protect children and other vulnerable persons from 
 being harmed or exploited by gambling

Gambling is a legal activity for anyone over the age of 18 in 
the UK. It can be an enjoyable and sociable activity when 
practiced in moderation and continues to be very popular 
in the UK, mostly with people taking part in lotteries, 
playing bingo, placing bets online or at a bookmakers or 
playing on gaming machines. Recent estimates suggest 
that almost one in every two people have participated in 
some form of gambling in the past month and that this is 
an increasing trend (The Gambling Commission, 2018). 

For some people gambling can become addictive and 
they are unable to stop, giving rise to harmful gambling. 
This is becoming an increasingly important public health 
concern. Harmful gambling has been defined as “gambling 
to a degree that compromises, disrupts or damages family, 
personal or recreational pursuits” (Lesieur & Rosenthal, 
1991).

The most recent national estimates are that approximately 
1 in every 100 people are harmful gamblers, while 4 
in every 100 people are at risk of becoming a harmful 
gambler if they continue their gambling activities. 

What is Harmful Gambling? 

“Recent estimates 
suggest that almost 
one in every 
two people have 
participated in some 
form of gambling 
in the past month 
and that this is an 
increasing trend”

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 200



7

“...Gambling-related harm 
affects far more people than 
just the harmful gambler ”

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 201



8

At the beginning of 2018, the Chief Medical Officer for 
Wales formally acknowledged harmful gambling as a 
growing public health issue (The Welsh Government, 
2018). A recent position paper by the Responsible 
Gambling Strategy Board highlighted that harmful 
gambling should be considered as a public health priority 

Harmful Gambling is a Public Health Concern

Figure 1: The impacts of harmful gambling on those who are gambling 
and their wider social networks and society Source: Thorley et al, 2016

Job loss

Absenteeism

Poor 
performance

Loads on 
Charities

Loads on 
public purse

Neglect of 
family

Impacts of
others

Relationship 
breakdown

Bankruptcy

TheftDomestic or 
other violence

Imprisonment

PROBLEM 
GAMBLING

Interpersonal

Work & 
study

Community 
services

Suicide

Stress

Depression 
& anxiety

Poor health
 

Personal

 
Financial

Financial 
hardship

Debts

Asset losses

Loan sharks

 
Legal

similar to obesity and drug and alcohol addiction (The 
Responsible Gambling Strategy Board, 2016). Much like 
these issues, harmful gambling can have an impact on 
multiple aspects of health and across multiple levels of 
society, affecting the individual and their friends, families 
and communities (Figure 1). 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 202



9

Gambling-related harm affects far more people than 
just the harmful gambler.  National estimates from the 
Citizens Advice Bureau suggest that for every harmful 
gambler, between 6 and 10 additional people (such as 
friends, family or co-workers) are directly affected. This 
means that between 2.5 to 4.3 million people in Great 
Britain may be affected by gambling-related harm 
(Nash et al, 2018). This research also suggests that:

n In families with children where one or more parent 
 had issues with gambling, over a third couldn’t 
 afford essential costs such as food, rent and 
 household bills 
n Two-thirds of gamblers have mental distress as an 
 impact of their gambling
n More than a third of households where one 
 or more parent who had issues with gambling 
 experienced family breakdown

When someone is addicted to gambling, it can be an 
endless and unsustainable cycle to maintain the habit 
(Figure 2). 

Figure 2: Common cycle 
of harmful gambling 

Those affected will turn to loved ones for financial 
help, placing strain on their relationship and financial 
security before seeking alternative sources of money 
which can often end in criminal activity. A recent 
report by the Institute for Public Policy Research 
states that harmful gamblers are over 4 times more 
likely to be in prison than the average member of the 
population, costing between £40m to £190m per year 
to rehabilitate (Thorley et al, 2016). 

Society normalises gambling behaviours via aggressive 
advertising which is not regulated in the same way 
advertising on tobacco and alcohol products are. 
Gambling companies use celebrities as ambassadors 
and sponsor sporting teams, events and stadiums. 
Alcohol branding was one of the most prominent 
sponsorships on player’s shirts and stadiums in the 
football premier league (Bunn et al, 2018). The past 
ten years however has seen gambling sponsorship 
replacing alcohol sponsorship. 

This provides a passive and unconscious bias that 
society accepts gambling behaviour as both desirable 
and a part of everyday life. This in turn means when 
someone has a problem with gambling, they can 
struggle to accept they have an issue with it, as well 
as struggle to have their addiction taken seriously by 
friends and family, unlike addiction to drugs and/or 
alcohol. Due to this lack of understanding, harmful 
gamblers may feel shame as a result and try to hide 
their addiction. Looking forward, the normalisation 
of gambling behaviours has already affected our 
youngest generations and we predict will influence an 
increase in harmful gambling in the future. 

Harmful 
gambling

Financial 
insecurity

Debt

Loans 
from loved 

ones / payday 
loans / loan 

sharks

Unable 
to pay 

back money 
/ criminal 
activity

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 203



10

Gambling habits can start in early life as shown in a 
recent survey by the Gambling Commission who found 
12% of 11-15 year olds had spent their own money on a 
gambling activity in the previous week, making gambling 
arguably a more common risky behaviour than smoking 
or drinking (The Gambling Commission, 2017a). Since 
it is illegal for children to gamble, online gambling on 
games and apps has fewer restrictions, giving children a 
route to become involved in gambling at an early age. 

This trend coincides with an increase in gambling on 
smartphones while on the go, as well as playing games 
with gambling elements (The Gambling Commission, 
2017). Young people are also being primed to gamble 
passively via the advertising industry, with gambling 
adverts appearing on the television at all times of the 
day, reaching younger audiences than appropriate (BBC 
News, 2018).

Young People and Future Trends

The gambling industry is complex and organised via a 
range of umbrella organisations such as the Association 
of British Bookmakers. These umbrella organisations 
collaborate together to represent the shared interests of 
both their staff and shareholders. 

All councils under the 2005 Gambling Act have to 
prepare a statement of the principles they propose to 
apply in exercising their functions under this Act every 
three years. The Gambling Commission issues statutory 
guidance to councils to aid with this. While councils 
have the right to ask for changes to their local area to 
improve local sustainability via this process, all attempts 
have failed so far, indicating that the 2005 Gambling Act 
provides limited flexibility for councils.

Public Health teams in the Liverpool City Region have 
called for change at a national level following a Liverpool 
Public Health Observatory Report on fixed odds betting 
terminals (Lewis et al, 2014). Recommendations from 
this report included making the information relating to 
the effects of harmful gambling visible to those gambling 
as well as making the act of self-exclusion (the voluntary 
act of banning oneself from a betting location) work 
more efficiently (i.e. working together so someone who 
self-excluded themselves from one betting shop could 
not use another betting shop in the meantime). 

Legislative Barriers

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 204



11

The most commonly used source of information 
to highlight the issue of harmful gambling is the 
use of fixed odds betting terminals classified as ‘B2 
machines’. They were unregulated until the 2005 
Gambling Act when it was decided that betting shops 
were not allowed more than four of these machines 
per shop (Association of British Bookmakers, 2013). 
Fixed odds betting terminals have a maximum bet 
value of £100.00, therefore it is very easy to lose a 
large amount of money very quickly. In May 2018 the 
Government announced that they were to introduce 
a maximum stake of £2.00 for FOBTs, down from the 
current £100.00 stake. The data presented in this 
section of the report relates to the position prior to 
this policy change and illustrates why Governmental 
action was necessary to regulate their use.

Industry statistics recently collated by the Gambling 
Commission found that there were a total of 33,420 

What is the Picture of Harmful Gambling in Wirral?
fixed odds betting terminal machines in the UK, each 
returning an average profit of £53,887 per machine. 
This means that the amount of profit made by fixed 
odds betting terminal machines (minus paying out any 
winnings) was £1.8bn in 2016/17. This is from a total of 
£13.8bn that was spent on all forms of legal gambling 
in the UK in 2016/17 (The Gambling Commission, 
2017).

Table 1 details the total number of fixed odds betting 
terminal machines installed in betting shops in the UK 
over the last 5 years, how much profit (on average) 
each machine made and how much profit was made 
in total per year. This is presented with Wirral data 
to show the local trend. Wirral now has 239 fixed 
odds betting terminal machines; we estimate that in 
2016/17, operators of fixed odds betting terminals 
in Wirral received almost £13m in profits from these 
machines. 

Table 1: Trend from 2012/13 to 2016/17 in number of fixed odds betting terminal machines, average and 
national profits from these and the total estimated profit made by these machines in Wirral:

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 205



12

Over the course of five years (holding the 239 fixed odds 
betting terminal machines as a constant, although the 
total number may have been less in previous years), we 
calculated that the profit on fixed odds betting machines 
locally was £58.5m. The use of fixed odds betting 
terminals is not uniform across the borough. 

During the course of an audit carried out by the Public 
Health team, it was determined that the East of the 
borough has a much greater density of betting premises 
than the West. There are 100 fixed odds betting 
terminals in Birkenhead, 70 in Wallasey, 35 in West Wirral 
and 34 in Wirral South (Figure 3).

Figure 3: Total estimated profit made by fixed odd betting terminals for 
the last five years by Wirral Constituency

As can be seen from Figure 4, betting premises appear 
to cluster in the most challenged areas of Wirral. Each 
betting shop is permitted to have up to 4 machines, 
and our audit found that all but 3 shops in Wirral had 
the maximum of 4 machines. Birkenhead has the 
largest number of fixed odds betting terminals in Wirral, 
followed by Wallasey. Birkenhead and Wallasey contain 
some of the most socio-economically deprived areas in 
England, yet we estimate fixed odds betting terminals 
make 3 times as much profit in Birkenhead than they 
do in the more affluent Wirral South (£24m over 5 years 
in Birkenhead versus £8m in Wirral South) based on 
national data. 

A report by The Responsible Gambling Trust in 
2016 showed that the risk of harmful gambling was 
significantly higher in areas where betting shops 
clustered in high densities (Wardle et al, 2017). With 
this in mind, harmful gambling is disproportionately 
contributing to making the poorest parts of Wirral even 
poorer.

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 206



13

Table 3: Trend from 2012/13 to 2016/17 in fixed odds betting terminal profits by Wirral Constituency

Profits from fixed odds betting terminals show a broadly 
upward trajectory for all Constituencies and Wirral 
overall between 2012 and 2017, increasing from £1m 
in 2012/13 to £12.8m in 2016/17. If these figures are 
divided out by the Wirral population (aged 18+), these 

figures mean that £50 per person was lost on fixed 
odds betting terminals in Wirral in 2016/17. Adjusting for 
the differential number of fixed odds betting terminals 
in each Constituency, £78 was lost per person in 
Birkenhead, compared to £31 per person in Wirral South. 

This can be problematic in times of austerity; people may 
see fixed odds betting terminals as a form of a quick fix 
to get money easily. When money is then lost it can cause 
additional strain on finances and then the cycle continues 

to try and win more money to cover previous losses, 
helping to widen the gap between the most and least 
deprived areas of Wirral. Table 3 shows how this issue has 
become more significant in the past 5 years in Wirral.

Year

Average profit per machine

Birkenhead constituency

Wallasey constituency

West Wirral constituency

Wirral South constituency

Wirral

2012/13

£46,232

£4,623,192

£3,236,234

£1,618,117

£1,571,885

£11,049,429

2013/14

£45,608

£4,560,790

£3,192,553

£1,596,277

£1,550,669

£10,900,289

2014/15

£48,354

£4,835,400

£3,384,780

£1,692,390

£1,644,036

£11,556,607

2015/16

£50,591

£5,059,134

£3,541,394

£1,770,697

£1,720,106

£12,091,331

2016/17

£53,887

£5,388,659

£3,772,061

£1,886,031

£1,832,144

£12,878,894

Figure 4:  Map showing betting shop location in Wirral by deprivation level

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 207



14

We used these figures to project future total profit 
based on the current legislation. Figure 5 shows how 
much profit could have been generated by fixed odds 
betting terminals in Wirral to 2021/22 if current trends 
had continued. 

As this shows, if current trends had continued, the 
profit made by fixed odds betting terminals in Wirral 
could have increased from the current figure of 
£12.8m per year, to £15.4m per year by 2021/22. 
This would have been an extraordinary amount of 
money leaving the local economy from just one form 
of gambling (almost all local betting shops are national 
chains, so the profit they generate is unlikely to benefit 
Wirral, except by creating a small number of low paid 
jobs in each shop). 

Projections for Wirral

Figure 5: Projected profit from fixed odds betting terminals in Wirral to 2021/22

£16,000,000

£15,000,000

£14,000,000

£13,000,000

£12,000,000

£11,000,000

£10,000,000

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

20
20

/2
1

20
21

/2
2

Wirral Current Wirral Forecast

However, this is only the tip of the iceberg. Online 
gambling is the largest gambling sector in the UK, 
accounting for 34% of all gambling activity and is 
rapidly growing, with the Gambling Commission 
predicting it will account for almost half of all 
gambling in the UK in the near future (The Gambling 
Commission, 2017). More information is needed at 
a local level regarding the use of online gambling 
to explore and further understand how this issue is 
affecting Wirral. 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 208



15

To illustrate how some of the issues outlined in this 
report have affected people locally, we spoke to 
some local residents to discuss their experiences of 
harmful gambling first-hand and through the actions 
of loved ones. 

Local Stories*

Since online gambling from home has increased in 
prevalence it has become increasingly easier to do 
and more accessible. Jill’s story sheds some light on 
how online gambling has had an impact on her now 
adult son.

* Pseudonyms used to protect individual’s identities

Jill’S STOry: My son isn’t allowed to live with me at home any more 
because of his online gambling with poker. He got into a lot of debt over it 
which I have had to help with. Our house has been destroyed where he has 
thrown things when he has lost money online. 

He was never really physically aggressive before. He smashed that many 
iphones, like 7 in 3 months, top of the range phones. Ipads top of the range, 
brand new, £700-800 - smashed. He just really overreacts to a big loss. He will 
deliberately sit up all night and go on then because other people online will 
have had a drink and he sees it as easy money. 

He stays up all night and then goes to bed during the day. It was horrible 
having that going on in your house, hearing him all night chatting and moving 
around and then be asleep all day. You would hear him at 3 in the morning; 
living in that weird way made him very snappy and tired all the time. 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 209



16

Online gambling can come with its own problems 
when the person gambling doesn’t appreciate the 
severity of the issue until they are already in debt from 
losing too much money, as Brittany describes:

BriTTany’S STOry:  I set up an online account and used to do a 
couple of quid every now and again and then it just progressively got worse. 
I would bet on virtual horses and then on to the online slot machines. When 
I’m gambling online no one is watching me and I’m on my own. 

I’m not thinking rationally when I’m drinking and it’s so easy online because 
I can’t think of it as me spending lots of money. It’s just digital money. It’s 
just so easy. It becomes a part of your everyday life. I’m probably more likely 
to spend more money when I’m on my own like I am when online. I once had 
£1900 in my account once and poofed it all away online in half an hour. 

Gambling is the only reason I have so much debt. Sometimes I self-exclude 
from sites they give you all these bonus offers and you can’t actually get your 
money out of it, they’ll give you a £10 free spin or £10 free bet – whatever you 
win off that you have to then bet 300 times that amount to get your money 
out so it annoys me when they do stuff like that. You have to really look for 
that information as well, like really small print information about that. 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 210



17

With home becoming a place where gambling can be 
more easily done in privacy, it can mean children and 
vulnerable adults are exposed to gambling when they 
are not competent to make decisions (and miss the 

JaneT’S STOry:  My son is a vulnerable adult with autism, ADHD and 
dyslexia. He only recently started getting heavily involved with gambling. He 
is so simplistic, he doesn’t realise the full impact of his gambling on us. 

He wouldn’t realise it’s having a major impact on our finances. I have seen 
emails where he has signed up to online sites where they give you a free £20 to 
play and that is another big worry now. I have to fill in forms for him and run 
his emails because his intelligence wouldn’t take him far enough to do that.

And lately he has these emails popping up about a loan with a payday lender. 
He doesn’t actually work so that will fall to me to pay that. He is crying about 
the loans now. He hasn’t got a full understanding of it all. When he gets 
letters off debt companies he is coming and asking me “am I in debt?” and he 
just hasn’t and can’t fully comprehend. 

I was tempted to contact the payday loan people and ask do they realise 
they’ve given this to somebody who isn’t fully competent, but I felt as if I 
was being disloyal then. Gambling for kids, it’s dangling a carrot to them 
but there’s nothing for them at the end of it. There is nothing for them to do 
locally and they spend their time in betting shops. 

small print) which can have impacts on both them and 
their families. Janet describes how her son who is a 
vulnerable adult has been caught up in problematic 
gambling:

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 211



18

While we know more about fixed odds betting terminal 
use locally, that is not to say their use doesn’t remain 
as hidden sometimes as online gambling. As previously 
described, harmful gambling can be an “invisible 
illness”, with those affected hiding their issues from 

their loved ones and failing to seek help before they 
find themselves in a downward spiral of debt and 
addiction. Chris’ story highlights how keeping harmful 
gambling a secret can make things worse:

CHriS’ STOry:  My stepson had to leave our home 10 years ago because 
he was stealing from us and using money for a hidden gambling habit 
going to betting shops. There were associated problems, several attempted 
suicides, cries for help because he would get very depressed and guilty about 
his stealing. 

So I ended up on several occasions in the hospital with him because of tablets 
he had taken and sometimes because he was cutting his arms, wrists and so 
on. He would recover, his confidence would grow back again over a few weeks 
or months and then the cycle would start again. We didn’t know it was about 
gambling at the time. He didn’t reveal that. 

He would ask to borrow money from us on the pretence there was some 
sort of problem, he has lost money, or someone had stolen money from 
him. I didn’t really discover the extent he had immersed himself in harmful 
gambling until his problem had grown so severe that he had sold all his 
possessions. He was walking the streets with a carrier bag of clothes and 
some photographs. He literally had nothing else. 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 212



19

Refusing to accept harmful gambling as an issue and 
avoiding seeking help can mean the individual lashes 
out. Coming to terms with losses while gambling, 
(sometimes with other people’s money) can come at a 

reBeCCa’S STOry:  It was my ex-husband. Prior to marrying him I had 
never been introduced to gambling. I didn’t know anything about it. He didn’t 
just gamble with money he gambled with everything. It was relationships, 
our marriage. He would lose and then he would come home and would want 
more money.

It extended to abuse, violence to get that money. Even if it was just £1. 
You would know when he won because he would come home with a box of 
chocolates. You knew if he lost simply by his demeanour. He lunged at me 
with a knife once and tried to knife me. I ducked to the side, got out of the 
flat, ran down the stairs. I just thought no. I have to go. Which I did do. I left 
him and took our son with me. 

price, with domestic violence becoming a destructive 
coping mechanism in those who are harmful gamblers, 
as shown in Rebecca’s story:

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 213



20

However there is hope and people can be helped out 
of the downward spiral of harmful gambling. Barry is a 
recovering harmful gambler. His story illustrates how 
harmful gambling can be linked to alcohol and drug 

addiction, family breakdown and homelessness. He 
has since started volunteering in the local community 
after seeking help locally:

Barry’S STOry: I started gambling from the age of thirteen. You would 
go there and you would wait outside the bookies and get an old fella to put the 
bets on for you. You sort of felt part of something. All these old fellas putting 
bets on for you and if you won you would give them some of your money. You 
were accepted. 

As I got older I lost jobs through gambling. I used to get paid on the Thursday 
and go to the bookies and lose it the same day and then I would make lies up 
to my parents about why I didn’t have the money anymore. It’s weird. It just 
snowballed really into something I couldn’t control anymore. This went on for 
years. My dad passed away two years ago and I had his gold chain. At the time I 
pawned that to go and put on some bets. It was unreal really. It leaves me in a 
dark place. It left me sitting in Birkenhead Park contemplating whether I should 
go and use drugs. It left me that low. But nothing matters when you are in that 
mind-set to gamble. You need to get what you want and you will do anything 
you can to get more money. The gambling went hand in hand with whatever 
else I was doing. A concoction of all sorts, drugs and alcohol. Drugs and alcohol 
changed the way I felt about who I was. But so did gambling. By going to the 
bookies no one else is in there with you, you don’t have to listen to anyone. It’s 
just me and I feel like king of Birkenhead sort of. It doesn’t matter if it’s £1 or 
£1000, it’s the feeling in your gut. It’s just like using drugs. Once I start gambling, 
I can’t stop until everything is gone. Then I’ll go and lie and cheat and manipulate 
to get more money to keep going.

Gambling left me homeless. 19 months ago I was walking around Birkenhead 
begging, tapping people on the shoulder, picking stuff up off the street. My little 
boy was taken 2 years ago and I just wanted to die. So it was either carry on 
and die or stand up and be counted and try to get him back. I’m in the process 
of doing that now. I have only just recently started voluntary work a few weeks 
ago to give something back. They got me into a detox 19 months ago and it feels 
so good to be able to do what I am doing now. I got over my gambling addiction 
through narcotics anonymous. They have a 12 step programme. I started 
working on my gambling there and I haven’t had a bet in 5 years. It is good. It’s 
an addiction. I would justify the gambling more than crack and smack. Gambling 
in my mind wasn’t going to kill me if I did it again, not like drugs. But believe me 
it leaves you with the same pain inside but it is seen as more socially acceptable.

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 214



21

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 215



22

Examples of Local Service Providers Who  
Can Help with Harmful Gambling and Debt

THE BEACON COUNSELLING TRUST

The Beacon Counselling Trust is a charity that works 
comprehensively in the area of mild to moderate mental 
health issues. We operate from a central hub in Liverpool 
but also have satellite sites across the North West.

The three main objectives of the charity are:
n To work with people from all backgrounds and ages  
 to deal with their individual mental health problems 
n To offer support through face to face counselling  
 and therapeutic interventions 
n To offer an individually tailored approach to dealing  
 with individual mental health issues

We are the biggest provider of National Institute 
for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) approved 
therapeutic interventions from a non NHS organisation 
in the North West. We work in close collaboration 
with the NHS statutory organisations and a number 
of third sector organisations delivering one to one 
interventions, group and training programmes. 

Our major programme currently is supporting 
individuals and families affected by problematic 
gambling. We use a recovery based model and do follow 
ups at 3 and 6 months. It is an open access service; 
we take referrals from the healthcare sector, from the 
police and also take direct referrals from the National 
Gambling helpline. We are the local service provider 
for harmful gambling, so we have an open door policy 
for people to get in touch with us directly also. This is 
an issue that affects everyone in society, men, women, 
rich, poor, at every level and every juncture - harmful 
gambling is present. It is across the life course of an 
individual and needs to be considered in the same way 
as drugs and alcohol as a threat to health.

Neil Platt
Clinical Director, Beacon Counselling Trust 

CITIzENS ADvICE 

Citizens Advice Wirral provides information and advice 
across Wirral on a range of issues. Some of our clients 
have current or previous gambling problems and 
the harm it causes is both varied and wide-reaching. 
Financial losses, debt, housing problems, relationship 
breakdown and decreased mental wellbeing are 
consistently reported by gamblers and their family, 
friends and co-workers. 

A range of interlinked factors contribute to harmful 
gambling: ease of access to and lack of restrictions on 
gambling, isolation, escapism, boredom, thrill-seeking, 
behavioural traits, mental health problems and 
exposure at a young age were all mentioned as causes 
for harmful gambling.  The prevalence of advertising 
make it harder for those with a problem to stop.
Tools to manage gambling addiction don’t work 
for everyone. For tools to work, gamblers need to 
acknowledge they have a problem, which can be 
difficult.  Existing tools need to be improved to make 
them more effective.

Gambling support services are not always suitable or 
easily accessible: There aren’t enough local services 
specifically for gambling addiction and levels of funding 
are insufficient to meet the need.

Carol Johnson-Eyre 
Chief Executive Officer, Citizens Advice Wirral

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 216



23

GAMBLERS ANONYMOUS

Gamblers Anonymous is a fellowship of men and 
women, who share experience, strength, and hope to 
solve their problem, and help others to do the same. 
This is a simple programme for people with complex 
issues. The only requirement for membership is a 
desire to stop gambling and help others to do the 
same. Anyone is free to join, all are welcome. 

We can help anyone with a problem with gambling, 
whether with large debts or none. All we ask is that 
the new member is 100% honest with his or herself, 
whether they continue to gamble or not. We have 
found in the last 10 years our new members have 
changed. It used to be middle aged men, aged 35-
50 mainly gambling on horse and greyhound racing. 
Today the majority of our new members are aged 18-
30, with a history of gambling online, on computer or 
mobile phone, or on the fixed odds betting terminals. 

There are no fees for membership; we are self-
supporting through our own contributions. We are not 
allied to any sect, denomination, political organisation, 
or institution. Our primary purpose is to stop our 
gambling, and help others do the same. We use a 
12 steps approach to our recovery programme. The 
group meets once per week. Share how you feel 
at meetings, and contact other members between 
meetings. 

Ian W
Public Relations Officer for Gamblers Anonymous

WIRRAL CREDIT UNION

Established in 1992, Wirral Credit Union has provided 
over £45m in loans to its members. The aim of Wirral 
Credit Union and indeed all Credit Unions is to help 
our members help themselves by planning ahead via 
saving. We provide savings facilities and access to low 
cost loans to any individual living and/or working in the 
geographical limits of CH post code area.

With regards to financial difficulties we are here as a 
Credit Union to offer a way to improve financial well-
being after difficulties are resolved.

By offering savings accounts to help with any further 
problems, also the added bonus of low cost loans 
capped by the Government. Once someone becomes 
a member of Wirral Credit Union and saving regularly 
then these services are available.

Wirral Credit Union is here to help all manage their 
finances well.  Any members of Wirral Credit Union 
that are struggling with debt are always referred to the 
local CAB with whom we work in partnership.

Clara Kendrick
Community & Outreach Manager, Wirral Credit Union

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 217



24

WIRRAL DEBT ADvICE

Harmful gambling can lead to unmanageable debts 
and payday loan use by both the person gambling and 
also their friends and families who are helping to cope 
with increasing debts. Wirral Debt Advice launched 
in April 2017. We were set up as a response by local 
Wirral churches at the height of the crisis with payday 
loan companies charging exorbitant rates.  A payday 
loan added to already existing debts wreck lives. 

We have 11 debt advisors who have all been formally 
trained in advising on debt management. After an 
initial appointment we will help anyone using our 
service to communicate with the organisations they 
owe money to, tailored to their needs. 

We are part of the Diocese of Chester and work 
in partnership with Wirral Foodbank; advisors are 
present at the Foodbank sessions at Christ Church 
Moreton Fridays from 14:00-15:30 and St Chad’s 
Leasowe from 11:00-14:00 on Tuesday mornings with 
two debt advisors working alongside the foodbank 
volunteers. The service is entirely free and confidential 
to any who need it. 

Steve Burrows
Chair of Trustees, Wirral Debt Advice

“...Harmful gambling 
can lead to 
unmanageable 
debts and payday 
loan use by both the 
person gambling and 
also their friends and 
families”

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 218



25

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 219



26

Summary
Harmful gambling is a serious public health concern. 
Gambling has been normalised in our society and as a 
result has made it difficult for those with a problem to 
admit it and also made it difficult for loved ones to detect 
it. It is estimated to continue to increase in its severity in 
coming years unless action is taken. 

We have illustrated this using data relating to fixed odds 
betting terminals and how substantial amounts of money 
are being taken out of our most challenged areas, where 
premises housing these machines purposely cluster. 

It is important to reiterate that this is only the tip of the 
iceberg with online gambling contributing to the majority 
of gambling behaviour in the UK as illustrated in some of 
our local stories. This is a preventable issue and one we 
can have an impact on through coordinated and targeted 
actions.

“...This is a preventable 
issue and one we can 
have an impact on 
through coordinated 
and targeted actions”

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 220



27

Recommendations 

Raising the pRofile of haRmful 
gambling

n Develop a communications campaign to highlight the 
 impact of harmful gambling behaviour. This includes 
 the risks of becoming a harmful gambler, spotting 
 the signs of any individual or of a loved one who may  
 be struggling with gambling addiction and help with 
 quitting gambling.

n We know people begin gambling from a young age 
 in Wirral. We must build knowledge in school aged 
 children about harmful gambling by developing a 
 school education package to be delivered locally.

n Train staff working in licensed gambling premises 
 about how harmful gambling affects people locally 
 and how to identify individuals that might benefit from  
 support by signposting them to relevant services.

suppoRting people at Risk of 
haRmful gambling

n Explore opportunities to ensure that a specialised 
 support service is available for those affected by 
 harmful gambling in Wirral including friends and 
 families who are also adversely affected as highlighted 
 in this report.

n Information on both national and local services to 
 support people affected by harmful gambling should 
 be displayed in all local betting shops. 

n All front line staff must be upskilled regarding how 
 to ask questions relating to harmful gambling in order 
 to identify those at risk. There is an existing validated 
 set of screening questions which can assist with this 
 opportunistic consultation and can lead to 
 appropriate referrals and social prescribing into 
 specialist support services. 

undeRstanding and measuRing 
haRmful gambling in WiRRal

n Local gambling premises should provide information 
 to Wirral Council about their local market 
 demonstrating an understanding and awareness of 
 their customers and the effect on the environment.

n Wirral Council will develop local area profiles to 
 provide a more in depth examination of areas of 
 vulnerability to gambling-related harm. These profiles 
 will then inform future licensing decisions as well 
 as acting as evidence to inform the council’s planning 
 policies regarding the clustering of retail which causes 
 harm to local health 

Regional appRoach

n It is clear that local authorities attempting to lobby  
 for change on an individual basis is not an efficient  
 approach. Wirral Council will feed into a wider   
 discussion with colleagues across the Liverpool City  
 Region and the Gambling Commission to ensure  
 existing powers to minimise harm from gambling are  
 enacted.

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 221



28

Some Sources of Further Help and Information

LOCAL

BEACON COUNSELLING TRUST
This service includes live chat rooms, individual and group 
counselling as well as advice on debt management and 
social support. These services are delivered from a central 
hub in Liverpool and locations across the North West.
https://beaconcounsellingtrust.co.uk/free-
gambling-counselling | 0151 321 1099

GAMBLERS ANONYMOUS
Provides a safe space to share experiences,  
strength and hope with other people with gambling
addition to help each other overcome similar problems
www.gamblersanonymous.org.uk

NARCOTICS ANONYMOUS
Meetings are where you can find support from others 
who have already been where you are now. 
Come along, no appointment necessary, and you’ll
see others getting clean and staying clean.
https://ukna.org/meeting/birkenhead-2 
0300 999 1212 | 23 Conway Street. Birkenhead  

ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS 
Multiple Wirral sites -  AA is concerned solely with the 
personal recovery and continued sobriety of individual 
alcoholics who seek help via open and closed meetings 
and a 12 step programme. 
www.alcoholics-anonymous.org.uk | 0800 9177 650
     
CITIzENS ADvICE WIRRAL    
Online and face to face help with a range of subjects
that include the management of debt, problems with
housing and rent, relationship issues and consumer rights.
https://citizensadvicewirral.org.uk | 0300 33 00 111

WIRRAL DEBT ADvICE     
Individual debt advice from trained volunteers locally to 
help manage financial insecurity and debt
WirralDebtAdvice@gmail.com | 07486648014 or 
07486450631
 

NATIONAL

BE GAMBLE AWARE - NATIONAL GAMBLING 
HELPLINE
Provides information to help people make informed 
decisions about their gambling, what safer gambling
means, to understand and recognise harmful gambling, 
and where to go for further information, help and 
support. 
www.begambleaware.org  | 0808 8020 133

GAMCARE      
GamCare is the leading provider of information,
advice, support and free counselling for the prevention
and treatment of harmful gambling
www.gamcare.org.uk

SAMARITANS       
Provides 24 hour support and advice   
www.samaritans.org | 116 123

GORDON MOODY ASSOCIATION   
Charity which offers an intense level of support 
consisting of individual and group therapy and a 
12 week residential during which residents are helped
to adopt new coping skills which help them to attain
recovery and to integrate back into society, without 
the need to gamble.
www.gordonmoody.org.uk | 01384 241292

THE MONEY ADvICE SERvICE   
Free and impartial money advice and guides to 
help improve your finances using tools to help keep
track and plan ahead. 
www.moneyadviceservice.org.uk/en | 0800 138 7777

NATIONAL HARMFUL GAMBLING CLINIC 
The clinic employs psychiatrists, clinical psychologists
and counselling psychologists who have received broad
training to doctoral level in both NHS and academic 
settings. Services include individual and couples therapy, 
medication for harmful gambling and aftercare.
www.cnwl.nhs.uk/cnwl-national-problem-gambling-
clinic | 020 7381 7722

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 222



29

References
n Association of British Bookmakers. 2013. The Truth 
about Betting Shops and Gaming Machines – ABB 
submission to DCMS Triennial Review. Available from: 
www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/248922/Association_of_British_
Bookmakers.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n BBC News. 2018. Gambling ads: Would a pre-
watershed ban protect young people? Available from: 
www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-42860784 [Accessed 28.03.18]

n Bunn, C., Ireland, R., Minton, J., Holman, D., Philpott, 
M. & Chambers, S. 2018. Shirt sponsorship by gambling 
companies in the English and Scottish Premier Leagues: 
global reach and public health concerns. Soccer & Society. 
DOI: 10.1080/14660970.2018.1425682

n Thorley, C., Stirling, A. & Huynh, E. 2016. Cards on the 
Table: the Cost to Government Associated with People 
who are Problem Gamblers in Britain. Available from: 
www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/Cards-on-the-table_
Dec16.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n Lesieur, H. R. & Rosenthal, M. D. 1991. Pathological 
gambling: A review of the literature (prepared for the 
American Psychiatric Association Task Force on DSM-IV 
Committee on disorders of impulse control not elsewhere 
classified). Journal of Gambling Studies, 7 (1), 5-40

n Lewis, C., Holmes, L. & Scott-Samuel. 2014. Fixed odds 
betting terminal use and problem gambling across the 
Liverpool City Region. Available from: www.liverpool.ac.uk/
media/livacuk/instituteofpsychology/researchgroups/
lpho/Problem,gambling,and,FOBT,use,across,the,Liverpool
,City,Region.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n Nash, E., MacAndrews, N. & Edwards, E. 2018. Out 
of luck: An exploration of the causes and impacts of 
problem gambling. Available from: www.citizensadvice.
org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/Consumer%20publications/
Out%20of%20Luck.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n The Gambling Commission. 2017a. Young people and 
gambling 2017: A research study among 11-16 year olds 
in Great Britain. Available from: live-gamblecom.cloud.
contensis.com/PDF/survey-data/Young-People-and-
Gambling-2017-Report.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n The Gambling Commission. 2017b. Industry Statistics. 
Available from: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/news-
action-and-statistics/Statistics-and-research/Statistics/
Industry-statistics.aspx [Accessed 28.03.18]

n The Gambling Commission. 2018. Gambling 
participation in 2017: behaviour, awareness and attitudes 
annual report. Available from: www.gamblingcommission.
gov.uk/PDF/survey-data/Gambling-participation-in-
2017-behaviour-awareness-and-attitudes.pdf [Accessed 
28.03.18]

n The Responsible Gambling strategy Board. 2016. 
Gambling-related harm as
a public health issue: Position Paper. Available from: www.
rgsb.org.uk/PDF/Gambling-related-harm-as-a-public-
health-issue-December-2016.pdf [Accessed 28.03.18]

n The Welsh Government. 2018. Gambling with our 
Health: Chief Medical Officer for Wales Annual Report 
for 2016/2017. Available from: gov.wales/topics/health/
professionals/cmo/reports/?lang=en [Accessed 28.03.18]

n Wardle, W., Asbury, G. & Thurstain-Goodwin, M (2017). 
Mapping risk to gambling problems: a spatial analysis of 
two regions in England. Addiction Research & Theory, 25 
(6), 512-524, DOI: 10.1080/16066359.2017.1318127
 

2018 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT

Page 223



3030 183MAY18JM

Page 224



WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

Healthier Lives Pledge 
 

Wirral Residents live Healthier Lives  
 
 

We want all of our residents to have a 
good quality of life and live healthy lifestyles 

 in clean and safe environments 

 
Progress Update  

 
CABINET/SLT – June 2018 

P
age 225

A
genda Item

 7b



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT 
WE SAID 

We remain committed to addressing health inequalities in Wirral through encouraging residents to lead healthier lifestyles, 
and promoting physical activity and healthy eating. We will also continue to reduce the prevalence of smoking amongst our 
residents and the levels of alcohol related ill-health and anti-social behaviour through restricting availability of ‘super 
strength’ alcohol. We want to see 30% of Wirral’s off-licenses retailers sign up to the council-supported “reduce the 
strength” campaign. 

WHAT 
WE DID 

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 

• We’re delighted to report that smoking prevalence has reduced from 18.9% to 15.7% which is more than double the improvement of the 
National average. 

 
• The proportion of women smoking at time of delivery has also reduced from 13.9% at the start of the plan to 12.0% and is improving at a 

much faster rate than the national average. 
 
• The number of admissions to hospital  for alcohol related conditions per 100,000 population has improved from last year (901 to 889). 
 
• 83 retail outlets are now complying with the “Reducing the Strength” project criteria which means that Super Strength Lager/Cider is no 

longer being sold in Birkenhead Town Centre 
 

• This year we’ve helped 418 more people to lose weight than last year. A total of 1971 people were helped to lose weight compared to 
1553 last year. 

 
• The Ask Us Wirral service has been successfully supported over 50,000 residents, 18,000 more than predicted. 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 226



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT WE 
SAID 

Priority 01: Reduce the number of people who smoke in Wirral 

WHAT WE 
DID 

WHAT WE’VE DONE WHAT WE’LL DO NEXT 

• Trading Standards conducted 8 tobacco test purchase exercises this year with 46 
premises visited by the team of young volunteers resulting in 6 sales taken place. 
Training sessions were provided to increase compliance with a total of 60 
attendees. 
 

• A Facebook and Twitter presence has been developed to encourage reporting or 
under age and illicit sales of tobacco. 
 

• Wagtail (detection dogs for illegal tobacco) promotional days were well attended 
with a lot of information being passed out into the community and also 
intelligence fed back. One wagtail day of enforcement action was held on 22 
August 2017 with 5 premises visited resulting in two seizures. 
 

• During 2017-18, 1341 smokers accessing the specialist stop smoking service were 
still quit at 4 weeks. This is a significant improvement in performance compared to 
previous years. The majority of those accessing the service are by self-referral, 
followed by those referred by GPs. Those with a diagnosed mental health problem 
remain a high proportion of the clientele.  

• We will continue to support the successful delivery of Wirral’s 
Tobacco Strategy to reduce the number of people who smoke 
in Wirral. 
 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 227



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY – STOPPING SMOKING 

Rachel is a young single parent whose prime motivator to stop smoking was a 
recent hospital admission for a pneumothorax. She realised she needed to 
remain healthy for her children. Post hospital discharge her GP referred her to 
ABL Wirral.  Prior to being admitted to hospital she had received training in 
preparation to become a Foster Carer.  It was during this, she became aware of 
the problems caused by second-hand smoke and the need to quit to protect not 
only her own children but those in her care. However, she reports never to have 
smoked in-front of them.  Although she admits to a number of previous half-
hearted, unsupported quit attempts on her on her own, using minimal NRT, her 
commitment to this attempt has been sincere. She has attended one to one 
sessions with her advisor and has used medication effectively. Even though she 
has had additional, external pressures during her quitting journey she has not 
smoked for 9 weeks. She has become a connective carer and guardian of a young 
boy.  

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 228



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT WE 
SAID 

Priority 02: Reduce the impact of alcohol misuse on individuals and communities 

WHAT WE 
DID 

WHAT WE’VE DONE WHAT WE’LL DO NEXT 

The “Drink Less, Enjoy More” campaign successfully reduced the number of bars included in the project 
found to be serving “drunks”, from 90%(18) to 35% (7). The project has been aimed at the 20 bars and pubs 
across Wirral where the most incidents of alcohol related disturbance and violence have occurred.  
  
83 retail outlets are now complying with the “Reducing the Strength” project criteria which means that 
Super Strength Lager/Cider is no longer being sold in Birkenhead Town Centre. The scheme is now being 
spread out to new areas, including Rock Ferry, New Ferry, Seacombe and Poulton.  
 
Retailers are also becoming agents for harm reduction in their communities by offering “Identification and 
Brief Advice” to customers they have concerns about regarding their alcohol abuse. 41 businesses have 
attended “Custodian” training , with 68 people from local businesses taking part. This scheme has been 
delivered  in partnership involving, Licensing, Trading Standards, Police and Wirral Ways to Recovery. 
  
 Latest figures show that 1,300 people accessed specialist alcohol treatment with Wirral Ways to Recovery 
in the 12 months up to Feb 2018. Nearly half of these were new presentations to treatment. To continue 
this improved performance the service is progressing in its implementation of its Primary Care Partnership 
plan, to improve its joint working with GP practices. 
  
In the year up to February 2018, 12,950 alcohol audits were delivered in Wirral. This figure is also steadily 
increasing and represents a significant and sustained delivery of the alcohol awareness and harm reduction 
message.  
 

 

• We will continue to support the 
successful delivery of Wirral’s Alcohol 
Strategy to reduce the impact of 
alcohol misuse on individuals and 
communities. 
 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

P
age 229



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY – REDUCING THE STRENGTH SCHEME 

The Reducing the Strength scheme is a partnership between Wirral Council's environmental 
health, trading standards and public health teams, working with the Wirral Ways To 
Recovery service which aims to reduce the harm caused by super-strength alcohol in 
Wirral. 
 
The scheme has directly signed up 83 businesses and 46 affiliates and consequently alcohol 
related assaults attending Arrowe Park Hospital fell by nearly 30%. 
 
At the hub of Reducing the Strength activity, Birkenhead Centre, there were 361 assaults in 
2014-15. 
 
As the scheme took effect across 2015-16, the number of assaults fell to 286 and remained 
under 300 across 2016-17. 
 
The Reducing the Strength scheme, working with our partners initiatives through the Town 
Centre Forum, has made a significant contribution to the steady reduction of Anti-Social 
Behaviour in Birkenhead Town Centre. 
 
In November 2017 the scheme was judged best in country with the Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health presenting the Reducing the Strength and Custodians scheme it’s 
Best Project Award. 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

“It was an excellent submission, 
highlighting a very well planned, 
executed and evaluated public 
health initiative. All those involved 
are to be congratulated.” 
 
- Chartered Institute of Environmental Health 

P
age 230



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT WE 
SAID 

Priority 03: Increase the number of people with a healthy weight in the borough 

WHAT WE 
DID 

WHAT WE’VE DONE WHAT WE’LL DO NEXT 

• Two weaning groups were piloted in West Wirral and Wallasey to provide 
advice and support for parents around healthy weaning. 
 

• A weight management offer for pregnant women was launched and a 
breast start app was promoted with support groups, including peer 
support running to encourage continued breastfeeding. 
 

• Working on partnership with the 0-19 service and children’s centres we’re 
delivering healthy eating/lifestyles displays within the children’s centres 
and healthy child clinics. 
 

• Commissioned a cost effective weight management services which is 
delivering improved outcomes.  
 

• The Better Food Wirral brand has been developed into a social media 
platform designed to engage followers via Instagram and Twitter on topics 
such as food, fitness and wellbeing. 

• A notice of motion with regard to action to tackle 
obesity has been agreed for action by LCR portfolio 
holders for Health and Wellbeing and will be 
presented to Council in the summer. 
 

• Scoping work on 'Physical Activity, Healthy Eating 
and Healthier Weight: a toolkit for employers' has 
recently started, with the aim of promoting this 
work with local businesses 

                                                                                                       
• Work is underway to progress the  ‘Physical activity 

in primary care’ pilots  
 

• Wirral Council and Wirral CCG have agreed to 
develop an integrated pathway for weight 
management services.    
 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 231



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY – MACMILLAN COMMUNITY WELLBEING PROJECT 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 232



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 
 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT WE SAID Priority 04: Support people to take more control of their health and wellbeing 

WHAT WE’VE DONE WHAT WE’LL DO NEXT 

• 57,811 people accessed Ask Us Wirral for information and advice 
against a target for the year of 32,000. Over 38,000 people have self 
triaged online for the service. The strength of this service is it’s 
volunteer base. The service continues to be delivered in over 25 
locations including Arrowe Park hospital, GP surgeries, One Stop 
Shops, community hubs in Wallasey and Birkenhead and Community 
venues. 
 

• Connect Us began door knocking in March 17. From April ‘17 to March 
‘18) 30,644 doors have been knocked on and 7204 people spoken 
to.  1415 people have engaged with the programme, 56% of whom are 
ESA claimants . 62% of people are reporting an improvement in their 
wellbeing at a three month review and 52% are maintaining this at six 
months 

  
• 140 individuals are currently registered on the Move On UP project in 

17/18 against a target for the year of 93.  44% of those people 
registered are residing in the constituency of Birkenhead. 49% of 
people are currently reporting an improvement in their wellbeing at 3 
month review with 79% sustaining this improvement at six months. 
Spider have recently been awarded the  Liverpool City Region 
Community Music & Arts Awards 2018 for the project.  
 

• We’ll provide support, information and advice 
to vulnerable residents and/or people with low 
level mental health issues to encourage 
independence and self-management. 
 

• We’ll raise awareness and encourage take up of 
the behaviours associated with the Five Ways to 
Wellbeing. 
 

• We’ll promote digital options e.g. “Best You” to 
encourage independence and self-
management. 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

P
age 233



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY – Westbourne Avenue Good Neighbourhood Day 

The Connect Us programme, which aims to increase residents’ connections within 
their communities and target health-related worklessness, organised The 
Westbourne Avenue Good Neighbourhood Day in partnership with Wirral Council’s 
Healthy Homes and The Wezzy Gardens Resident Association. 
 
The agencies that attended the event ranged from ReachOut, Energy Projects Plus, 
The Fire Service, Merseyside Police, Liverpool Housing Trust, Jigsaw Project, 
Kontactabus as well as representation from the ‘Love Where You Live’ campaign. 
 
Door knocking to engage local residents to ask them about their concerns, aspirations 
for the area and to promote the good neighbour scheme were the main purposes of 
the event. 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

OUTCOMES 

As a direct result of the Good Neighbourhood Day, the community are now actively involved with the ‘Love Where You Live Campaign’ 
and Kontactabus are attending regularly to engage with younger people in the area. 
 
One of the Community members who we discussed the good neighbour scheme with also asked Connect Us about help for her 21 year old 
grandson who lives with her. They arranged for an appointment with her grandson who disclosed that he felt extremely isolated as a 
result of low self-esteem. After linking in with Connect Us and ReachOut, within one month of the event he was working in paid 
employment. 
 
17 Good Neighbour stickers were also accepted during the door knocking period. 

P
age 234



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY –  Move on UP 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 235



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

PLEDGE-  
WHAT WE SAID Priority 04: Support people to take more control of their health and wellbeing 

WHAT WE’VE DONE WHAT WE’LL DO NEXT 

• All five general practices involve in the  Beacon Practice Blood 
pressure scheme have all shown significantly higher performance on 
NICE quality standards than practices outside the scheme.  

 
• 20 leisure service staff have trained in testing blood pressure. They 

have been provided with equipment to implement regular testing 
within their centres  
 

• Over 3,000 members of the public were given blood pressure checks 
(outside of general practice) via various community events last year. 
Of those, approximately 25%  had a result that was higher than 
average and 3-5% has a result that warranted urgent medical advice.  
 

• More frontline staff will be trained over the 
coming months. 
 

• Further community testing events will take 
place throughout the Spring and Summer. 
These will include DWP, Morrisons 
Supermarket, Bromborough trading estate 
‘Men Who Drive’, Tranmere Rovers, Wirral 
Libraries 
 

• Training events (updates in clinical guidelines 
on hypertension etc.) have been delivered to 
Wirral practice nurses. GP and further PN 
events are scheduled over the next 2 months. 
 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

P
age 236



THE WIRRAL PLAN:  

WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

CASE STUDY –  BLOOD PRESSURE 

52 year old male tested via community event last year. 
Blood pressure was 170/90 (i.e. high). He had been 
completely unaware of his high blood pressure. He was 
advised to see a nurse and he went on to have a full NHS 
Healthcheck. He is now on treatment to control his blood 
pressure, has joined a gym and lost weight. His blood 
pressure on re-test (at another of our community events!) 
is now 135/77 (normal) 

Councillor Chris Jones 
Julie Webster 

WIRRAL RESIDENTS LIVE HEALTHIER LIVES 

P
age 237



WIRRAL PLAN 2020 

QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSION 
 P

age 238



NHS England Quarterly Report to Wirral Health & Wellbeing Board

July 2018

1. Purpose of this report 

The aim of this report is to update Wirral Health and Wellbeing Board regarding the 
activities and responsibilities of NHS England. This report outlines the national and 
regional position together with specific updates on priorities that the Local NHS 
England Teams are responsible for progressing.

2. NHS70: Celebrating 70 years of the NHS

The National Health Service turns 70 on 5 July 2018. 

Throughout 2018 there will be ongoing events and celebrations highlighting the work 
of the NHS over the last 70 years

National celebrations at Westminster Abbey and York Minster will pay tribute to NHS 
staff and patients to mark the NHS’s 70th birthday on Thursday 5 July 2018. The 
services will be attended by around 3,000 NHS staff from across the country and 
representatives of charities, councils, and other key partners who work with the NHS.

Wider celebrations on July 5th to mark the NHS’s big birthday will include thousands 
of 7Tea parties to raise money for NHS charities, whilst dozens of landmark 
buildings will light up blue including York Minster, the Blackpool Tower, the 
Gateshead Millennium Bridge, the London Eye and Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. 
The BT Tower will also run a special birthday message from on its iconic info band.

Locally our landmarks lighting up BLUE across Cheshire and Merseyside are: 

• Mersey Gateway Bridge

• Everton FC, Goodison Park

• Active Learning Lab (University of Liverpool

• Steve Prescot Bridge – St Helens

• Footbridge across the M62 between Bowring Park and The Rocket

• Port of Liverpool building

• Cunard Building

• Liverpool Town Hall

• St Georges Hall – Liverpool

Page 239

Agenda Item 9a



2

• St Helens Rugby Club

• Mechanical Engineering Building - Liverpool University

• World Museum, Liverpool

• Liverpool Radio City Tower

• Sefton Park Palm House, Sefton Park

• Isla Gladstone Conservatory, Stanley Park

• Warrington Rugby Club

• Liverpool Convention Centre

• St Luke’s Church (Bombed out Church), Liverpool

3. Strategy and planning 

3.1 NHS England and NHS Improvement: working closer together

NHS England and NHS Improvement announced on 27th March 2018 some key 
steps that we are taking to bring our organisations closer together.

We have one NHS: commissioners and providers in each part of the country are 
serving the same people, and we need to use the resources that Parliament gives 
the NHS to greater benefit for local patients. This requires a much stronger focus on 
collaboration and joint working nationally as well as in local health systems.

We will begin to establish the following working arrangements from September 2018:

 increased integration and alignment of national programmes and activities – 
one team where possible

 integration of NHS England and NHS Improvement regional teams, to be led 
in each case by one regional director working for both organisations, and a 
move to seven regional teams to underpin this new approach.

For North England this will mean 2  integrated NHSE & NHSI regional teams; one to 
cover the North East and Yorkshire, one to cover Cheshire, Merseyside, Lancashire, 
South Cumbria and Greater Manchester. The new regional director for the North 
West is expected to be announced by September 2018

A more joined-up approach across NHS England and NHS Improvement will enable 
us to:

•work much more effectively with commissioners and providers in local health 
systems to break down traditional boundaries between different parts of the NHS 
and between health and social care

Page 240



3

•speak with one voice, setting clear, consistent expectations for providers, 
commissioners and local health systems

•use NHS England and NHS Improvement’s collective resources more effectively 
and efficiently to support local health systems and the patients they serve

•remove unnecessary duplication and improve the impact from our work, delivering 
more for the NHS together than we do by working separately.

There are a number of examples of how we are working together already, including a 
number of joint national and regional appointments and a single national programme 
for urgent and emergency care, winter planning and A&E performance.

NHS England and NHS Improvement still have distinctive statutory responsibilities 
and accountabilities and nothing we are proposing cuts across these. The legislation 
also means that a formal merger between our organisations is not possible; instead 
we propose to combine forces for those functions where we can better work as one.

3.2 NHS Long Term Plan

GPs, patients and healthcare professionals are being given the chance to have their 
say on plans by the NHS which will help shape the future of a modern general 
practice.

The NHS is looking at ways to reform the GP contract to provide a stronger and 
more sustainable general practice for patients as part of the new NHS Long Term 
Plan.

In particular, with a wide range of partners, NHS England has reviewed the Quality 
and Outcomes Framework (QOF) which provides payments for achieving outcomes 
that reflect high quality care in general practice.

It is also looking at how general practice payments might change to fairly support the 
rollout of digital technology across the country.

The changes to the current GP Contract, which was agreed nearly 15 years ago, are 
being looked at to meet the changing needs of a growing and ageing population and 
increased use of digital services locally.

NHS England is inviting views from GPs, patients and healthcare professionals on 
both documents.

Feedback can be given using the links below and is requested by August 31;

https://www.england.nhs.uk/2018/07/help-shape-modern-primary-care-says-nhs-
england-as-part-of-nhs-long-term-plan/

Primary care is one of the four national service improvement priority areas identified 
in Next Steps on the Five Year Forward View.

Page 241

https://www.england.nhs.uk/2018/07/help-shape-modern-primary-care-says-nhs-england-as-part-of-nhs-long-term-plan/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/2018/07/help-shape-modern-primary-care-says-nhs-england-as-part-of-nhs-long-term-plan/


4

These two pieces of work set out ways to ensure that investment is fair and supports 
high quality care in a changing environment.

In the case of the Quality and Outcomes Framework, reforms to the scheme are 
proposed that recognise and support the professional values of GPs and their teams 
in the delivery of first contact, comprehensive, coordinated, person-centred care.

In the case of digital-first primary care,  proposals seek to ensure that  the way we 
commission, contract and pay for care keeps up with the opportunities digital 
innovation offers – ensuring that new technology is safely integrated into health and 
care pathways, whilst not unfairly destabilising existing services.

Both of these pieces of work will feed into NHS England and the BMA General 
Practitioners Committee in England discussions concerning next year’s GP contract.

3.3 New Fund to support and retain GPs.

NHS England announced at the end of May, a new £10 million fund to support and 
retain GPs

Of this some £7 million will be made available through regional-based schemes to 
help GPs to stay in the workforce, by promoting new ways of working and by offering 
additional support through a new Local GP Retention Fund.

A further £3 million will also be made available to establish seven intensive support 
sites across the country in areas that have struggled most to retain GPs. Details on 
these sites and plans for retention efforts there will be shortly.

The fund will support local health services focussing on supporting newly qualified 
GPs or those within their first five years of practice, who are seriously considering 
leaving general practice or who are no longer clinically practising in the NHS in 
England but remain on the National Performers List (Medical).

It is the latest in a series of initiatives aimed at improving patient care by improving 
GPs quality of work life

3.4 National Directors

 Paul Baumann CBE, Chief Finance Officer, NHS England is to leave the 
Health Service in November to take up the post of Receiver General of 
Westminster Abbey. Paul agreed to delay confirming a start date for his new 
role until the long-term NHS financial settlement was confirmed in June 2018

 Professor Jane Cummings announced she is retiring from the post of Chief 
Nursing Officer for England on 24th May 2018. Jane will play an instrumental 
role in supporting the alignment of the two nursing teams across NHS 
England and NHS Improvement over the next six months

Page 242



5

Both posts will be recruited to as joint appointments for both NHS England and NHS 
Improvement

4. Delivery and Assurance

4.1 Urgent and emergency care: preparations for winter 2018/19
 
We continue to work with local health & care systems across Cheshire and 
Merseyside to improve access to and the quality of urgent and emergency care 
services. To support and inform local plans for winter, NHS England announced the 
intention to improve patient care by reducing long stays in hospitals.

Shorter stays will benefit patients who would otherwise remain in hospital when they 
are well enough to leave as well as freeing up beds for those who are sicker.

Many older people, particularly those who are frail and may have dementia, actually 
deteriorate while in hospital – a stay of more than 10 days leads to 10 years’ muscle 
ageing for people most at risk.

Nearly 350,000 patients spend more than three weeks in a hospital each year. That 
is around a fifth of beds, or the equivalent of 36 hospitals. Some patients need to be 
there for medical reasons but many do not.

The NHS, working with local authorities, aims to reduce the number of long staying 
patients by around a quarter, freeing up more than 4,000 beds in time for the winter 
surge. It’s anticipated this will be a significant feature of Urgent Care Boards winter 
plans.

4.2 Mental health

As outlined in the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health and Implementing the 
Five Year Forward View for Mental Health, NHS England has committed to doubling 
access to Individual Placement and Support (IPS) services nationally by 2020/21, 
enabling approximately 20,000 people who experience a severe mental illness (SMI) 
to find and retain employment.

Rates of employment are lower for people with mental health problems than for any 
other group of health conditions. IPS is an evidence-based approach to providing 
employment support for people experiencing severe mental health problems, shown 
to be twice as effective as vocational rehabilitation and associated with reduced use 
of other services including inpatient admissions. In 2016/17, IPS services in England 
achieved approximately 2,300 job outcomes.

Earlier this year, NHS England launched transformation funding to support the 
national expansion of IPS services. Funding is being allocated in two targeted waves 
over the next three years.

Page 243



6

The first wave, which totals approximately £10 million of funding across 2018/19 and 
2019/20, will support the expansion of well-established, high quality IPS services. 
The 21 areas allocated wave 1 funding have all been notified and are working at 
pace to expand services as per their bids. Meanwhile, the second wave of funding, 
which we hope to launch later this year, will support increasing provision in other 
areas that have IPS services which require further development, or no current IPS 
service provision.

Among the IPS services to receive wave 1 funding, and which uses evidence-based 
strategies to support people with SMI into employment, is Northamptonshire 
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust.

An independent consortium was commissioned by the government’s Joint Work and 
Health Unit to support the growth of IPS services. As part of its work, the consortium 
has produced a number of useful tools and templates to support the growth of 
consistently high quality IPS services. These can be accessed at 
www.ipsgrow.org.uk.

Cheshire and Merseyside is one of the 21 areas allocated wave 1 IPS funding.

4.3 Care in nursing homes (React to Red)

Pressure ulcers are a major cause of harm and distress. They can have a huge 
impact on the quality of life of anyone that develops one. Complications from a 
pressure ulcer can include pain, risk of infection, complications associated with bed 
rest and depression. React to Red is an evidence based educational resource. It 
aims to increase knowledge and awareness of prevention and early intervention 
measures amongst carers, care home staff and care providers.
Its focus is the SSKIN bundle, a set of interventions that can support care staff in the 
prevention of pressure ulcers.
React to Red resources are provided free of charge to Care Homes. The resources 
come in a pack containing a DVD, workbook, posters, carer leaflet, competency form 
and a pocket guide. Training is offered to the care homes and they are asked to put 
forward champions from their staff who will continue the training within the home, a 
train the trainer approach.
NHS England Nursing team have supported 200+ care homes across Cheshire and 
Merseyside over the last 12 months. Within Wirral, 38 care homes (32%) have 
attended training sessions and been given a training pack and extra pocket guides.

4.4 Capital investment in primary care

NHS England’s Estates and Technology Transformation Fund (ETTF) is a multi-
million pound investment (revenue and capital funding) in general practice facilities 
and technology across England (between 2015/16 and 2019/20).
It is part of the General Practice Forward View commitment for more modernised 
buildings and better use of technology to help improve general practices services for 
patients

Page 244

http://www.ipsgrow.org.uk/


7

ETTF has delivered locally in Cheshire & Merseyside 74% of the total revenue in the 
North of England. There was £3.93m of ETTF capital investment into Wirral last 
year, supporting 5 transformational digital and technology related schemes.  These 
funded projects enabled:

 Improved clinical workforce agile working including significant scale up of 
GPs/Community provider’s ability to deliver care from outside of the practice 
setting.

 Improved patient access.
 Improving information sharing and interoperability potential between NHS 

care settings across primary, community and acute providers
 Enhancement of the quality of clinical information available to GPs and wider 

primary care teams and their ability to enter information into patient records in 
real time, improving the quality of care and freeing up clinical time.

 Supporting wide ranging administrative efficiencies in primary care settings 
meaning that the GPs and practice staff will have more time for patient facing 
work.

This was supplemented with £658k of further capital in 2017/18 to support core 
‘business as usual’ primary care IT digital and tech requirements, i.e. basic practice 
hardware (PCs, Monitors and the like).

Achieving, in total, circa £4.6m of additional capital investment monies for digital 
capability in 2017/18 for Wirral.  

Final planning for 2018/19-2019/20 investments, continues with an additional 
£10million across both digital and premises infrastructure being considered across 
Cheshire & Merseyside

ENDS

Nicola Allen

Head of Medical, NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) & Lead for Service Change 
Assurance

4th July 2018

Page 245



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Report
2017/18

WirralWirralWirral

P
age 247

A
genda Item

 9b



HW – Healthwatch Wirral

HWE – Healthwatch England

NHS – National Health Service

DASS – Department of Adult Social Services

BME – Black and Minority Ethnic

WUTHFT – Wirral University Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust

CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group

CHC – Continuing Health Care Funding

PLACE – Patient Led Assessments of the Care Environment

CQC – Care Quality Commission

JSNA – Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

CADT – Central Advice and Duty Team

BSL – British Sign Language

COPD – Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease

NHSE – National Health Service England

ACE - Agencies for Carers Executive

A&E  – Accident & Emergency

WUTHFT - Wirral University Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust

WWTR - Wirral Ways to Recovery

OSC - Overview and Scrutiny Committee

ECG - Electrocardiogram

PPG - Patient Participation Group

STP - Sustainability Transformation Partnership

Glossary of Terms

P
age 248



Contents
A message from our Chair and Chief Executive .....................................................
Highlights from our year............................................................................................................
Who we are.........................................................................................................................................
Supporting you to have your say........................................................................................
Helping you find the answers................................................................................................
Making a difference together...................................................................................................
Our people............................................................................................................................................
Finances................................................................................................................................................
Volunteers...........................................................................................................................................
Our plans for next year...............................................................................................................

4
5
6
7

14
16
22
26
28
31

P
age 249



A message 
from our 
Chair 
and Chief 
Executive

Welcome to 2017/18 Healthwatch Wirral 
Annual Report.   Like other years there have 
been challenges.  However, Healthwatch 
Wirral has continued to strive to meet as 
many people as possible to enable individual 
voices to be heard at the highest level. We 
have attended Board meetings, Community 
meetings, Councillors meetings, themed 
meetings (such as Urgent Care, Mental Health, 
COPD, Diabetes, Pressure Ulcers) and have 
discussed issues that many of us face on a 
daily basis.

It is, of course, a priority for Healthwatch 
Wirral to identify what matters to the residents 
of Wirral, from those who use health and 
social care services to those who design and 
deliver them.

Our strategy for 2017/18 was to get out and 
about as much as possible and increase 
the amount of people we spoke to and 
gather more information than ever before.  
Healthwatch Wirral plans for 2017/18 included 
setting priorities which matched the public’s 
views, and experiences, with “the Five Year 
Forward View”.

A more joined up approach to delivering 
services by the NHS and the Local Authority 
has resulted in Healthwatch Wirral attending 
more meetings than ever, to ensure that the 
public’s voice is an integral part in the design 
of services for the future.

Working within the Information Bank, at 

Arrowe Park Hospital, has enabled us to put 
strength of numbers behind the information 
we have gathered. We have been in direct 
contact with approximately 12,000 people 
mid-March 2017 to end of February 2018 – just 
in the Information Bank.

Strategic Highlights

Our strategic highlights have been:

• Greater reach into our communities to find 
out what really matters to people

• Greater knowledge of services in our 
communities, which has resulted in people 
being signposted to the most appropriate 
services, at the earliest opportunity

• Improved collaboration, enabling 
Healthwatch Wirral to be a partner in 
improving pathways and integrated 
services (mental health, care navigation 
working in partnership with GP’s, Dementia 
and Urgent Care)

• Improved networking and partnerships 
(Healthwatch England, Local Healthwatch 
Networks, local Counsellors, local Trusts 
and the Local Authority)

• The continued success of the Directory of 
services on our website both in terms of 
the number of services listed and also the 
amount of people who are now using it

• Receiving certification for the ISO 9001 
Quality Management system

• Healthwatch England ‘Highly Commended’ 
for Engagement and Information 
Gathering

P
age 250



We’ve reached 
30,615 
people 
online*

We have made 10 
referrals to the 
Central Advice and 
Duty Team, aiming to 
keep people safe

We have 
attended 122 
events and 
engagement 
opportunities

We have received 1426 
issues from members of 
the public 

Our volunteers have 
given approximately
1006 
hours of 
their time

your
voice

counts

*140 new Twitter followers with 16,616 impressions. 6,469 website visits. 7,390 active e-bulletin recipients.

Highlights 
from our 
year

P
age 251



Who we are
What  We Do

You need services that work for you, your 
friends and family. That’s why we want you to 
share your experiences of using health and 
care with us – both good and bad. We use your 
voice to encourage those who run services to 
act on what matters to you.

As well as championing your views locally, 
we also share your views with Healthwatch 
England who make sure that the government 
put people at the heart of care nationally.

Our Vision

Our vision is to ensure that the voice of 
the individual is heard and services are 
responsive to their needs; that everyone 
has the opportunity to have their say and 
understands how and when to access their 
local health and social care services.

The core purpose of local Healthwatch is to be 
the consumer champion for health and care 
service users (through section 221 activities set 
out in the 2007 Act). It should involve patients, 
service users and the public in shaping local 
health and care services; and raise awareness 
of their views and experiences in relation 
to those services amongst those in charge 
including commissioners and providers.

How we work

Every voice counts when it comes to shaping 

the future of health and social care, and when 
it comes to improving it for today. Everything 
that local Healthwatch does will bring the 
voice and influence of local people to the 
development and delivery of local services.

People need to feel that their local 
Healthwatch belongs to and reflects them 
and their local community. It needs to feel 
approachable, practical and dynamic and to 
act on behalf of local people.

• We’re helping you to shape and improve 
the services you use

• We’re engaging with people in your 
community & if you haven’t met us yet, 
please get in touch!

• We’re an open organisation and want to 
make it easy for you to talk to us

• We’re inclusive & we want people from 
every part of your community to join us

• Ask us what we’re doing & we’ll always tell 
you what’s happening

• We’re here to help services to improve
• We’ll notice the bad things, and the good
• We use your evidence to build a true 

picture of your local services

P
age 252



your
voice

counts

Supporting 
you to have 
your say

P
age 253



Annual Report 2017/188

Listening to people’s views
We have worked in partnership with a final year student from Liverpool 
University, Leah Regan, to examine how local people who are homeless 
access and experience healthcare services. The Charles Thomson 
Mission in Birkenhead kindly allowed us to use their premises to talk 
to people whilst they accessed the centre for hot food and drinks at 
the coldest point in the year.  We used questionnaires and interviewed 
people who are homeless along with professionals to get a better 
understanding of the barriers that people experience when accessing 
health and care services. We have considered GP services, community 
services together with local Accident & Emergency services. Leah’s 
report which will form her dissertation will be available on our website 
later in the year.

We recognise that people who live in sheltered accommodation often 
access healthcare services but are often a hard to reach audience 
in terms of being able to express their views.  We worked with 
Riverside Housing Association and visited each of their 13 sheltered 
accommodation sites across the Wirral having a “Tea and Tell Us” 
session where we captured their views and experiences of Health & 
Social Care services in Wirral.

Examples of how and why we have worked with diverse 

communities in our area

We gave advice to a family regarding CHC funding. The family were 
distressed and anxious because they thought they would not be able 
to visit her husband if the patient was placed at any distance from 
home, as she did not drive. We ensured that the patient was offered 
at least two options of care within 5 mile radius of home. Due to our 
intervention and working alongside the Integrated Discharge Team, 
we ensured the patients’ rights and choices were met. Sadly when no 

An asylum seeker, who is also a victim of domestic abuse, and 
subsequently a patient in Arrowe Park, came to us for help and support 
regarding imminent discharge. We were instrumental in signposting 
to a local Asylum support co-ordinator and support groups. We also 
provided details of how to access free cookery lessons in the local 
community and begin healthy eating plans. This was an essential 
part of this patient’s recovery, and thus prevented future relapses and 
further hospital admissions.

During the period, we reached over 75 older people across the borough 
by visiting  11 care homes which had a total capacity of up to 343 people.

Comments received included:

“I love living at this home”
“I am very happy with the care” 
“The food is lovely”
“I enjoy the activities”

Tesco Community Room – Tesco Store Bidston Moss

We engaged with our local community to listen to their experiences, 
discuss local services, provide information and to signpost people to 
appropriate services.

Over the year we provided information and spoke to 128 people. The 
majority of people reported that they were satisfied with the services 
they had used but some members of the public were concerned about 

suitable offer of care could be found, the family requested the patient 
remained in hospital to receive end of life care. This was agreed. 
Healthwatch Wirral was paramount in this decision being taken.

P
age 254



Annual Report 2017/18 9

the changes in the phlebotomy service and the length of time they had 
to wait when they attended for an appointment. Some people informed 
Healthwatch Wirral about difficulty in accessing GP appointments. Both 
of these concerns were fed back to the commissioners and providers 
and Healthwatch were assured that the waiting times for Phlebotomy 
had improved.

Making sure services work for you
Enter and View Activity During 2017/18

Healthwatch organisations have statutory legal powers called Enter & 
View. These powers enable us to enter premises where NHS or social 
care is provided. 

During this year we conducted visits to Care Homes, Hospital 
Departments, GP Practices and a Walk in Centre to make observations 
and speak to residents, patients, relatives and staff.

When we decided to visit a provider, we met with our Quality 
Assurance group and looked at a wide range of sources of information 
to decide the purpose of the visit and obtain a full understanding of 
the service. The purposes of our visits during the year ranged from 
‘responding to feedback from the public’ to ‘revisit’.

On occasions, if applicable, to support this we met with commissioners 
and regulators (CQC) to share information and ensure that our planned 
visits complemented the work of other organisations.

In addition to following our own programme of Care Home visits, 
Healthwatch Wirral worked in partnership with the Local Authority 
who identified a number of care homes that they would like us to visit 
with Local Elected Members. The aim of this piece of work was to visit 

‘Green’ rated homes (homes that were performing well) in order for the 
Local Authority/CCG Quality Improvement team to visit and support 
homes that required improvement.

We conducted a series of short visits using a Healthwatch Wirral Staff 
Member and an Elected Member as Authorised Representatives.                                                   
The Elected Members used for each visit were not from the 
Constituency that they represent at Local Government. 

Responding to incoming issues from members of the public around 
nutrition (and also to the fact that Arrowe Park Hospital was struggling 
to meet the target to support patients with eating and drinking based 
on their nutritional needs) Healthwatch Wirral Working Group made 
a decision to conduct thematic visits to hospital wards specifically to 
look at hydration and nutrition provided.

The reports produced from our Care Home visits were based on 
the factual information collected. In order to help improve care, our 
reports provided a variety of recommendations and we monitored 
the responses. We also recognised good care and shared good practice 
with other organisations.

Care Homes

Following our 11 visits, we made recommendations to the providers of
Care and highlighted good practice. 

Our recommendations included: installation of handrails to aid 
residents to move around safely, consider introduction of dementia 
friendly environment in future refurbishment plans, investing in 
information technology to enable residents to use Skype etc, remove 
an old fridge placed in a garden, complete 6 Steps End of Life training, 
engage with the local community, ensure that visitors sign in and use 

P
age 255



Annual Report 2017/1810

hand gel, continue to work on CQC recommendations, consider taking 
part in the Teletriage Pilot, remove equipment stored in hallways, 
Continue to develop systems and documentation to improve the 
kitchen food hygiene rating, address cleanliness issues.

Outcomes

A number of our recommended changes are ongoing or have already 
taken place, including:

• Engaging with the local community by inviting schools in to talk to 
residents

• Inviting community groups to use spare rooms for meetings and 
activities

• Removal of white goods placed in garden
• Reviewing the safe storage of equipment
• Improving both external and internal environment
• Installing signs to remind visitors to sign in to the home and use 

hand gel
• Installing dementia friendly signage
• Signing up for the teletriage pilot
• Investment in a deep clean

Examples of good practice 

• One home has become part of the Centre for Creativity & 
Innovation (Ladder to the Moon) which encourages staff to be 
spontaneous in their delivery of activities

• Another home works in partnership with an organisation called 
OOMPH (which stands for Our Organisation Makes People Happy) 
an award winning Social Enterprise who provide fun, inclusive and 
effective exercise and activities for older people

Walk-in Centre

The provision of local urgent care services are currently being 
reviewed by the commissioners and we worked with the CCG in 
obtaining views from the public and local stakeholders.                                                                                              

We attended Eastham clinic to listen to and gather the views and 
experiences of local residents who have used, or may have cause to use 
urgent care in the future.

Outcome

These views were shared with the commissioners in order to help 
them develop options for public consultation in the summer of 2018.

GP Practices

During the year Healthwatch Wirral conducted visits to 5 local GP 
Practices who had been participating in the ‘Patient led repeat ordering 
project’ piloted by NHS Wirral CCG. The purpose of these visits were 
to produce a report and provide independent feedback to NHS Wirral 
CCG and stakeholders. Healthwatch Authorised Representatives talked 
to patients about their experiences and views of using the new system 
of ordering repeat prescriptions.

 The report included recommendations for the CCG to consider and 
was presented at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee by the CCG.

Outcome

The Wirral Medicines Management Team are currently reviewing the 
outcomes following the OSC meeting in March.

P
age 256



Annual Report 2017/18 11

Hospitals

Wards - We visited two Wards at Wirral University Foundation Hospital 
Trust to observe catering and nutrition provision in wards with patients 
who may have challenging nutritional needs and need specialist 
ongoing support.

Further visits to Wards will take place in 2018.

Healthwatch recommendations included:

• Ensure that patient rounding includes checking that patients can 
open their bottled water or staff opening the bottle for the patient

• Ensure that portions of meals are always discussed with patients so 
that they are not overfaced as this can have a detrimental effect on 
nutrition

Examples of good practice were:

• The patients benefit from the close proximity of the Specialist 
Nutrition Team

• The introduction of the snack fridge has been a success as has the 
installation of a communal TV in the patients’ lounge

• The introduction of finger foods mainly for patients with dementia

Outcome

• Healthwatch were assured that discussions would take place with 
patients and the staff about portion size

• The report findings would be shared with Ward teams
• A dedicated Nutrition and Hydration group has been established to 

address any issues

Wards - Discharge from Hospital Survey Wirral University Teaching 
Foundation Trust

Healthwatch Wirral Working Group identified from monitoring that 
patients continue to have problems with their discharge from hospital. 
It was decided that we would review the process of discharge from 
Hospital and produce a report on the findings.

During November 2017 to March 2018 we carried out 6  Enter and View 
visits to the Discharge Lounge and visited 13 wards at Arrowe Park 
Hospital to speak to patients as they were waiting to be discharged. 

Outcome

The findings of the survey will be published on Healthwatch Wirral 
website.

A&E Department

Healthwatch worked in partnership with 8 other Healthwatch 
organisations to focus on pressures around delivery of NHS A&E and to 
gain a snapshot view of the A&E departments in the region

• Healthwatch Cheshire East 
• Healthwatch Halton 
• Healthwatch Knowsley 
• Healthwatch Liverpool 
• Healthwatch Sefton 
• Healthwatch St Helens
• Healthwatch Warrington 
• Healthwatch Cheshire West
 
The survey was completed over a three-hour period in the 
summertime so as to provide a direct comparison with the winter visit 
in January.

P
age 257



Annual Report 2017/1812

Two questionnaires were devised in order to capture reasons for 
attending A&E and then people’s experiences of A&E following their 
visit.

Outcome

A combined report will be published.

PLACE Visits 

Patient-led assessments of the care environment (PLACE) is a system 
for assessing the quality of a hospital environment.                                                                                                                                    

These assessments apply to all hospitals delivering NHS-funded care, 
including day treatment centres and hospices.

PLACE assessments put patient views at the centre of the assessment 
process, and use information obtained directly from patient 
assessors to report how well a hospital is performing in the areas 
assessed – privacy and dignity, cleanliness, food and general building 
maintenance. It focuses entirely on the care environment and does not 
cover clinical care provision or staff behaviours.
                                                                                                           
During the year, through our communications, we were able to recruit 
volunteers and staff members to be involved with a number of patient-
led care reviews. 

We participated in a number of PLACE Audits, including Arrowe Park 
Hospital, Clatterbridge Cancer Centre, Wirral Hospice St Johns and 
Springview Hospital.

Representatives who attended were able to comment on issues such as 
compassion and dignity of care, quality of food provision, cleanliness 
and site maintenance. 

All comments were taken into account by the Hospitals who have a 
statutory duty to undertake the assessments annually and report the 
results publicly

The results which can be found on https://digital.nhs.uk show how 
hospitals are performing nationally.

Our Enter & View Authorised Representatives During 2017/18

Volunteers

Diane Morley, Tricia Harrison, Marylin Wallace, Mary Rutter, Carmel 
Calvert, Piara Miah, Jo McCourt, Kristen Beattie, Bev Parker, Cllr Bruce 
Berry, Cllr Ian Lewis, Cllr Stephen Williams and Cllr Julie McManus

Staff

Karen Prior, Elaine Evans, Wendy Kay, Karen Crampton

Supporting our Enter & View Authorised Representatives

We offer training in the role itself and ongoing further awareness 
sessions in Safeguarding, Deprivation of Liberty (DOLS), Infection 
Control, Manual Handling and Report Writing.

Spire Murrayfield Hospital

Wirral CCG approached Healthwatch to work with them in an attempt 
to get a broader picture of Spire Murrayfield. The concerns were in 
relation to environment, leadership and delayed procedures.  We 
were able to provide some assurances – as we had conducted an Enter 
& View where we met with staff and the new Hospital Director.  The 
CCG were very encouraged by the findings of Healthwatch Wirral and 
thanked us for a thorough piece of work

P
age 258



Annual Report 2017/18 13

We had also identified through our monitoring that a patient had 
experienced problems with wheelchair access to the entrance.

Healthwatch recommendations included:

• Continue with the planned programme of refurbishment and 
improvements both internally and externally

Outcome

• External car parks have been resurfaced where required 
• Improved signage
• Road markings repainted 
• Front entrance wheelchairs access altered and improved upon
• Externals being taken care of and maintained appropriately 
• Internally, all items are complete and actioned apart from actual 

refurbishments which are ongoing

P
age 259



your
voice

counts

Helping 
you find the 
answers

P
age 260



Annual Report 2017/18 15

How we have helped the community get the 
information they need

Wirral
Need Support? Let us 

point you in the right 

direction

Our free signposting directory is 
mobile-friendly, easy to use and 
contains services funded for 
Wirral residents.

Healthwatch Wirral would like to hear your thoughts on local Health & Care services. Call us, email us or 
visit our website to have your say.

www.healthwatchwirral.co.uk/signposting

To enable us to give people the most appropriate advice/information 
we use the expertise of our staff team.  We have a team meeting every 
Thursday morning where we share any news or updates on health 
or care services.  We also talk about the wider things that support our 
wellbeing like transport and housing.

Any information we gather is shared with the public on our website 
and through a monthly e-bulletin – which you can receive if you simply 
send us your email address.  We can also send out a hard copy if 
required.

To help us with signposting people to the right service, or person, we 
have compiled a directory of services.  Initially, the directory focusses 
on services to support people with mental health concerns; the plan 
is, however, to build more themed directories – all of which will be 
available on our website. 

The “unique selling point” of our directory is that we call all of the 
services bi-monthly to ensure that their details have not changed. 
Therefore, the directory is always kept up-to-date.

P
age 261



your
voice

counts

Making a 
difference 
together

P
age 262



Annual Report 2017/18 17

How we have helped improve your experience 
whilst viewing care
A patient who is profoundly deaf and was required to stay in hospital 
over Christmas period. He could not afford the cost of the hospital TV. 
Staff asked if we could source a TV with subtitles for patient during 
their stay. We contacted SVP and Wirral Society for Deaf to ask for their 
help. Through our intervention a local charity donated a small TV for 
the patient.

Elderly relatives of a terminally ill patient had travelled from out of area. 
They had no option but to book temporary overnight accommodation 
in a local hotel. WUTHFT could offer guest accommodation on-site at a 
cost of £40 per night, but the couple could not afford this, although they 
wanted to stay at the hospital so as to be near their relative. 

A sister on ICU contacted us to see if we could help. We contacted our 
local St Vincent De Paul on Wirral who immediately offered to fund the 
stay at the hospital. The couple were delighted with this outcome. 

We continued to liaise with the ward sister and hospital guest services 
to ensure the required paperwork was completed; this avoided extra 
stress for the relatives.

A patient who used the services at Spire Murrayfield reported that the 
access both in and out of the entrance was very difficult and could be 
unsafe for wheelchair users.

We conducted an Enter and View visit and observed a member of staff 
having difficulty assisting a wheelchair user depart from the hospital. 

This concern was highlighted in the visit report and the Hospital 
addressed the issue by altering and improving the front entrance 
wheelchairs access.

A patient, who had been an inpatient at the local hospital with a throat 
condition, contacted us. They had developed a problem with their jaw 
which was preventing them from swallowing and eating properly. At 
their follow up appointment they were told that the jaw problem was 
due to wear and tear. Their condition was worsening and they wanted 
to know if they could go back.

We contacted the ENT department who said that they would contact 
the patient. The patient was offered an appointment in 3 weeks time. 
The patient informed them that they could not wait that long as their 
condition was deteriorating. The ENT Dept said that they would speak 
to the doctor and phone the patient back. This did not happen so the 
patient contacted Healthwatch again.

We advised the person to go to the Walk in Centre at Arrowe Park 
Hospital.

The patient attended the Walk-in Centre and was seen by a doctor 
who referred them to ENT. The patient was admitted for 3 days and 
discharged with a further supply of antibiotics.

The patient contacted Healthwatch saying:

“ I would like to say a great big ‘Thank you’ for steering me in the right 
direction, I did exactly as you advised and attended the Walk in Centre 
who arranged for me to be admitted. I am now at home recuperating.”

P
age 263



Annual Report 2017/1818

Work with the Community Trust

Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust had planned a series of 
events for their services to support them in developing transformation 
plans to best meet the needs of patients, and commissioner’s 
requirements, whilst operating ever more efficiently.  Healthwatch 
Wirral was invited to attend the first planning day to support the 
context for this work.  We presented to their service leads about our 
work on patient engagement and how we engage with patients who 
are “hard to reach”.  The feedback from this presentation suggested that 
our insight really helped service leads understand how they might get 
the most out of engaging patients in their service transformation and 
support their planning. 

This resulted in the 0-19 service asked us to attend their team meetings 
and provide some more advice about engaging with younger patients 
and their carers.

Following on from our involvement the 0-19 service engaging with 
patients and using the feedback to evaluate and transform their 
service. They extended their popular Healthy Child Drop in Clinics to 
allow access for school aged children and are now running four, weekly 
“Health & Wellbeing Hubs, for school aged children and young people” 
across the Wirral. 

Work with Public Health – Suicide Prevention Training

In February 2017 one of our staff members attended Public Health 
sponsored “train the trainer” training in Suicide Prevention for 
Community Gatekeepers. We delivered our first session to 5 people 
in a community café setting in April 2017.  Since then we have trained 

126 community gatekeepers increasing their knowledge of practical 
suicide prevention techniques, to enable them to confidently make 
appropriate and timely interventions if they think someone is feeling 
suicidal. The recipients of the training have included mental health 
drop in centres, specialist services supporting women, Barnardo’s case 
workers, housing association staff and Citizens Advice advisors.

We worked with organisations both local and national in order to help 
us monitor the quality of local service provision and to enable us to 
influence and communicate change.

Care Quality Commission

We engage with the Care Quality Commission, by inviting them to our 
team meetings. We also send our Enter and View reports directly to the 
CQC, the service provider and commissioner.

Contract and Quality Surveillance Group

We attended the monthly Contract and Quality Surveillance meeting 
at the Local Authority. At this multi-disciplinary meeting all of the 
Care Home services, who have contracts with the Local Authority, are 
monitored and information is shared.

GP Patient Participation Groups

Throughout the year we engaged with several GP Patient Participation 
Groups locally to develop an information sharing process between 
Healthwatch Wirral and the practices.

In the coming year we hope to develop this further with other practices 
in the locality.

Working with other Organisations

P
age 264



Annual Report 2017/18 19

Wirral Medicines Management Team

Healthwatch produced a report based on patients views and 
experiences of using  the new system of ordering repeat prescriptions 
and also provided independent feedback to NHS Wirral CCG and 
stakeholders.

The report included recommendations for the CCG to consider and was 
presented by the CCG at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Wirral Medicines Management Team are currently reviewing the 
outcomes following the OSC meeting in March.

Quality Accounts

This year, Healthwatch Wirral commented on the Quality Accounts 
of four major providers:  Wirral University Teaching Hostpital NHS 
Foundation Trust, Wirral Community NHS Foundation Trust Hospital., 
Wirral Hospice St Johns and Clatterbridge Cancer Centre.

Our response was based on the views of the Healthwatch Working 
Group and Quality Assurance Group.

We provided an independent view, held providers to account for their 
performance against the priorities set for the previous year, as well as 
commenting on their priorities for the coming year.

Place Visits 

Patient-led assessments of the care environment (PLACE) is 
a system for assessing the quality of a hospital environment.                                                                                                                                    
These assessments apply to all hospitals delivering NHS-funded care, 
including day treatment centres and hospices.

PLACE assessments put patient views at the centre of the assessment 
process. They use information obtained directly from patient assessors 
to report how well a hospital is performing in: privacy and dignity, 
cleanliness, food and general building maintenance. It focuses entirely 
on the care environment and does not cover clinical care provision or 
staff behaviours.
                                                                                                           
During the year, through our communications, we were able to recruit 
volunteers and staff members to be involved with a number of patient-
led care reviews.

We participated in a number of PLACE Audits, including Arrowe Park 
Hospital, Clatterbridge Cancer Centre, Wirral Hospice St Johns and 
Springview Hospital.

Representatives who attended were able to comment on issues such as 
compassion and dignity of care, quality of food provision, cleanliness 
and site maintenance. 

All comments were taken into account by the Hospitals who have a 
statutory duty to undertake the assessments annually and report the 
results publicly.

The results which can be found on https://digital.nhs.uk show how 
hospitals are performing nationally.

Multi-Agency Discharge Event

Healthwatch Wirral were invited to take part in the Multi Agency 
Discharge Event (MADE) in January 2018.

MADE brought together health partners to support patient flow, 
unblock delays and challenge complex discharge processes. There 

P
age 265



Annual Report 2017/1820

were teams of internal and external colleagues visiting 14 wards across 
Arrowe Park and Clatterbridge sites. All patient pathways on those 
wards were reviewed.

Following a short briefing from Janelle Holmes (Chief Operating Officer) 
we were divided into teams of 6, and each team was allocated 2 wards 
to visit. During the course of the day each agency/dept. offered support 
to assist patient discharge.

Healthwatch Wirral provided information to six patients awaiting 

discharge from wards 21/22/33, including:

• Hot meal delivery
• Access to ‘home from hospital support’, including shopping service 

and help with transport to future appointments
• Befriending services to avoid social isolation
• Signposting to carer support and care services

Other obstacles to discharge included:

• Patients awaiting blood tests and ECG’s
• Patients awaiting doctor assessment
• Patients awaiting package of care to be arranged

Healthwatch contributed to addressing these delays and expediting 
discharge of patients.

Working Collaboratively to Address Mental Health Issues

• To produce the Care Navigation training and Suicide Awareness 
• To produce the directory of services
• Frequent Attenders – listening and learning from patient stories

This year we worked collaboratively with our Local Councillors.  We 
produced a report on Continuing Health Care. The report will be on our 

website. We also worked with Local Councillors on Enter & View visits 
to Care Homes.   These reports are also available on our website. 

It is important that we pro-actively seek the experiences and views of 
the public in relation to our health and care services. However, we must 
be reactive too.  On two occasions this year we needed to work with the 
Public Sector where changes to services were made at short notice.    

The first of the two occasions was when it was announced that 
Eastham Walk In Centre was to close.   We sourced background 
information and asked why this action had been decided upon.   
Equipped with, and sharing this knowledge, we then asked the public 
for their views and feedback.  This information was shared with Wirral 
CCG.

The second occasion was to discuss, with the public, the changes to the 
Repeat Prescriptions ordering. 

Working With Other Healthwatch’s

All Chief Officers of LHW’s meet on a monthly basis to discuss local 
issues and compare trends and themes.  We have, to date, been asked 
to provide representation on the GP Forward View, Safeguarding Board, 
Cardio Vascular Disease STP, Quality Surveillance Group, Pressure 
Ulcer Steering Group, Dementia Strategy Group and the new Care 
Home Steering Group.  

We have identified a Healthwatch representative who will attend and 
share relevant information to all of the other Healthwatch’s in the 
region. 

Healthwatch England have developed a much stronger link to Local 
Healthwatch and the development of a new leadership team has 

P
age 266



Annual Report 2017/18 21

started a great new relationship between Healthwatch England and 
Local Healthwatch’s.

Joined up working

• AgeUK – Choosing a Care Home (films etc.)
• The Orchard – Care Navigation training
• Suicide Awareness Training (with Public Health)
• A&E (with other Healthwatch’s)
• Repeat Ordering Prescriptions (CCG)
• Regular meetings with  LHW’s and Regional Healthwatch’s
• Information Bank - WUTHFT
• Interchange – Charles Thomson – Health Without a Home
• Mental Health – CCG, Future in Mind, Crisis Care Concordat

P
age 267



your
voice

counts

Our people

P
age 268



Annual Report 2017/18 23

Organisation Structure

Executive Board

Karen Prior

Chief Executive Officer

Phil Davies

Wendy Kay

Policy & Research Officer
Elaine Evans

Project Officer

Jo McCourt (Volunteer)

Volunteer Champion
Carmel Calvert 

(Volunteer)

Volunteer Co-ordinator

Kirsty Maton

Finance & Navigation 
Officer

Karen Crampton

Outreach Officer

Karen Livesey Victoria Adlard Patricia Goulborn Mike Sowden

P
age 269



Flowchart of Processes Within the Organisation

Do we need to know more?

Yes No

If no, consider the action to be taken.

Local actions:
• Wait for response from information sharing process
• Formal letter with 20 day response time
• Safeguarding referral
• Escalate to scrutiny HWBB, QSG, CQC

National actions:
• Escalate to Healthwatch England

Issue Identified

Plan engagement activity (Timeframe: 3 months) Could be face-to-face 
engagement, survey, focus group or Enter & View.

Approach to be determined by staff team based on capacity and logistics.

Analyse data, produce report with recommendations for response

Is anybody we know already dealing with the issue?

If satisfactory response, no further action from 
Healthwatch Wirral 

If yes, talk to them

If unsatisfactory 
response

Can we realistically have an impact make a difference?

If no, consider our next steps

If yes, carry on
If no, why not? Talk 

to somebody that 
can and pass on our 

information. No further 
action.

P
age 270



Positive and negative comments and suggestions for improvement, collated and recorded from patients and 
the public about their experiences of using health & social care services in Wirral. Obtained through a variety of 
sources:

• General engagement activity
• Telephone calls
• Email/Social Media
• Post
• Website
• Visits to the office

All comments shared with health & social care providers & commissioners

Responses received by Healthwatch and fed back to commentators

IIA sub-group analyse comments and identify themes and propose actions.

Engagement Activities

Task & Finish

Report written containing recommendations

Report shared for response

Findings followed through by Healthwatch Wirral

Outcomes

Work conducted at the request of providers/commissionersWork conducted at the request of providers/commissioners

Concerning feedback dealt with under internal escalation processes and 
policies

Volunteers explore/test a service Volunteers explore/test a service Infobank, Tesco, and Events

Signposted to alternative/
support services by Healthwatch 

Wirral

Mystery Shopping Enter & View Outreach

Work not triggered by IIA 
decided by CEO

Relevant intelligence used to 
inform Healthwatch England 

and CQC

Quality Management System

P
age 271



your
voice

counts

Finances

P
age 272



Annual Report 2017/18 27

Income Expenditure

Funding received from 
Local Authority to 
deliver Healthwatch 
statutory activities

Operational Costs

Staffing Costs

Office Costs

Total Expenditure

£170,093

£19,003

£136,754

£17,585

£173,342

£170,093Total Income

P
age 273



your
voice

counts

Volunteers

P
age 274



Annual Report 2017/18 29

Our Volunteers’ Stories
Tricia Harrison

I find it very worthwhile and useful being a member of Healthwatch 
Wirral, as they are a good source of information regarding the NHS and 
other related organisations.  

I can always approach Healthwatch Wirral and be confident that I will 
be signposted to the correct department or person.  I am a member of 
my GP surgery PPG and again, find the information I acquire as part of 
Healthwatch Wirral helpful to the other members of my group. 

 I am also part of the Enter & View team and hopefully by viewing 
establishments as a critical friend, make constructive comments that 
can make a difference to the service users and family.

Piara Miah

As a Healthwatch Wirral volunteer, I have helped with patient surveys 
in the Discharge Lounge, A&E and GP surgeries. I have taken part in 
Enter and View visits, PLACE visit and attended an End of Life Care 
meeting. Also I help out in the Information Bank at Arrowe Park 
Hospital.

I enjoy helping people and learning about new things, so working with 
Healthwatch Wirral has been perfect for me.

Di Morley

Having stopped attending the Safeguarding Board, due to its change 
of structure into a regional board, I have now started attending the 
Dementia Strategy Board and recently went to the second meeting.  
As usual, it’s always interesting to meet another group of professional 
colleagues in a different area. 

I continue to go to Tesco Bidston Moss on as many Friday mornings 
as I can manage to get customers’ views on health and social as part 
of our engagement programme. I enjoy doing this as it keeps up our 
interaction with the public and often gives us the opportunity to meet 
other organisations.  We also hold our Enter & View representatives’ 
meetings at Tesco, which is useful for me to get to keep in touch with 
them.

I continue to lead the Quality Assurance Group which oversees the 
Enter & View Reports and sit on the Working Group, both enjoyable 
experiences as we have fun while doing some work.

Barbara Dutton

I am a recent volunteer for Healthwatch Wirral and to date have helped 

with administrative duties in the Healthwatch Wirral office as well 
as participating in PLACE visits at the local hospital trust on behalf of 
Healthwatch Wirral.

In these roles I am treated in the same manner as a paid member of 
staff.

I chose to be a volunteer as it is enjoyable and offers me the chance 
to give something back to the community and hopefully make a 
difference to the people around me.

Volunteering is fun and is an excellent leisure activity. I get great 
enjoyment from what I do – that is why I keep doing it!

P
age 275



Annual Report 2017/1830

Marylin Wallace

I carry out enter and view visits to hospital wards and clinics and 
residential and nursing homes for Healthwatch Wirral, along with 
other volunteers and the Project Officer. I have also been involved with 
PLACE visits as requested.

I enjoy being involved with Healthwatch Wirral and being able to 
have some influence on the health and care services provided on the 
Wirral. Despite the negative media and public perceptions, we find 
many excellent examples of good practice and it is gratifying to be able 
to give establishments who are performing well the recognition they 
deserve. We also help to raise standards by identifying areas in need of 
improvement and sharing good ideas.

The website and the reports are very informative and I try to publicise 
the information available to friends and the public and indeed have 
used it myself when looking for available services. I also encourage 
people to comment on good and bad healthcare experiences as I like to 
promote constructive feedback as I feel this empowers the public.
Coming from a healthcare background I also appreciate the 
educational talks we have as I find this helps me to keep informed of 
new /changed practices.

Mary Rutter

I would say I have gained insight into areas of the NHS. Their problems 
and  assets it has been of great benefit to my understanding and I have 
enjoyed working  with other volunteers as well as Healthwatch staff. It 
also gives me an opportunity to contribute to the work of Healthwatch 
as an Enter & View and PLACE contributor

Carmel Calvert

Since April 2013 I have been a volunteer with Healthwatch Wirral. I 
have various roles within the organisation which are as follows :

I am the Equality and Diversity Representative  for Healthwatch Wirral. 
This involves attending any meetings which the various local Trusts 
may hold which the Chief Officer feels I could support on her behalf. I 
then report to the Chief Officer regarding the meeting attended.

I sit on the Quality Assurance Group which reviews all the Enter and 
View reports before they are presented to the Board.

I sit on the Working Group which looks at possible work plans after 
reviewing any causes for concern which are brought to the Group 
mainly through our monitoring but also through other organisations 
such as the local CCG.

I am always happy to take part in any surveys or Task and Finish 
groups which might take place after a concern is raised through the 
Working Group. I take part in presentations to various groups who may 
want to know more about what Healthwatch Wirral is all about.

I am the Volunteer Coordinator for new volunteers and contact them 
initially to welcome them to Healthwatch Wirral and find out what 
their volunteering interests may be. I then help to arrange and present 
Inductions and Enter and View training.

Finally, I volunteer each Thursday morning at the Information Bank, 
Arrowe Park Hospital. Where we signpost people to the right support 
they may need, whether it may be hospital related or any health and 
social care issues.

P
age 276



your
voice

counts

Our plans for 
next year

P
age 277



Annual Report 2017/1832

What Next?
For the coming year we intend to focus our attentions on mental health 
and the services funded by the Better Care Fund (BCF).  These range 
from Teletraige to Falls Prevention and mental health to home from 
hospital.    

The pathways to re-ablement services, which assist in the reduction of 
admissions and re-admissions to hospital, are often blurred.  HW aim 
to work in partnership to create a clear and distinct pathway to enable 
the public to navigate complicated journeys through health and care 
processes.

We also aim to continue the work with the most vulnerable people 
on Wirral.  Last year we worked with Homeless People and we will 
be working closer with Probation Services. This project will engage 
with people who have recently been released from custody who often 
experience difficulties accessing medications and accommodation.

The Independent Complaints Advocacy support is now part of 
Healthwatch Wirral.  Linda Town, our Advocate, is available to offer 
support to members of the public with regard to their NHS complaint.   
We aim to triangulate the themes from complaints with the wider 
information we receive through calls, the Speak Out Page on our 
website and emails. 

Our Strategic Priorities

• Ensure that Local Healthwatch is accountable to the people of 
Wirral by operating on their behalf and making sure that there is 
clarity and good communication about decisions taken, and how 
they were arrived at 

• Influence the commissioning and provision of health and social 
care services by presenting clear, realistic, well researched, 
evidence-based reports and recommendations to the 
commissioners and providers of health and social care services in 
the appropriate forums 

• Recruit and retain volunteers who represent the breadth of the 
Wirral community using their experience, skills, knowledge and 
commitment as a key part to Healthwatch Wirral’s success 

• Establish and build up networks and partnerships to ensure there 
is a range of cohesive and effective services without unnecessary 
duplication or gaps 

• Maintain excellent up-to-date local knowledge of local health and 
social care provision in Wirral 

• Maintain, and continuously develop, an up to date signposting 
service for the benefit of all of the residents and organisations of 
Wirral

P
age 278



Annual Report 2017/18 33

Karen Stephens – Head of A&E WUTHFT

The Emergency Department Frequent attenders meeting was 
introduced to review and implement care pathways across multi 
agencies. The patients have a mental health or alcohol problem which 
results in them attending the Emergency Department 15 times or more 
a year. 
 
• CWP
• WWTR
• Healthwatch Wirral
• Emergency Department
• Public Health
• Safeguarding
• Police
• CCG
 
All agencies come together to discuss, in detail, each patient. Having an 
MDT discussion on what alternatives to the Emergency Department 
can be found to support the patients. Having a multi-agency approach 
gives a balanced, challenging and different view to the Emergency 
Department as agencies are aware what is an alternative to Emergency 
Department whilst Emergency Department has a focus internally. 
Healthwatch Wirral are key to this and challenge some of the 
alternatives to establish if it is best for the patient. They are also aware 
of community support that other agencies are not aware of.

NHS Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group

Healthwatch Wirral have been a key partner in our commissioning 
work over the last year. In particular, they have been a key member of 
our Urgent Care Transformation Programme and as always have acted 
as a supportive yet critical friend.  We value this relationship and hope 
that it continues to be evident during our work to transform health and 
care services in Wirral over the next year.

We are also very pleased that Heathwatch Wirral have agreed to be 
a member of our new Patient and Public Advisory Group which has 
been set up to act in an advisory capacity to the CCG and to review its 
engagement and consultation plans.

Commentaries

P
age 279



Annual Report 2017/1834

Contact Us

0151 230 8957
info@healthwatchwirral.co.uk

www.healthwatchwirral.co.uk

@healthwatchwirr





Healthwatch Wirral
Liscard Business Centre, The Old School
188 Liscard Road, Liscard
CH44 5TN

Our annual report will be publicly available on our 
website by 30 June 2018. We will also be sharing it 
with Healthwatch England, CQC, NHS England, Clinical 
Commissioning Group(s), Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee(s), and our local authority.
 
We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch Trademark 
(which covers the logo and Healthwatch brand) when 
undertaking work on our statutory activities as covered by 
the licence agreement.
 
If you require this report in an alternative format please 
contact us at the address to the left. 
 
© Copyright Healthwatch Wirral, 2018

P
age 280


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes

	4a Healthy Wirral Programme Update
	4b Unplanned care update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	4c Better Care Fund Update
	App 1
	App 2
	App 3
	Add 4
	App 5
	App 5A
	App 6
	App 7
	App 8

	5a Commissioning Strategy
	App

	5b Supporting an integrated approach to identifying and assessing carers health and wellbeing
	6a Transforming Care Partnership
	6b Strategic Workforce Programme
	6c Women and Children's Partnership
	7a Public Health Annual Report
	App

	7b Healthier Lives Pledge Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	9a NHSE Quarterly Update
	9b Healthwatch

